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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
BENCH, AT NEW DELHI
COMPANY APPLICATION CA (CAA) NO. 100/ND/2024

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 - 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016
AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT OF:
ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
....... DEMERGED COMPANY / APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 1
AND
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
....... RESULTING COMPANY / APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 2

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS

To,

The Secured Creditors of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (the “Demerged/ Applicant Company
No.1”)

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated July 15, 2025 the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (“NCLT”) in Company Application No.(CAA) 100/ND/2024 has
directed that a meeting of Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company, be convened and held for
the purpose of considering and if thought fit, with or without modification, approving the scheme of
arrangement (“Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
AFPL/Demerged Company) and Alfa Autotech Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
AAPL/Resulting Company) under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
L2013 (“Act”).

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein notice is hereby given that a meeting of the
Secured Creditors of the AFPL/Demerged Company will be held on Monday, 15 September,
2025 at 11:00 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing using NSDL Portal ("VC") with facility of
remote e-voting and e-voting at the meeting following the operating procedures (with requisite
modifications as may be required) referred to in Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with
Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 09, 2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India. Further, there shall be no meeting requiring physical presence at a common
venue in view of the MCA Circulars, at which time and place the said Secured Creditors are
requested to attend. At the meeting, the following resolutions will be considered and if thought fit,
be passed with or without modification(s) under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Act by requisite majority:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory amendment, modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force read with the rules made thereunder, as amended
(“the Act”), subject to other approvals, consents and permissions, as may be necessary, approval of
the Secured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Scheme of Demerger (“the said
Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotech Private Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director be and is hereby severally authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable,
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be
required and/or imposed by the NCLT/or by any other court while sanctioning the Scheme or by
any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or
doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making
such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme,
as the Board may deem fit and proper without being required to seek any further approval of the
members or otherwise to the end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have given their
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement pursuant to
Section 230(3) read with Section 102 and Section 232(2) of the Act and Rule 6(3) of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 along with all annexures to such
statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this notice and the accompanying documents can also
be obtained free of charge on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) from the
Registered office of the Applicant Company No. 1 situated at M-439, 1% Floor, Guru Harkishan
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087 or at the office of its authorized representative M/s
Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers at 603, New Delhi House, 27, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-
110001.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of Secured Creditors has been
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of
appointment of proxies by Secured Creditors under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) will not be available for the said Meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip
are not annexed to this Notice.

It may be noted that the facility of remote e-voting will be available during the prescribed period
before the meeting. Accordingly, Secured Creditors can vote through remote electronic means,
alternatively, the Secured Creditors may opt for e-voting on the day of the meeting.

The Tribunal has appointed Mrs. Rashmi Chopra, Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator, as Chairperson and Mr.
Jitender Arora, Company Secretary has been appointed as Scrutinizer for the said meeting. The

abovementioned Scheme of Demerger, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to the subsequent
approval of the Hon’ble Tribunal.



In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, the Scheme of Demerger shall be
considered approved by the Secured Creditors only if the Scheme is approved by majority of
persons representing three-fourth in value of the Secured Creditors, of the Applicant Company No.
1, voting in person or by authorized representative.

dé\/uw G\a v
Date: & / 08/ 2025 s. Rashmi Choer
Place: New Delhi Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator
Chairperson, Appointed hy
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,

New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Secured Creditors of
" Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited



NOTES:

1.

As per NCLT Order dated July 15, 2025 read with general circular issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) viz. Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with Circular
No. 09/2024 dated September 09, 2024 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’),
meeting of Secured Creditors of AFPL/ Demerged Company will be held through Video
Conferencing(*VC’) using NSDL Portal (‘VC’) at the meeting. Instructions for attending
the meeting through Video Conferencing and remote e-voting & e-voting at the
meeting are given at the end of this notice. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the
Registered Office of the Demerged Company situated at M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087,

Since, the meeting is being held pursuant to NCLT Order and MCA Circulars through VC,
physical attendance of the Secured Creditors has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Secured Creditors will not be available for
meeting.

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).has been appointed by the Applicant
Company to provide remote e-voting facility before the meeting; and to provide e-voting
platform during the meeting, in secured manner. Whereas Mas Services Ltd, a SEBI
registered Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) is appointed to provide platform for
convening the meeting through Video Conferencing; to handle and supervise the entire
process of holding the meeting through Video Conferencing, processing of data relating to
the meeting and voting etc.

In case of any grievance or difficulty in registering the e-mail id; remote e-voting or during
e-voting or attending the meeting through Video Conferencing, etc., the following persons
may be contacted:

Mr. Sharwan Mangla Mobile: 98117 42828
General Manager e-mail: sm@masserv.com

Mas Services Ltd

Registrar & Transfer Agent

Mr. Niraj Arya - Mobile: 7834907641

Authorized Person Email id.: nirajarya0195@gmail.com
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11.

. The Secured Creditors can join the meeting through VC mode 15 minutes before and after

the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice.

Only Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company No. 1 may attend and meeting through
Video Conferencing and vote through e-voting/remote e-voting system at the Secured
Creditors meeting. The representative of a body corporate which is Secured Creditors of the
Applicant Company No. 1 may attend and vote at the Secured Creditors meeting provided a
certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body under
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing such representative to attend and vote
at the Secured Creditors meeting is deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant
Company No. 1 or email ID of scrutinizer i.e. csjitender@yahoo.com not later than 48
hours before the meeting.

The joint notice convening the meetings will be published through advertisement in New
Delhi editions in the newspapers namely, ‘Business Standard’ (English) and ‘Business
Standard’ (Hindi).

The Secured Creditors owing debt to the Company as on 31.03.2025, being the cut-off date,
will be entitled to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions in respect of the approval of
the Scheme. ‘ )

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the value of debt owed by the Company as on
31.03.2025. Persons who are not Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on the -
cut-off date 1.€.31.03.2025 should treat this notice for information purposes only.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in number representing three fourths in value
(as per Sections 230 and 232 of the Act), the Resolution proposed in the Notice shall be
deemed to have been passed on the date of the Meeting.

Voting may be made through remote e-voting which will be available during the prescribed
period before the meeting (as given below); or through e-voting platform which will be
available during the meeting:

Commencement of remote e-voting | Friday, 12t September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M.
IST

End of remote e-voting Sunday, 14™ September, 2025 at 5:00. P.M.
IST
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14.

15.
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17.

All Secured Creditors will be entitled to attend the meeting through Video Conferencing.
The facility for e-voting shall also be made available at the meeting. However, Secured
Creditors who have already voted through the remote e-voting process before the meeting,
will not be entitled to vote at the meeting, however they will continue to be entitled to attend
the meeting

The quorum for meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company shall be 2
(two) Secured Creditors. The Secured Creditors attending the NCLT Convened Meeting
through VC will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum. In case the quorum as
noted above for the aforesaid meeting is not present at the meeting, then the meeting shall be
adjourned by half an hour and thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to
constitute the quorum of the meeting.

In compliance with NCLT Order and pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s),
clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) the Notice,
together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the Secured
Creditors electronically by e-mail to those Secured Creditors who have registered their e-
mail ids with the Company ,whose name appear as the Secured Creditors as on 31.03.2025.
For Secured Creditors who have not registered their E-mail IDs, physical copies shall be
sent by permitted mode. In case any Secured Creditors wish to receive a copy of the notice,
they are requested to send an email to advisor@sslclegal.com duly quoting hisfher Folio
Name and Amount Debt owed by the Company, as the case may be and soft copy of this
Notice will be provided to such Secured Creditors. The Notice of the Meetings is also
available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement along
with the Statutory Registers maintained by the Company will be available for inspection by
the Secured Creditors at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company during normal
business hours (11 am to 5 pm) from Monday to Friday upto and including the date of the
meeting.

Since the meeting will be held through VC in accordance with the NCLT Order and MCA
Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with
applicable rules thereunder and provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013
setting out material facts forms part of this notice.
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18.

19.

Secured Creditors are requested to carefully read all the Notes set out herein and in
particular, instructions for joining the Meeting and manner of casting vote through
electronic means.

Instruction:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SECURED CREDITORS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE
AS UNDER:

The facility of attending Meeting through VC/ OAVM is being provided by National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The facility of casting votes by a secured creditor
using electronic means, i.e. (i) remote e-Voting and (ii) e-Voting at the Meeting, (hereinafter
referred to as ‘e-Voting’) is also being provided by NSDL.

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 12'® September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. IST and
ends Sunday, 14" September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. IST. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. However, the same shall be enabled once again
during the course of the Meeting. The Secured Creditors, whose names appear as the
Secured Creditors as on 31.03.2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
Secured Creditors shall be in proportion to the principal amount due to them by the
Company as on the cut-off date. Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the Secured
Creditors, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

Procedure for remote e-voting:

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:
Step 1: Access to the NSDL e-voting system

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-voting system

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.


vww.evoting.nsdl.com/

The User ID and Password for joining the Meeting through VC / OAVM and casting votes
through e-voting are attached in the pdf file enclosed herewith. Please note that the
password to open the pdf file is the unique id mentioned in the email or for the first time, the
system will ask to reset your password.

The User ID and Password are sent to all the Secured Creditors whose email addresses are
available with the Company.

Those secured Creditors whose e-mail addresses are not available with the Company and as
a result have not received the e-mail communication, may obtain the User ID and Password
by writing to the Company as given below,

A Secured creditor who cannot retrieve or has not received the User ID and Password, may
obtain the same by sending a request at nirajarya0195 ail.com. Such Secured creditor is
requested to provide his / her / its / name, address, PAN, mobile number and email address
along with the request. The subject line of the request should clearly mention: “Login Id and
Password for Secured Creditor for NCLT Convened Meeting- Alfa Flexitubes Private
Limited”

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.

Now you will have to click on “Login™ button.

10. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system.

1.

After successful login at step 1, you will be able to see EVEN of Company.

Select EVEN of company to cast your vote.

Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting page open.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options, i.e., assent or dissent, and click on “Submit”
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.
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7.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Procedure for e-voting at the Meeting:

1.

1.

Secured Creditors will be provided with a facility to attend the NCLT meeting through
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of
the meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. Secured
Creditors may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system.

After successful login, secured Creditors will be able to see the VC / OAVM link placed
under ‘Join meeting’ menu against the Company’s name. Secured Creditors are requested to
click on the VC / OAVM link placed under ‘Join meeting’ menu.

Facility to join the Meeting through VC/QOAVM, will open 30 minutes before the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting.

Secured Creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Secured Creditors will be required to allow the camera and use internet with good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

General Guidelines

It is strongly recommended not to share User ID and Password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep them confidential.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) available at
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or
send a request at evoting@nsdl.com.

Secured Creditors who would like to express their views/have questions may send their
questions in advance mentioning their name, email-id, mobile number at
advisor@sslclegal.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

10
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Date: 8[ 0?{ , 2025

Place: New Delhi

11

'-\S\/\W\l C:'\D i/A
Mré. Rashmi Chopra ?
Sr. Afvocate/Arbitrator
Chairperson, Appointed by
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Secured Creditors of
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited



EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS UNDER SECTION 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) AND SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
AND ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS
AND CREDITORS.

1. Pursuant to the order dated July 15, 2025, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench (“NCLT”) in Company Application No. (CAA) 100/ND/2024,
a meeting of the Secured Creditors of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged
Company”) is being convened on Monday, 15® September, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. IST
through video conferencing using NSDL Portal with facility of remote e-voting and e-voting
at the meeting, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving the scheme of
arrangement (“Scheme”) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotech Private
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

2. The resolution to be submitted at the said meeting is as follows:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory amendment,
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force read with the rules made
thereunder, as amended (“the Act™), subject to other approvals, consents and permissions, as
may be necessary, approval of the Secured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to Scheme of arrangement (“the said Scheme™) of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
and Alfa Autotech Private Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director be and is hereby severally.authorized to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite,
desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement
the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if
any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT/or by any other court while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose
of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such
accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered
necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper without being
required to seek any further approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that
the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority
of this resolution.”

3. All the capitalized terms used in this explanatory Statements and defined in the Scheme shall
have the same meaning ascribed to them in the Scheme. ‘
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4.

The details of the Applicant Company No. 1/ Demerged Company are given as under:

(a)
(b)
(©
(d)
(¢}
®

(&
(h)

®

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U65993DL1996PTC075886;

Permanent Account Number: AAACA7046D;

Name: Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited;

Date of incorporation: 31/01/1996;

Type of company: Private limited company;

Registered Office: M-439, 1** Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New
Delhi 110087

Email-id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com;

Details of capital structure: The share capital as on 31% March, 2025, is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs,)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

40,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,00,00,000

Total 4,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE

CAPITAL

34,82,273 equity shares of Rs.10 each 3,48,22,730

Total 3,48,22,730

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorized and
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Transferor Company till the date of
issue of this notice. '

Main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried
on by the Demerged Company: '

The main business activity carried on by the company is to manufacturing and supply
of comprehensive range of products including hose, stainless steel hose, flexible metal
hose, metal hose assemblies, exhaust connectors, flexible exhaust connectors, exhaust
pipe connectors, automotive flexible hose, flexible hose assemblies, metallic flexible
pump & metal bellows and expansion joints.

The main objects of Demerged Company as set out in Clause 11l (A) of the
Memorandum of Association are as under:

1. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all
types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel, rubber, PTFE and
thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied engineering automobile and
industrial components.

12.°
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2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all
types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools such as
welding machines, lathe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repbir or otherwise deal in all
types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure guages,
temperature guage, digital instrument.

() Names of the present Promoters along with their residential addresses:

S.No | Name Address
1. Mr. Rajendra Kum M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan
Sardana ' Nagar, Delhi- 110087 '

2. Mrs. Indra Sardana M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan
Nagar, Delhi- 110087

3. Mr. Saurabh Tandon D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind Shankar Road

' Market, New Rajendra Nagar, Delhi-
110060 '

(k) Names of present Directors along with their DIN and residential addresses:

S.No | Name DIN Address
1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar 00732421 | M-439, First Floor, Guru
Sardana Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi-

110087
2. Ms. Pooja Sardana 00724683 | M-439, First Floor, Guru
Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi-

110087
3. Ms. Indra Sardana 00724745 | M-439, First Floor, Guru
Harkrishan Nagar, Delhi-

110087
4, Mr. Saurabh Tandon 01994583 | D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind
Shankar Road Market, New
Rajendra  Nagar, Delhi-

110060
5. Ms. Priya Ahuja 06500919 | 11/366, Second Floor, Sunder
Vihar, Paschim Vihar, Delhi-

110087

()  Details of change of name of the Demerged Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the name of the Demerged Company in last five years.
(m)  Details of change of registered office of Demerged Company in the last five years:
There is no change in the address of the Demerged Company in last five years.
(n)  Details of change of Objects of the Demerged Company in the last five years:

There is no change in the object clause of the Demerged Company in last five years.

(0) Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: 24.06.2024.
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The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: Scheme was approved unanimously by
all the directors of the Demerged Company.

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company as on 31% March

2025 (cutoff date):
Amount due to the secured creditors of the Demerged Company as on 31.03.2025 is
Rs. 19,79,91,868.34/-

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company as an 31.03.2025

(cutoff date):

Amount due to the unsecured creditors of Demerged Company as on 31.03.2025 is
Rs. 14,20,98,585.79/-

5.  The details of the Applicant Company No. 2 / Resulting Company are given as under:

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d
(e)
®

(g
(h)

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U34330DL2008PTC173317;

Permanent Account Number: AAHCA2027P;

Name: Alfa Autotech Frivate Limited,

Date of incorporation: 30/01/2008;

Type of company: Private limited company;

Registered Office: M-439, 1* Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschira Vihar, New
Delhi, 110087;

Email-id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com;

Details of capital structure: The share capital as on 31* March, 2025, is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2,50,000 equity sflares of Rs. 10 each 25,00,000

Total 25,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE

CAPITAL

90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 9,00,000
Total 9,00,000

FORFEITED SI?ARE CAPITAL

20,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00,6000

Paid Up @ Rs.5 each
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0)

(k)

Total 1,00,000

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorized and
issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company till the date of
issue of this notice.

Main objects as per the Memorandum of Association and main business carried
on by the Resulting Company:

The main business activity carried on by the company is manufacturing and supply of
comprehensive range of products including hose, stainless steel hose, flexible metal
hose, metal hose assemblies, exhaust connectors, flexible exhaust connectors, exhaust
pipe connectors, automotive flexible hose, flexible hose assemblies, metallic flexible
pump & metal bellows and expansion joints.

The main objects of Transferee Company/ Resulting Company as set out in Clause III
(A) of the Memorandum of Association are as under:

1. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all
types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel, rubber, PTFE and
thermoplastic hose couplings, flanges and allied engineering automobile and
industrial components. :

2. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all
types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools such as
welding machines, lethe, milling, drilling, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal in all
types of measuring and festing equipments such as pressure guages,
temperature guage, digital instruments.

Names of the present Promoters along with their residential addresses:

S.No | Name Address
1. | Mr. Rajendra Kumar M-439, First Floor, Guru Harkrishan
Sardana Nagar, Delhi- 110087

2. | Mr. Saurabh Tandon D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind Shankar Road
Market, New Rajendra Nagar, Delhi-

110060

Names of present Directors along with their DIN and residential addresses:

S.No [ Name DIN Address
1. { Mr. Rajendra Kumar 00732421 M-439, First Floor, Guru
Sardana Harkrishan =~ Nagar,  Delhi-
110087
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2. | Ms. Pogja Sardana 00724683 | M-439, First Floor, Guru

Harkrishan ~ Nagar, Delhi-
110087

3. | Mr. Saurabh Tandon 01994583 | D-146, 2nd Floor, Behind
Shankar A Road Mark:t, New
Rajendra Nagar, Delhi- 110060

Details of change of name of the Resulting Company in the last five yzars:
TLere is no change in the name of the Resulting Company in last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Resulting Company in the last five years:
Therz is no change in the address of the Resulting Company in last five yzars.

Details of change of Objects of the Resulting Company in the last five years:
Therz is no change in the object clause of the Resulting Company in last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: 24.06.2024.

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: Scheme was approved unanimously by
all the directors of the Resulting Company.

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025
(cutoff date):

Amount due to the secured creditors of the Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 is
Rs. Nil/-

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Resultmg Company as on 31.03.2025
(cutoff date):

Amcunt dus to the unsecured ereditors of Resulting Company as on 31.03.2025 is
Rs. 28,53,068/-

The relationship between the companies who are parties to the Scheme:
The management of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company are same,

The rationales and benefits of the Scheme:
The rationale and benefit of the proposed scheme have been duly provided for and captured in
the Scheme attached with this notice/explanatory statement.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other
governmental authorities required, received or pending:

The Applicant Companies are not required to take approvals / sanctions / ro-objections from
regulatory or any other governmental authorities. Further, Applicant Companies are required
to send the notices to the concerned Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Income Tax
Authority etc. for their representation(s), if any.



10.

11,

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

For the purpose of the Scheme the appointed date is April 01, 2024 and Effective date has
been defined as “the last of the dates on which the certified copy of the order of the National
Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi &
Haryana at New Delhi in terms of Section 232(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.”

For the purpose of arriving at the share exchange ratio, an independent Valuation Report from
Mr. Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer has been obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged
Company is Asset Approach. It has been stated in the valuation report that a fair equity share
entitlement ratio would mean that for every 1000 fully paid up equity share of Alfa Flexitube
Private Limited, Alfa Autotech Private Limited will issue 58 shares. It is further declared that
the valuation report is available for inspection by the equity shareholders and creditors of the
Demerged Company and Resulting Company at the Registered Office of the

Demerged Company and Resulting Company upto one day prior to the date of the Meeting
between 11.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays).

The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and relatives of Directors and the KMP of
the Applicant Companies may be deemed to be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme
only to the extent of their shareholding in the respective companies, or to the extent of
common directorship in the companies, or to the extent said directors, KMP and relatives of
Directors and the KMP are partners, directors, members of the companies, firms, bodies
corporate and/ or beneficiary of trust that hold shares in any of the companies.

The Scheme does not have a prejudicial effect on the key managerial personnel, directors,
promoters, non-promoter members, creditors, employees and depositors of the Demerged
Company and Resulting Company, as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all, called from them nor are
their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

The Scheme will be in the best interests of Demerged Company and Resulting Company, their
respective shareholders and creditors. The said Scheme will not adversely affect the rights of
any of the shareholders and creditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company in
any manner whatsoever,

That the Demerged Company and Resulting Company are not govemned by any sectoral
regulator.

The proposed Scheme does not involve any capital debt restructuring.
The proposed Scheme will take effect from the date on which the certified copy of the order of

the Hon’ble NCLT is filed with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi by the Demerged
Company and Resulting Company as required by the Act.

17
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18.

19.

20.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending under section 235 to section
251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under the corresponding provisions contained in sections
210 to 229 of the Companies Act, 2013, are pending against the applicant companies

No winding up proceedings are pending against the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company as on date.

The following documents will be open for inspection for the Secured Creditors at the
registered office of the Demerged Company at M-439, 1** Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087 on all working days during business hours from 11.00
AM. 10 5.00 P.M. upto the date of the ensuing Meeting and at the Meeting during the Meeting

hours:

a)
b)

c)

d)

g)

h)

Scheme of Arrangement;

Valuation Report obtained on share entitlement ratio;

Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company to the effect that the accounting treatment in the Scheme is in conformity
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013;

Copy of the order passed by the Hon’ble NCLT dated July 15, 2025 in Company
Application No. (CAA) No.100 /ND/2024;

Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Demerged Company and Resulting Company;

Copy of Audited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company for the year ended on March 31, 2024;

Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company and Resulting Company approving the Scheme of Arrangement.

Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company pursuant to
Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

JJLM.l QO?‘/J .
‘ -

. Rashmi Chopra
Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator

Date: 8’ / gv/ —’/.( Chairperson, Appointed by

Place: New Delhi Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,

New Delhi Bench

For meeting of Secured Creditors of
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT / DEMERGER
UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 -
BETWEEN ) '
.ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U65993DL1996PTCO75886)
(PAN: AAACA7046D) -~
(DEMERGED COMPANY)
AND
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317)
(PAN: AAHCA2027P)
(RESULTING COMPANY)

PREAMBLE

A. Whereas this Scheme of Demerger is presented under Sections 230 to 232 of-

Companies Act, 2013 *for Demerger of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited

'(hereinaﬂer referred to as AFPL / Demerged Company) and Alfa’ Autotech
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as AAPL / Resulting Company).

B. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

a) Alfa Flexitubes Private lLimited (“Demefged Company™) is a duly
incorporated Private Limited Company on 31¥ January, 1996 under
Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL1996PTC07583-6, and its
registered office address is situated at M-439, 1* Floor, Guru Harkishan
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087, engaged in the following

business:

1. To purchase, salc, import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal

tt in all types of.flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel,

rubber, PTFE and thermoplastic hose couplings, ﬂaﬁges and allied

engineering automoblle and industrial components.
> For Alfa Autotech rivale Ltd. m‘w

Yo D:reclor
* t
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2 To purchase, sale, import, export, manufacture, repau or otherwise deal
Toe in all types of engineering and 1ndustnal machines and machine tools

such as weldmg machines, lathe, mlllmg, dnllmg, welding electrodes.

3. To purchase, sale, Import, export, manufacture, repair or otherwlse deal
o B . in all types of measuring and testing eqmpments such as pressure

guages, temperature guage, digi tal instrurnent

b) Alfa Autotech Private Limited is a duly incorporated as Private Limited
Company on 30"’ January, 2008 under Companies Act, 1956 having
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317, and its registered office address is
situated at M-439, 1¥ Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,-Paschim Vihar,
New Dethi, 110087. The main objects of the Resulting Company as set

out in its Memorandum of Association are reproduced herein below:

’ o 1. To purchase, sale, import, export, menufacture, repair or otherwise deal
in all types of flexible hoses and hose assemblies in stainless steel,
rubber, PTFE and thermoplastic hose ‘couplings, flanges and allied

engineering automobile and industrial components.

2. To purchase, sale, import, expo_xft, manufacture, repair or otherwise deal
i in all types of engineering and industrial machines and machine tools

such as v'.:velding machines, lethe, milling, drilliﬁg, welding electrodes.

. 3. To purchase, sale, import, export, manufactuile, repair or ;Jt]:terwise deal
_in all types of measuring and testing equipments such as pressure
guages, temperature guage, digital instruments. - . T

. C. The present Scheme of Arrangement / Demerger (hereinafter referrei:i to as
“Scheme”) is a demerger of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited wherein .Pune.
unit of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited would be demerged and shall b'?.

transferred to Alfa Autotech Private Limited. The remaining two units located
in Bhadurgarh district of the Company shall be retained by Alfa Flexitubes

3
Private Limited.

D. That present demerger would involve, transfer ongomg concem basis, of all

g the undertakings of Demerged Company, pertai rit
’ . .. For Alfa Autotech Ryivate Ltd, W&Fﬁ mw

N A, —
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g- specifically on the said units of the company as the company identified
-4 ' .
8 operational inefficiencies in managing geographically dispersed units,
EQ . including increased logistical costs, complexities in coordination, and
5 challenges in maintaining uniformity in operational practices, By demerging
‘59 the Pune Unit, the company can streamline operations and improve overall
g’ . . . ) .
8 efficiency. Segregating the units would enable the company to achieve better
g economies of scale, reduce redundancies, and enhance overall productivity.
S A

-'ﬂ,

inchiding all the present, prospective, proportionate assets & liabilities related

with the day to day running of said businesses / underia.kjngs & including the -

assets and liabilities specifically mentioned in Schedule { and 2 respectively,
made part of present scheme, into Resulting Company, paﬁicularly focusing
on business of other units (as deﬁped later in the Scheme) (hereinafier
referred as “Resulting Company”) and in consideration thereof, issue of
equity shares to the shareholders of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited, on
priaportionate basis pursuant to provisions of Section 230-232 of Companies
Act, 2013 and other relcvantfapplicablé provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
and in compliance with the norms laid down under Section 2 (19AA) of
Income Tax Act, 1961.

E. The Demerged Company and Resulting Company are not listed on any Stock

Exchange.

F. The management of the Companies has examined the relative bﬁsiness
strengths and the potential commercial and other synergies of the entity and;
accordingly, the possibility of demerger was mooted. As the Demerged
Company is having three units i.e. two units located at Bahadurgarh disuict
and one unit located at Pune district, it is proposed to demerge the Pune unit
only. Post Demerger, the Qemerged Company having retained undertaking

:i comprising units located at Bahadurgarh district so that it will be able to focus
E

1 This demerger is expected to lead to cost savings and improved operational

. g A ~ performance.

E{QG The Scheme ‘is in thé interest of both the companies involved and their

respective shareholders, creditors, employees, debenture holders, if any and

g debenture trustees, if any, depositors and deposit trustee, if any, and all other
= concerned and shall help these companies to achieve and fulfill-the objectives

- — e —
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more efficiently and oﬁ'er opportunities to the management of comp;r:l;s‘?ﬁ
vigorously pursue growth and expansion of business. The Scheme shall not in
eny manner be prejudicial to the interest of concerned shareholders or
directors or creciitorg; or key managerial personnel or debenture trustees, if
any, or any other stakeholder or general public at large. Further there is no
material interest of any director and/ or key m.ana'gerial personnel of the
companies or debenture 'trustees, if any, in the present Scheme of

Arrangement.

H. The Board of Direeters of both the companies are of the opinion that the
“above Arrangement would-result in benefit to the shareholders, creditors,
employees and other stakeholdem of both the companies and both concemed-
‘and the Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudwlal to the interest of

concerned shareholders or creditors or general public at large.

That no investigation or proceedings under Section 206 to I229 of the

a

Companies Act, 2013 or under Section 235 to 251 of the ersfwhile Companies
Act, 1956 is pending aga.mst any of the Companles mvolved in the present

Scheme of Arrangement/demerger

This Scheme is broadly divided into following parts:

PartI: Preliminary;

- Part II: Financial position and capital structure; . -

PartIII: Ratiena_le and benefits of the Scheme;
Part}V:  Transfer and i-esting of the unit of the Demerged Company;
Part.V: 'Aceoum.ing Treatment;

Part VI: Share Cepital, consideration . and _altera_tion of Memorandum and

. Articles of Association;

Par:VII:  Effect of the Scheme on the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,

Promoters, Creditors and other Stakeholders;

Part VIII: General terms and conditions.

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. “‘MH-E"W .

Dlrector . D:rector
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PART I
PRELIMINARY

This Scheme of Arrangement / Demerger (hereinafter referred to as .“the

Schemé™) provides for the Arrangement / Demerger of the Demerged

Company with the Resﬁ!tinlg Compaﬁy, in accordance with the provisions of

Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 c- any statutory
modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof for ths time being in

force (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

" Amalgamation) Rulés, 2016, as amended from time to time and all other

: ap;ilicable provisions, if any, of the Act and any other appliceble law for the

time being in force.

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the

following expressions shall have the meaning as under:

a. “Act” or “The’ Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory
modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof, the Rules, regulations,
notifications made/issued thereunder, if any, as amended frora time to time

- and also mean and refer to corresponding .i'elevant enforceatle Sections of

Companies Act, 1956, the rules and regulations made there under, if any;

b. “Appointed Date” Aprii 1, 2024 or such other date as may be approved by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) or Hox’ble National
Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT), or any other competent Court

- For Alfa Autotee Private Ltq. WsALFARLEXITUSES V. LTD. |

Yo Mo A

. Director C - Diractor
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h.

(3), judicial or quasi-judicial-authority or any other competent autﬁo;ity

Laving power to sanction the Scheme, as the case may be,

“Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the board of directors of the -

Demerged Company and/or Resulting Company respectively and includes
zny Committee(s) of the Board, or any person or persons authorised by the

Board of Directors of the respective companies.

. “Central Government” for the purpose of the present Scheme means and |

include but not limited to the concerned Regional Director or such other
authority(ies) to whom powers under Section 230 to 232 of the Act may be

dzlegated from time to time..

. “Effective Date” shall mean the last of the dates on which certified copies

of the order(s) of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal sanctioning the
Scheme are filed with Registrar of Companies by the Demerged Company
and by the Resulting Company. References in this Scheme to the date of the
"a_:oming into effect of this Scheme" or "effectiveness of this Scheme" shall

mean the Effective date; .

“Members” or “Class of Members” or “Concerned Members” with

respect to the Demerged Compaﬁy and Resulting Cbmpany shall mean the
Equity Sharcholders, whose names is/ are entered in the Register of

Members or as a beneficial owner in the records of the depository

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “The Tribunal”
means the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal constituted under
Section 408 read with Section 419 of the Act situated at New Delhi or any

other bench of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal having jurisdiction _

to sanction the Scheme;

“National Company Law Appellate Tribunal” or “NCLAT” or “The
Appellate Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate

Tribunal at New Delhi constituted under Section 4IQ of the Act as and when _

the context may require Mfs ALFA FLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.

For Alfa Autotejg\lir,ivaie Ltd. m N

Director
+  Dlrector
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Reéulting Company wherein the scheme of demerger is approved by the
board of respective companies or any other date as may be agreed upon by
said companies, for reckoning the list of Directo}s, Shareholders &

C-relditors (Secured & Unsecured) of companies.

j- “AFPL” means “Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged Company”.)

is a duly incorporated Private Limited Company as on 31 January, 1996

under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL1996PTC075886, and
its registered office address is situated at M-439, 1¥ Floor, Guru Harkishan '
Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhl, 110087 which is Demerged Company in

the present Scheme of Arrangementhemerger

“AAPL” means Alfa Autotech Private Limited which is Resulting.
~ Company in the present Scheme of Arrangement/Demerger.

. “Demerged Company” means “AFPL”
. “Resulting Company” means “AAPL”.

- “This Scheme” or “the Scheme” means the present Scheme of Demerger

framed under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act;

2013, and other applicable provisions, if any, where Pune Unit of “the

Demerged Company is proposed to be demerged in the Resulting Company .

in' the present form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or
directed by Members/Creditors of the respective Companies and/or by
National Company Law Tribunal or other concemed / comfyetcr_nt

authority(ies), as the case may be;

unit will be demerged into the existing business eatity "M/s. Alfa Autotech .

Private Limited”. It also includes complete business undertaking of Pune

tnit as a whole, including the credentials related to said business unit and
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd, MSALFAREXITUBES PVT. LTD,

A~ mw«p/

Birector

i. “Record Date” shall be the date of such Board Meeting of Demerged & °

» Pune Unit shall mean business unit of AFPL located at Pune District. This

1
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fricluding all the assets and liabilitiee'as apportioned in between the

. -demerged and resulting cem_p‘any.
. Other Units shall mean business units located at Bhaciurgarh District.

. “Demerged Undertaking” Shall mean the Pune Unit of AFPL, ongoing
concem basis & shall further include all the assets [moveable(s) &

immoveable(s), tangible(s) & intangible (s)} and liabilities [present &

' future] of AFPL as mentioned in the schedule to this scheme but strictly

excluding all those Assets & Liabilities Pertaining to other units.
Without prejudice to above; the term Demerged Undertaking shall inglude,

1. all the assets and properties as on the Appointed Date (hereinafier

referred to as “the satd assets");

II. All the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations as on the Appomted :

Date (herein after referred o as “the said llabllmes")
Pertaining to Pune I:lllit of AFPL / Demerged Company. '

Without prejudice to the preceding sub cleuse (I), the assets of the

. Demerged Company, subject to transfer under present scheme, shall include,

without hmltatlon, all the Demerged Company's reserves and the authorized

share capital, movable, and immovable propemes including investments,

claims, powers, authormes, allotments, approvals, consents, reglstiat:ons, .

business contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, credits, titles,

mterests benefits, club membershlps advantages leasehold rights, tenancy

rights, other mtanglbles, mdustnal and other - licenses, perrmts.

authorizations, quota rights, trade marks, patenrs and other mdustnal and

.inteltectual prbpertles mcludmg domain names import quotas, telephone

telex, facsimile , email id etc. and other communication facilities and

equipment, rights and benefits of all agreements and all other lnterests, right . '
and power of every kind; nature and description whatsoever, pnv:leges

' hbemes, easements, advantages, benefits and approvals of whatsoever

nature and whosesoever situate, belonging to or in the ownership, power or

- e—aam—n mar *
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' - h -
passession or control of the Demerged Company relating to Puné III‘_lit ason

the Appointed Date and thereafter.

i The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this
s " Scheme, shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning
Lo hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, Income Tax
Act, 1961, Indian Accounting Standards or Accounting Standard, as may be
.applicable and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the
case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from

. ' time to time.

PARTII

B e e

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

o 3. ' The share capital structure of the Demerged Company and the Resultiné

Cempany are given as under:

3.1 The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the |

Demerged Company as on the date of this Scheme are as under:

‘ PARTICULARS AMOUNT
i ' (Figures in INR)
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
S 40,00,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each 4,00,00,000
Total 4,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

SHARE CAPITAL _
34,82,273 equity shares of Rs. 10 each : 3,48,22,730
Total 3,48,22,730
For Alfa Autotec 'Priva:e Ltd, e EVEATD..
Dirsctor
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3.1 The Authorised, Issued, Subscnbed and Paid up Share Capltal of the

Resulting Company as on the date of this Scheme are as under:

[PARTICULARS | AMOUNT

(Figures in H;IR)'

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2,50,000 equit& shares of Rs. 10 each ' 25,00,000

Total 25,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

SHARE CAPITAL
" 90,000 equity shares of Rs: 10 cach 9,00,000
- Total | - ~9,00,000
FORFEITED SHARE CAPITAL
20,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each | 1,00,000
Paid Up @ Rs.5 each
' Total 1,00,000

PART I

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

‘The present.Scheme of Arrangement would, inter alia, have the follo.wing

benefits:

) ﬁ) The demerger of Pune Unit of Demerged Company into the Resulting

Company will enable the 'Demergéd Company (the Retained

Undertaking) to focus more spcci fically on the Bhadurgarh Units as an

exclusive entity and: W1ll concentrate on developing and achieving °

For Alfa Autote h Private Ltd. mmw‘ﬂ/

Duectof
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o
expertise towards it and decision making, without the distraétio:n of
" managing multiple units. This can lead to improve.d perfc).nﬁz;ncp and
innovatton. Aiso, investors may value. specialized companieslhi.gher
than a conglomerate as they can better understand and assegs the risks

and opportunities of a focused business. This can lead to improved

valuation.

b) The Arrangement will result in better, efficient and economical
management, cost savings, c‘reating better synergy across the: group;
optimum utilization of resources, rationalization of administrati\ie
expenses/services, contrbl and’ running of businesses and further |

development and growth of the business of both the companies.

c) The Arrangement would allow a focused strategy in operations of the
"‘Demerger Undertaking alongwith. providing scope for indepehdeni
collaborations and éxpansioﬁ' without comrﬁitting the existing

organization in its entirety and creating enhanced value for operations.

d) The Resulting C_o;npany will have better financial and businless
prospects. The Scheme would be beneficial to and in the best iﬁterest of
the shareholders & creditors of the De_nierged Compfmy‘ and the

" Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in afly manner be prejudilcial
to the interesés of concerned 'sharelfmldersf ._credito;“s and general public

. atlarge.
PART.IV

DEMERGER OF PUNE UNIT OF THE DEMERéED COMPANY INTO

THE RESULTING COMPANY :
For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. Mg ALFA FLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.
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"S. Demerger and Transfer/Vesting of Demerged Undertaking of Demerged

Company into Resulting Company

. With effect from the Appointed Date and upon.the Scheme coming into effect

and 'pursuarllt to the provisions of the Act, subject to the provisions of this

S_cheme‘gnd receipt of relevant approvals:

§.l. The entire business of the Demerged Undenakiné shall without any

further act, deed,.instrument, matter or ﬂ{ing stand deinerged and vested’

in the Resulting éompa}iy .on a goi;lg concern basis at book .value (i.e.
values..as stated in the books of account of the De:merged Company -

immediately before the Appointed béte) pursuant to the pro;risi_ons of:

Sections 230-232 of the Act together with all estate, assets, debts,

outstanding; credits, liabilities, right:s. claims, titl:e, inte'rest‘ and

authorities including acc;retions and appurtenances soas to bec;)riie the

: properlt-y of the Resu_ltin'g Company free fror;l any encumbrance subject

to the clauses herein below.

. 6.2. Without prejudice to the generality of Clause above,’ it is expi'essly- .

provided that in respect of such of the assets . of -the Demerged
ﬂndenakhg, including cash ;1nd bank balances, as are mov.;able in
nature or are otherwise cap;blé ;:f transfer by physical delivery, by
paying over or by -endorsement and deliv;:ry, the same shall be.so
transferred by the Deme:rged Company to the'l?gs;:lling ComPany,lwith .
effect from the ‘Appointed Date, after the Scheme is sanctioned b} the
Hon'b.le NCLT without requiring any deed or instrument of r::oni;eyance
for the same and shall become the property of the Result_iﬁg Compzllny

in ursu%mi:e of the m\;isions of the Act as an il-ne ral part of the °
P P HETUBES T,
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business of the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed

Date.

All the licenses, essentiality certificates, permits, consents, qubtés,_

approvals, permissions, incentives, salf.',s tax deferrals, ]oans,' subsidies,
‘concessions, gmms; rights, claims, lea.t‘;es, refund of monies, tenancy
rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits
or privileges enjoyed by or conferred upon or held or a\;ailed by and all
rights -and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to the
Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking shall,
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-23'2 of the Act, 2013 and
Rutes qlade thereunder without any funher- act, instrument or deed, be
and stand transfé_rréd to and vested in and/or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in and be available to the Resulting Company
50 as to become as and from the Appointe‘d Date the licenses,
esse.ntiality certificates, permits, consents, quotas, approvals,
p_ennissions, ‘incentives, sales tax deferrals, lc;ans, subsidies,
concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, refund of monies, tenancy
rights, liberties, rehabilitation -schemes, special smtt;s and other benefits-
or privileges of the Resulting Cot;1pany and shall remain -vs;.lid,
effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the

extent perthissible under applicable law.

All assets, estate: rights. titles, interests, licenses and authorities

{including for the opératio_n of bank accounts) acquired b& or.per'mits.

'quotas, consents, approvals, permissions, incentives, sales tax deferrals,

loans or benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy i ts, liberties, rehabilitation schemes Wﬂ
y ghFor Alfa Autategh Private Ltg. Iﬂlﬂ.ﬁ .
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status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or

held or availed of by and/ or all rights and benefits that have acerued or
which may accrue to the Derﬁerged Company relating to the Demerged
Undertaking on or "after the Appointed Date and prior to the
* implementation of the Scheme in connection with or in relation to the

operation of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged

.-I;-l"-— — “-—-—"\—‘-\-.—-..-u.—-hﬂi‘ v,

Undertaking shall, upon 'the coming into effect of this Scheme,

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act, without any

i

further act, instrument or deeﬂ, be and stand transferred to and vested or
deemed to have been transferred to and vesfed in the Resulting

Company.

All moveable assets like motor vehicles of any nature whatsoever
.comprised in or relatable to the undertakings of the Demerged

Company shall vest in the Resulting Company and the approi)riate

government and registration autho‘ritie; shall muta;.e and register the
said vehicles in l:lle name of the Resulting Company as if the said assets
/ vehicles had originally been registered in the name of the Resulting
company and any fee pa};able for 'such vesting / .registering. shall be.

paid by the Resulting Company.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the

Appointed Date:

Ak .

a) All debts, liabilities, duties' and’ obligations of any kind, nature or
description, secured or unsecured, wh'e_ther provided ;‘or or not, whether
;]isclosed or undisclosed in the books of account of Demerged
Company as on the .Appointed Date and relating to the Demer-ged

Undertaking, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act,

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. MSALFA FIWM L'I'D.
Diractor . Diractor ‘



without any further act, mstrument or deed be and siu;ll- stand
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company, so as to become
_the debt, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting ‘Companyl.
Further, it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party
or other person who is a party to any-qontract or arrangement by virtiie
of which such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in
order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause. Notwithstanding
anything contained in this Scheme, if there are any common liabilities
.or loans raised and_wﬁere the funds have been used for all the units, the

same shall be allocated between the business units in terms of Section

2(19AA) of the Income-tax Aci, 1961.

'b) It is clarified that in so far as the assets of Demerged Undertaking of the
Demerged Compapy are cor.xcemed, the security or charge over 'such
assets or any part thereof, relafing to any loans, debentures - or
borrowings of the_Demerged Undertal_(ing of the Demerged.Co%npany -
shall, without any further act or 'deed continue to relate Fo such asslets‘ or
any part thereof after the sanctit)n-of the Scheme and shall not relate t6
or be available as security or charge in relation to any or aﬁy parf of the
assets.of the Reeulting Company, save to the extent warranted by the

terms of the existing security arrangements, if any.

c)‘ It is further cleziﬁed that, upon coming into effect of'the Scheme and in_
cases other than those referred to in Clause 6.5 (b) above, proportionate
part' of the general or multipurpoee borrowings and liabilities raised for
financing the wofleing'capital of the Demerged _Company shall, without -

any further act or deed, be and shall stand transferred to the Resuiting _

For Alfa Autqtech Private Ltd.gx PVT .

Companies in the same progﬁoktm which the value of the assets
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Company shall be transferred to the assets of the Resulting Company in ‘

transferred under this Scheme bears to the total value of the current

assets of the Demerged Company 1mmed1ately before the demerger of

the Demerged Undertaking, The‘ Charge on the assets of the Demerged

proportion to the assets transférred to the Resulting Company.

d).In case any of the liabilities and obligations pertaining to Demerged

Undertaking of the Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date
deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company. have been
discharged by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and

prior to the sanction of the'Sche'me, such discharge shall be deemed to

“have been for and on account of the Resulting Company.

All loans raised and used all debts, duties, undertakmgs, habllmes and

abhgatxons incurred or undertaken by the Demerged Company in

* relation to or in connection with the operation of the Demerged

Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the sanction of the

',Schéme shall also be deemed to have been raised, used, incurred or
undertaken for and on behalf of the Resulting Company and, to the
extent they are outstanding on the Date of sanction of the Scheme, .

shall, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, pursuant to the prdvisions

of Sections 230-232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument or

deed be and-stand transferred to- and vested in or be deemed to have
‘been transferred to and vested .in the Resulting Company and shall

become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities and obligations of the

Resulting Company whichl shall meet, dischargé and satisfy the same. -

For Alfa Autotech Prlvate Ltd MisALFA BES PVT.LTD,

m' f Director
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) Subject to the necessary consents being obtained in accordance with the
terms of this Scheme, the provisions of this Clause shall operate
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any deed or

~ writing or. the terms of sa.nctio;l or issue or any secu‘rity document, all
lof which instmments shall stand modified and/or superseded by the

foregoing provisions.

g) Even after the sanction of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall be
entitled to realise all money and complete and enforce all. pending
contracts and transactions in respect of the Demerged Undertaking in

the name of the Demerged Company and so far as may be necessary, -

h) The Demerged Company undertéke to carry on and shall be deemed to
carry on the business activities and stand possessed properties and

assets in and on account of interest for the Resulting Company.

i) If provisions of Ind_AS are applicable, then Resulting Comp;any may
make suijtable -adjustmeni;s to the accounting treatment & adjust the
effect there of in the manner determiined by the Board of Directors of

the Resulting Company,

.j) The Board of Resulting Company is authorized to accoun't_for any of
the balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit in
accordance with accounting principal generally accepted in. India,
including Indian Accounting Standards dnd AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Compz;.nies

rAccounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

6.5 With effect from the Appointed Date and until the sanction of the Scheme:

For Alfa Autu&c{iivate Ltd. WMHATJM,\T:L
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.carried on all business and activities relating to the Demerged Undenakiﬁg
‘. of the Demerg;:d Company fl:')l' and on behalf of the Resu.ltingl Company.

The Demerged Company shall carry on all such business and activities
' i-: v " releting to the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company with due
' _ care and diligence. The business shall be carried out by lhc'R%qlting

Company with prudence and in 2 manner as was being Ope'ra_ted by the

{ ! . . Demerged Company.
"

it» Any of the nghts powers, authorities, privileges related or pertaining to

the Demerged Undertaking exerclsed by the Demerged Company shall be

1t * C deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and-on . .

b _ behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent of the Resulting Company.

of this Scht;.me, all contracts including customer contracts; agreements,
deeds, boﬁds; " tenders, bid documcn{s, exp;-ession of interest,
memorandum of unders‘tanding, sche'mes, arrangements, and other
Cue e 0 instruments  including t':iose‘rel'ating to tena{lcies, lease, - licenses,

trademarks, patents, designs, copy-rights or other intellectual proiaerty

rights, other assurances privileges, powers, facilities of every ‘kind and -

description and of whatsoever nature ir{ relation to the Demerged

Undertakmg to whlch the Demerged Company is a pa.rty or the benefit of .

which the Demerged Company may be eligible, dnd wh'.ch are subsmtmg

r-._ ‘ or have_effect immediately before the sanction . of the Scheme shall -

centinue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may.

be, the Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually

‘ * For Alla Autotech Private LtduhALFAH.ENKM (R113

Director Diractor _
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i) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the p}ovisions ©

——— e e .

36



e e

as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulung Company had

bezn a party or beneficiary thereto gr there under. -

" iv)Pursuant to the demerger of Demerged Undertaking, in case for the

purpose of entering into any contract, tenders, bid documents, expression
of interest, men;orandum of upderstén&ing, agreements c;;r any other such
instr'uments, tl;e Resulting Company is required to demonstrate
experience, track recqrd and credentials of the I;emerged Undertaking,
then the experience, track record and crédentials gained by the Deme:l-ged
Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking in the past pri-or to
demerger would be considered to be equivalent as the experience, track

record and credentials of the Resulting Company.

v:The transfer of the said assets and liabilities of the Demerged Co}npapy to

+ the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking and the

continuance of all the contracts or legal proceedings by or against the
Resulliné Company shall not affect any contract or proceedings relating to

the said asscts or the liabilities already concluded by the Demerged

Company on or after the Appointed Date to the end and intent lhat the

‘Resulting Company accepts and adopts a]J acts, deeds and things done

cxecuted for and on behalf of the Dernenged Company as acLs deeds and

E things done, executed for end on behalf of the Resulting Company.

vi) Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and the fact that

the vesting of the Demerged Underiakjhg occurs by virtue of this Scheme

itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after coming into effect of,

-this Scheme, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions

and execute such déeds (including deeds of a;iherence)’ confirmation or

For Alfa Autotechﬁﬂvate Lig, ~ mmmwm 10,

Director. . Director
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other writings or tripartite arrangement with any péfty to any contract or

arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as

may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this

" Scheme or as are required to remove any difficulties and carry out'any'

_formalities or compliance for the implementation of this Scheme. The

Demerged Colﬂpany will, if necessary, also be a party to the above.

_vii) Wlth effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes, duties, cess payable by

f)emerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking and all or any
benefits / refunds/ cre_d‘itsf ‘claims relating thereto. under -Income Tax,
Excise (including MODVAT / CENVAT), Sales Tax (including deferment
of Sales Tax), MAT Credits, prepaid 'taxes i.e. TDS, self-assessﬁ:ent, tax,

tax losses (if available under law), advance tax payments; Value Added

Tax and Service Tax, Goods and Serve Tax (IGST, -CGST, SGST, _

UTGST) ete. shall be trel_ated as the liability or benéﬁf ! refund/ cm&iﬂ
claims, as the case may be, of the Resulting Con:ipany. The Resulting
Cémpany shall be entitled to file / revise its financial statements, tax
returns, TDS Certificates, TbS returns, Annual Return and other sté.tuto_ry

returns, if required, and shall have the right to claim benefit / refund

| credits and/ or s;et off all amounts paid by the Demerged Company m

relation to the Demerged Undertaking under the relevant income tax, sales
tax, GST, service tax or any other tax laws. The right to make such
revisions in the tax returns and to claim refunds / credits is expressly

reserved in favour of the Demerged Comﬁany and the Resulting Compz.my.

Without prejudice to generality of the aforesaid, any concessional /
sfatutory forms under the respective Central / State sales / work contract

tax / lease tax laws ysued / received by the Demerged Company in respect
or Alfa Autote&gjvate Ltd., MBALRA PVT.LTD.

M_//
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" of the Demerged Undertaking, for the period commencing fmm'Apbdinte'd T

Date shall be deemed to be issued received in the name of the Resulting
’ Company and benefit {.Jf such forms, shall be allowable to the Resulting
Cdmbany in the same manner and to the same extent as ‘would. have been
available in respect of the Demer-ged Undertaking in the name of the

Demerged Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

7. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all legal proceedings of whatever

rature by or against the Demerged Company relating to Demerged

Undertaking, if pending, on the sanction of the Scheme, shall not abate, be.
discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the vésﬁng
. cf the Demerged Undentaking of the Demerged Company in the Resulting

Company or of anything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be |

continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in
the same manner and to the same extent as it would‘ or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company,

if this Scheme had not been made.

. The Resulting Company shall take steps to have all legal pm:;eedings initiated

by or against the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company referred to
in Clause 7 above transfemad into its name and to have the same continued,

prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the

- exclusion of the Demerged Company. The Demerged Coﬁ'lpany too shail file

the requisite application, if so requested by the Resulting Company.

. Notwithstanding the above, in case the proceedings referred to in Clause 7

cannot be transferred for any reason, the Demerged CWW%

For Alfa Autotecmt\elitj/ r ! M~./
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undertaking) shall defend the same in accordance with the ad\?ic?e.of the
Resulting Company and at the cost of the Resulting Company, and the
‘Resulting Company shall reimburse, indemnify and hold hanmless the
Demerged, Company against all liabilities andlobligations incurred by the

Demerged Cornpanj! in respect thereof.

20.Transfer and vesting of the ‘assets, liabilities and obligations of the Dcmerged '
Underteking as per this Scheme and continuances of the proceedings by or
against the Resulting Company shall not in any manner affect any transaction
or proceedings alrcady c;:mpleted by the Demerged Company (in respect of
the Demecrged Undértaking) on or before the Appoiritcd Date up to the date of
sanction of the Scheme and the Resulting Company accepts all such acts,
deeds and things done and exe;:ule;l by and/or on ‘be.half of the Den:nerged
Company as acts, deeds and things done and executed by and on behalf of the

" Resulting Company.

F1.The Resulting Coi'npany unconditionally and irrevocably agrees and
undertakes to pay, discharge.and satisfy 2all the liabilities and obligations of
the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking with effect

- from the Appointed Date, in order to give effect to the foregoing provisions..

12.Upon the Scheme becoming effective and, on the Demerger, transfer and
vesting of the Der.nerged Undertaking into the ReSI;Iting Company, the °
exi:s;ing charges, if an);, on the assets of the Demerged‘Undenaking shall
continue in’ favor of the I?ankers and financial ihstitution_s, if any, as.m.ay be

’ modified, readjusted, apportioned and re-allocated by them between the .

] Demerﬁed Company and the l-lt.zsulti-ng Company. The Demel"ged Company

shall provide all assistance in getting the char&gs“ﬁf the Demerged

For Alfa AutotechyPrivate Ltd. %
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-Undertakmg vacated. The bankers / financial institutions shall havs a charge

only on the assets of the respective Undertaking financed by them and release
the charge, if any, on the assets of the Undertaking not financed by them.

Provided further that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the szcurity for

_a{ny loan, deposit or facility created or available to the Demerged Compariy
_ which ‘shall vest in the Resulting Company by virtue of Demerger and the

Resulting Companies shall not be obliged to create any further or additional -

security therefore after Demerger has become effective or otherwise.

13.8ince, each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, r2missions,

special reservations, inlcent_lives,- concessions and other autho;-izations in
respect of the Demerged Undertaking in the ngme of the Demérgéd Company
shall stand tﬁ_msferfed by the order of the Hon'ble NCLT o the Resulting
Compa.ﬁy. The Resulting Company shall file the reievant intimati?,:ls, for the
recor‘d of the statutory authorities who shall take them on record; pursuant to

the vesting orders of the sanctioning authorities.

- 14.8ave and except as expressly provided in this Scheme, nothing contained in

15.

this Scheme for demerger of Demerged undertaking of the Demerged

Company into the Resulting' Company shall affect the rcst_of' the assets,

liabilities and business of the Demerged Comj)any (Retained Undertaking) -

which shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the

Demerged Company.

PART V
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT & OTHER RELATED MATTERS'

. For Alfa Autotech w Ltd. mmnm‘um
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Upon the Schemc commg into eﬂ"ect and pursuant to the provisions of the Act and

receipt of relevant approvals:

*15.FIn the beoks of Demerged Company, the book values of thc assets and the
’llablhtles of the Demerged Undermkmg of the Demerged Company being
transferred to the Resulting Company shall be reduced in the books of the
Demerged Company and correspc:ndmgly, the balance of retained earnings
in the books-of i)emerged Company shall.be reduced.

15.2Upon the Scheme being effective, the .inter-company balances, if any,
. &ppearing in the books of acsounts of the Demerged Clomp.ar-.y pertaining to
_tl;e Pune “Jnit and the Result'ng Company shall stand canceiled.

’

- ‘15.3'I'n-lhe books of the Resuliing Company, upen coming into effect of this.

Scheme, the l?.esultipg' Company shall give effect to the following-

accounting treatment:

i) The Resulting Company shall, i-eco_rd the assets and liabilities in books
of accounts of Demerged Undertakiﬁg vested in it pursuant to this
- Scheme; at the r:e'spective book values thersof as appearing in the books

of the Demterged Company.

. i1) Upon the Scheme being effective, the inter-company balances, if any,
’ appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company

pertaining to the Pune Unit, shall stand c_a.ncelled..

iii)The difference bétween-the valuc of assets and liabilities of the

. business as taken over by the Resulting Co-rnp.any of the Demerged-

Company and the value of investments in Demerged Company, to the

For Alfa Autotec Prlvate Ltd WMHEKWV
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too “extent cancelled by the Resulting Company, shall be transferred to
P
i:; Y. .. " . i Capital Reserve and would be presented separately from the . other
‘ R o capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.
1:. S L 1541In case of any differences in accﬁunting po!lig:y between the Demerged
gj . Company and the Resulting Company, the impact of such differences shall
F f ., . . '
X o bs quantified and adjusted with the reserves of Resulting Company to ensure
‘I . .
.?‘ | S that the true financial statements of the Resulting Company are on the basis_
. ) . ) : . :
sy - 7 of consistent accounting policy in accordance with the Indian Accounting
‘ + "« . . Standards as prescribed under the applicable provisions of the Act and
' A ) 4+ . applicable generally acceptgd.accounti;ng .prinéiples.
“_l. DI 1
K * 155 The financial information in the financial statements of Resulting Company
. ': o »' .~ in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination
. »+ " 'had occurred from the beginning of the i)receding period in the financial
’ ;E o statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.
1 Giy _ : '_
P " 15 6Inter-company balances in any form between the demerged undertaking of
" » ot the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, if any, shall stand
1 ¥ ! ' !
.E & I o cancelled, |
) ‘ \ 1
. J b 157The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company will comply with.all
r 'j! - . . other recliuiremer_lts, in respect of disclosure. and presentation, in accordance
X "i: . _with the Indian Accounting Standards as prescribed under the appticable
r i : " - . provisions of the Act and applicable generally accepted accounting
S G . . :
DR - principles.
R
Ba PART-VI
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cHARE CAPI'I”AL, CONSIDERATION AND ALTERATION OF

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION -

'+ 16. PAID-UP CAPITAL

a} Upon the scheme fi nally coming mto effect and in con51derauon of lhe. '
transfer of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Cornpany to the
Resulting Company in terms of the scheme. The Resultmg Company
without any further application or deed issue-and allot 58 (Fifty Eight)

fully paid up equity share, face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each

-ﬁ*—- PR

of the Resulting Company for every 1000 (One Thousand) fully paid-up

ecuity shares of -Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each held’ by the

" em— ————

.shareholders of Demerged Company, to the members of Demerged .
BN . Company whose name a;gpear_in the register of members as on
oarticular date, alr'egay.dgcideﬁ, by the board of directors of Resulting
Company for reckoning of said list as pelr the Valuation Report provided

by Mr. Gaurav Jain, R‘egislcre'd Valuer.

In the following ratio: 5.8 Shares of Resulli.n-g, Company to every 100

Skare of Demerged Company.

b) Any fraction of share so arising out of aforesaid share exchange :ratio

+ ———— Sy o s

shall be rounded off to nearest whole number.

é) Tke shares issued t;y the Resulting Company to the shareholders of
. ) : Demerged Company in pursuance of this scheme shall lie parri- passu in
' L " all respect to the’ existing shares of the Demerged Company be it in

i, terms of voting rights or dividend 61: otherwise.

. S For Alfa Aumtwvate Lt Mis ALFA FLEXITUBES VT, LD,

Director Disector
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d) The members of Resu!ung Company’ on approval of scheme shall be
deemed to have been given there approval w's 62 (1) (c) of Compames
Act, 2013 dnd as other applicable provisions, if any, pertaining to
preferential allotment of fresh equity shares to the memll;;'rs g;f
Demerged Conipany in pursuance of this scheme and more 'panicuiarlx

“in the Ii‘ght of aforementioned Parza 16(a).

v7. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

a) Upon the scheme being effective, and prior to issuance of Securities under
- clause 16, above, the authorized capital of Resulting Company shall stand

suitably increased and’ existing cai:ital clause contained in the Meniorandum

" of Association of said Company shall, upbn, coming into effect of this |,

scheme, be suitably altered and substituted pursuant to Section 13 and Section
-+ 61 of Companies Act, 2013 and Section 230-232 of The Act and other

epplicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013,

b) It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company to
the scheme, shall be deemed to be their Consent/Approval also to the

alteration of Memorandum and-ArticIes of Assaciation of resulting Company

as required under Section 13, 14, 6] & 64 and other applicable provtsmns of

Compames Act 2013 and as apphcable Act

S, UPON THIS SCHEME BECOMING FINALLY EFFECTIVE

::} The Cross holding of shares between the Demerged and the Resulting '

Company on the record daIe, if any, shall stand cancelled Approval of this
scheme by.the shareholders and!or creditors of the Demerged and Rcsulling

Companies as the case may be; and consequenl sancuomrmf the samfmy the

For Alfa Autotech Pth\ftliud
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Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under S&tioﬂ 230 to 232 of

Companies Act, 2013, shall be sufficient compliance of Sections 66 of
"~ Companies Act, 2013 other applicable provisions, if any, relating to reduction :
. o =,

of share capital on cancellation of cross holding.

b} Tha.t main objects present in thel'Me.morandum of Association of ﬁemefged
Compan& pertaining to de'merged_ undcrtal;ing shall assimilate into the main
_c)l?ject of respective Resulting Company and shall be deemed to be pé& o _
thereof, without passing ‘any further resolution or- convenir-lg_a_ny fﬁr‘ther o

’ méf;tiﬂg of shareholders etc.- in this rég_ard. Approval of this scheme by the -
sha;‘ehold;‘.rs and/or creditors of the Demerged and Resulting Corhpaiﬁe's as
the case may be, and consequent sanctioning of the same by the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal under Section 230 fo 232 of Companies Act,

2013, shalt be sufficient combliance of Section 13 of Companies Act, 2013 &

Rule 29 of Compémies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014.

€) - That the Resulting Company shall increase / modify its authorized capital for

" implementing the terms of scheme; to the extent necessary and shall alter the

Qirector

capital clause of its Memorandum of Articles in said respect, wherever

N

necessary, without any further approval of shareholders / members.

PART-VII

EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, CREDITORS AND OTHER

Diraclor

PVT.LTD,
U,

7|

STAKEHOLDERS

19. The effect the Scheme on the Key 'Managerial Personnel, Dii-ectors,
Promoters, Non-promoter members, Creditors and the Employee of the

| f%mn%t :
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Demerged Company and the Resulting Company upon coming into effect is

'mentioned as under:

R ﬁ) The éxisting Directors including Key "Managerial Personnel ("the
KMPs") of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall have
no effect date of implemehtation of'the Scheme.

b) The Directors and KMP of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company do not have any interest, whether, material or immaterial,
financial or non-financial or otherwise, in the proposed Scheme except,
to the extent of their remuneration due, if any, till the Scheme coming

into effect, in their professional capacity.

. ¢) The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as on the date do
not have any Depositors, Debenture holders, Deposit trustee and -

Debenture trustee.

PART-VII |

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

20. - CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS.

‘a. Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, ibonds,
agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature, to which the
Demerged Company is a ﬁarty, in respect of Demerged Undertaking,
subsisting or having effect immediately befofe or after the Effective date,

" shall remain in full force and eft:ect against or in favor of the Resulting
Company and may be enforced as fully and efféctually, as if instead of the

Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party thereto.
For Alfa Autotech ﬁrivate Ltd. MisALFA BVI.UD.

e A

Director - Director
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b. The Transfer of the said assets and liabilities of Demerged Unde?tszfn"g to
the Resulting Company and the continuance of all the contracts or legal
proceedings by or against the Resulting Company shall not affect any
contract or proceedings relating to the said assets or the liabilities aiready
concluded by the Demerged Company on or after. the Appointed Date.

¢. The Resulting Company may, at any time after coming into effect of this
Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any
law or otherwise, to execute deeds of confirmation in favor of the secured
creditors of the Demerged Undertaking or in favor of any other party to any
contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company has been a party
in respect of Demerged Undertaking or any writings as may be necessary to
be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The
Resultmg Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme be deemed to
be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged ‘
Company and, to implement and carry out all such formalities or

~ compliance referred to above on the pa.rtfbehalf of the Demerged Comipany

to be carried out or performed.

d. Any inter se contracts between the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking shall stand adjusted and vest
in the Resulting Company upon the sanction of the Scheme ‘and upon the
Scheme becoming effective. ’[‘ransactlop(s), if any, pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking, between the Demerged and Resulting Companies after the
appointed date and until the effective date will be squared off in the books

of accounts of the Resulting Company upon the Scheme bécoming effective. -

21. OPERATIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme,lt‘hough operative from the Appointed Date, shall be effective
from the last of the dates on which certified copies of the National Company
 Law Tribunal order under Sections 230-232 of the Act are filed in the office(s)

of the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.

22 SURVIVAL OF DEMERGED COMPANY PVT, LTD
For Alfa Autofecl Private Ctd.
M/ Dim:tur .

Director
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On this Scheme, Becoming effective as provided in above, the Déniefged

Company shall survive with Bhadurgarh Units Business Undertaking,

23. EMPLOYEES OF DEMERGED COMPANY

a. All tae employees of the Demerged Undertaking in service on the date
_ ixﬁmediately preceding the date on which the Scheme finally takes effect,
i.e., the Effective Date, shall become the employees of the Resulting
(Z:c.)mpany on such date without any break or interruption in service-and upon
terms and conditions not less favorable than those subsisting. in the

concerned Demerged Company on the said date.

b. Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, Superanriuation Fund and any other special
fund or trusts created or existing for the benefit of the employees of the
Demerged Undertakmg, if any, upon the Scheme becoming finally effectwe,
the Resulting Company, shall stand substituted for the Demerged Company,
for all purposes and intents, whatsoever, relating to the administration or
operation of such schemes or funds or in relation to the obligatiOn to make
contributions to the said funds in accordance with the provisions of such .
funds. It is the intent that all the rights, duties, powers and ‘obligatidns of the

* Demerged Company, with respect to Demerged Undertaking, in relation to
such funds, shall become those of the Resulting Company' It is clarified
that the services of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking will be
treated as having been continued for the purpose of the aforesaid funds or

pI'OVlE-IOHS.

24. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY DEMERGED AND RESULTING

COMPANIES.

.

2} From tae Appointment date until the effective date, the Demerged Company:

i." -Shall stand possessed of all assets and properties in trust of Resulting
Corapany. o ' ’

"l Shall- be -deemed to have been camied on activities of demerged

" Undertaking for and on behalf of Resulting Comﬁ-':A An mﬁr{lﬁ or

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. 4}4/

Birector Director .

r
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profit accruing to the Demerged company and ali cost, chérgeg"zm-d

expenses or loss arising or incurring by the Demerged company, in

respect of Demerged Undertaking, on and from the Appointed date, shall -

for all the purposes and intents, be treated as the income, profits, cost,
charées and expenses or loss as the case may be, of the Resulting

Cormpany.

Notwithstanding anything contained in forgoing clause, the Resulting
Company and the Demerged Company shall be free to conduct their
.respective businesses and to take all steps in this regard which may
include but shall nowhere be limited to raising of.funds thrq;;u gh fresh debt
and/ or equity during the pendency of demcréef proceedings.

APPLICATION TO TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company and the Rcsu_.llting Company hercto shall, make joint

applications under Sections 230-232 of the said Act to the Hon’ble National

Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench for sanctioning this Scheme of

partial demerger of Pune Unit of AFPL into AAPL and retention of

* Bhadurgarh Units undertaking by said company and other connected matters.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME:

" This Scheme is and shall bé conditional upon and subject to:

.a. The requisite consent, approval/permission of the Hon’ble Tribunal,

Central Government or any other statutory or regulatory authority,

which by law may be necessary for the implementatibn of this Scheme;

b. The certified copies of the orders of the Tribunal under Sections 230-
232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme are filed with the Registrar of
Companies, Delhi and Haryana within prescribed time; and

¢. .Compliance with such other conditions as may be imposed by the

Hon’ble Tribunal.

For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. Wis ALFA MLUR

l‘

Diréctor Director
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27.

28,

. 29,

30.

PAYMENT OF STAMPDUTY 2

If-any Stamp Duty arises in future in respect to the Demerged Undertakjng of

Demerged Company, then the said stamp duty would be paid by the Resulting

Company.

MODIFICATIONS:

The Scheme is subject to such modifications as the Hon'ble Tribunal, may

impoase, and/or the Directors of the Companies concerned may affect or assent

to, on behalf of all concerned and the Directors of each Company may do
suchother acts, deeds.and -things as may be necessary for carrying this

Scheme into effect. The Resulting Company and the Demerged Company by

- their respective Board of Directors shall be authorized to take all such steps as
may be 'necessai')}, desirable or. proper to resolve any doubits, difficulties or

: questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of any other authorities

or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by v:rtue of the Scheme and

/ ar any rnatter concemed or connected therew1th

This Scheme shall not in any manner affect the right of any of the creditors of

the Demerged Company, who shall continue to enjoy all such rights against

ths Resulting Company, as they had against the Demerged Company w1th

regard to Demerged Undertakmg

This Scheme shall become operative as soon as the certified copy of the order

" of the Hon'ble Tribunal confirming this Scheme is filed with the Registrar of

Companies Delhi and Haryana. Upon coming into éffect of the Scheme, all .

permissions, licenses, approvals, incentives, remissions, tax-incentives,

censents, sanctions, and other aﬁmorizations, pertaining to the activities of the

For Alfa-Autotech &rjté Ltd. maufmmwmlm/ 1
' Director Diractor . -
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Demerged Und:rtakmg, to which the Demerged!Demerged Com;:a.n%
“entitled to shall stand vested and permitted or continued by ‘the order of
sanction_ of the Tribunal in the Resulting Company without payment of any
customs duty or any other si'r;'lilar duty. Therefore both the Co;np'anies shall

be fiee to file the Scheme, for the record of the statutory authorities who shall

tqke it on file, pursuant to the sanction’ orders of the High Court. The .

" . Resulting Company is authorized to take all such steps on behalf of the

Demerged Undertaking of* Demerged Companyas may be necessary to gwe'

effect to the provisions contained above.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

Tte Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

: a) Approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority in number a.mli \;alue of
the shareholder and/ or cr'gditor; (both set;t_zreq and /or unsecured), if any,
either by way of a meeting or by no objection certificate/ letter of consent
from the éhareholder§ and/ or creditors of the Transferor Compznies No. 1

to 12 and the Transferce Company as per the provisions of the Act; and

b) Approvél of the Scheme by the Hon'ble Tribunal under Sections 230 t6
. 232 of the Act

.. It is further provided that in a case if the Board of Directors of any of the
Combanies as being part of the Sclherne,‘ at any stage prior to the Sche-me
coming into effect, decide not to pror;eed further with the Scheme and 1
withdraw the consent of the resp-eclive c;:mpany to the Scheme, m suciz case,
the Scheme in its entirety shall not be proceedcd wuh by any party and thls

Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect.

M3 ALFA FLEXITUBES PV, LTD: i

: EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS: W
7 ‘ For Alfa Autotech Private Ltd. ' ’

L




a) In the event any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme not
being obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, the Scheme cannot

be implemented, the Board of Directors of the Resulting/Resulting Company

consider appropriate to-give eﬁ'e_ci, as far as possible, to this Scheme and
fﬁiling such mutual agr;ement, or in case the Scheme is not sanc;tioned by the
Tribunal, the Scheme shall become null and void and each party shall bear
and pay their respective c;osts, charges and expenses in coﬁnectioﬁ with the

Scheme.

b). Further, in the case of non-receipt of approvals to the Scheme, no rights and

< liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be mcurred inter-se by the Demerged :

Company or the Resultmg Company or their shareholders or creditors or

employees or any other person

’

¢) Further that, in the case of non-receipt of approvals, both the
emerged/Demerged as well as Resulting/Resuiting Company shall resume to
their original position as if no scheme/arrangement was ever made in between

the said Companies.

——

L.

34, TAX CREDITS:

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly‘permitted'

1o file/revise their Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service
Tax (IGST, CGST, SGST, UTGST), Excise and other statutory returns,
.consequent to the scheme  becoming effective, notwithstanding that the period

for ﬁlmg /revising such returns may have lapsed.

Darector

and the Demerged Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they

ForAlfa Autotec Prwate Ltd. m‘ﬁ’\
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Thke Demerged Company and the Resultmg Company are expressly permitted '
to amend TDS/TCS or other statutory certificates and shall have the right to
claim refunds, advance tax credits, set offs, adjustments etc., relating to their
rgspeclive incomesftrinsactibns from the Appoinfed Date. It is sPeoiﬁcaIly
declared that the taxes / dﬁties paid by the Demerged Compan)lr, with regard
to' Demerged Undertaking, relating to the period on or after the Appomted
Date whether by way of deductlon at source or advance, pertarmng to the
activities of the Demerged Company, shall be deemed to be the taxes/duties
paid by the Resulting Company- and the said Resulting Company shall be
entitled to claim credit for such taxos deduoted/paid against its tax/duty
liabilities notwithstanding that the certificates/challans or other documents for
pa);ment of such taxes/duties are in the name of the Demerged Company. It is
declared that all the tax losses pertaining to the activities of the Demerged
Undertaking in Demerged Company, upto the Aploointed Date will be
transferred to the Resulting Company. Further any ta:r, duty paymonts not
d-rectly re!atable to the_Démerged ﬁndertaking sholl be apportioned between
the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company on the appropriate basis
as the'Board of the Demergod Company and the Resulting Company mutually

in their dlscretlon deem fit and proper

- MISCELLANEOUS

a) All costs, charges and expenses of the Demerged Company and of the
Resulting Company reSpectivoly, in relation to or in ‘connection with
negotiationo leading up to trlis Schcloe and carrying.out and completing the
toms and provisions of this Scheme and activities inciderital to the

For Alfa Autotech &r\lite Ltd, ﬂﬂmmﬁ/ i

Director Diractor
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~ completion of demerger in pursuance of this Scheme, shall be borne and paid

by the Resulting Company.

b) That either of both the Companies, acting through its Boards of Directors,
shall be at liberty to withdraw from this Scheme of Demerger in case any

condition alteration imposed by any authority/person is unacceptable to them.

- c) Schedule of Assets and Llabllltles of the Demerged Company forms part of

. the present Scheme and has been annexed as “Schedule l” and

“Schedule 2” to the present Scheme.

For Alfa Autotech Prjvate Ltd,

Dimtor _
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GAURAV JAIN .

IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

! Bated: June 24,2024
To :
The Board of Directors '
Alfa Flexitubes Privat: Linited
M-439, lst Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, ;
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087 i

The Board of Directors :
Alfa Aulotech Private Limited [
M-439, Ist Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, '
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087 i

Pu_pysé of Valuaution
* Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed demerger of “Punc Unil” of Alfa
Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged Undertaking”) into Allz Autoteeh Private Limited (Resuluog
Company)

Relevant Eegislitions:
» Section 230 and Section 232 of Companies Act, 2013

We tefor to the engagement letter dated June 10, 2024 wherein Alfa Flexiwbes Private Limited { “The
Comipany™) has requesied Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer (hercinafler referred as “Value™) (o reconmend
Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed demerger of “Punc Unit” of Alla Flexitubes Private Limiied
("Demerged Undertaking”) into Alfa Autotech Private Limited (Resulting Company) in terms of provisions of
the Companics Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder. We hereby enclase our repor on ety shore
valuation, which was cempleted in accordance with the parameters helow.

Eethod of Valtuation Asset Approach
Datc of Valuation March 31, 2024

‘s

The valuation is prepared in compliance with ICAL Valuatien Standards, The solc purposc of this report is fo
assist the company to determine the price of equily shares in terms of provisions of the Companics Avt. 2013
read with rules made thereunder

As per your request, rather than preparing a self- contained compreliensive report, we have provided a restricted
appraisal report which is advisory in uature and intented to be used for offering subject business for the purpese
referred above. Please vefer to the statement of limiting conditions contained in the report. For the purposes o
business appraisal, fair market value is defined es the expected price at which the subject business would
change hands between a willing buyer and a willing seller, neither being under a compulsion to conclude the
lransaction anct both having full knowledge of all the refevant facts. We have appraised @ controlling ownership
interest in the assets of the subject business. ‘The appraisal was performed under U pramise of vilue i
continued use as a gotng concern business cuterprise.

{fage 1

Cffice: 1511-1512, R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi - 110034 (India)
Tel: +81-11-9881111234, 01145098234 » Email : cagrvjain@gmail.com
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GAU RAV JAIN ) |

IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

We have no obligation to update this report or our conclusion of value for information that comes to our
attention aller the date of this, report. We have: '1pprfusad lhe subject business in aceordance with the
Intzrnational Valuation Standards,

Please fecl free to contactl us in case you require any additional information or clarifications.

Yaurs’s faithfully,

Su,m ities :uud l?ul.mcml Assels
Rean No: - IBBI/RVAG/2021/13914
UBIN: - 24642348 bRAVMAS (38

Vawe 2

Office: 1511-1512, R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi- 110034 {(india)
Tel.: +31-11-9891111234, 011-45098234 « Email : cagrvjain@gmail.com
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GAURAYV JAIN

IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA}
Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914
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6. Disclosure of valuer interest/conflict, if any;

7 Date of appointiment, valuation date and date of report;

8 Basis/ bases of value used;

9 Valuistion Standards;

10.  Valvation Methodology, Approach and Procedures adapted n carrying out the vuluation;

11. Equity Valuation of the company;

12, Major factors that influenced the valuation;
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GAURAV JAIN

IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)

Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

VALUATION ANALYSIS ’

. . ;
In the following pamgraphs, we have summarized our Valuation Anzlysis (the "Analysis™) of the busitess of the
Company as informed by the Management and detailed hergin, together with the description [ ol the
mzthodologies used and limitations on our scope of work as mentioned in hercin below in this report.

1.

"
-

Context and Purpose

Based on discussion with the Management, we understand that there is a demerger of one unit «f Alfa
Flexitubes Private Limited, wherein Pune Unit of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited would be de nerged
and shall be transferred to Alfa Autotech Private Limited. The remaining two uaits located in Bhadh.sgarh
district of the Company shall be retained by Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited. f

Conditions and major Assnmplions

Conditions

I
‘e historical financial information about the company presented in this report is included solely [or the
purpose to arrive at value conclusion presented in this report, and it should not be used by anene 10
obtain credit or for any other unintended purpose. Because of the limited purpose as wentionet  n the
report, it may be incomplete and may contain departures from generatly accepted aceounting principles
prevailing in the country. We have not audited, reviewed, or compiled the Financial Statemams and
express no assurance on them. The financial information abou: the compuny presented in (his FCport
includes normalization adjustments inade solely for the purpose 10 arrive at value conclusions presented
in this report.

Normalization adjusuments as reported are hypothetical in nature and arc not intended to present restated
historical financiul resulls or forecasts of the future. '

This report is unly to be used in its entirety, and for the purpose stated in the reprl. N third
parties,other thean the Company’s current and potential sharcholders and statutory autlioritics, s would
rely on the information or data contained in this report without the advice of their tawyer, attomey or
accountant. )

We acknowledge that we have no present or contemplated financial interest in the Comprany. Our fees
for this valuation are based upon our normal billing rutes, and not contingent upon the results or the
value of the business or in any other ranner. We have no responsibility to modify this report for evems
and circumstances occurring subsequent to the date of this report.

We have, however, used conceptually sound and genernlly aceepied incthods, princivles and pro‘r. cdures
of valuation in determining the value estimate included in this raport. The valuation analyst, by veason
of perfonning this valuation and preparing this report, is not to be required to give expert testime Iy nor
to be in attendance in court or at any government hearing with reference to the matters cortained hercin,
unless prior arrangements have been made with the analyst regarding such additional engagement
{

1
Page 4
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GAURAV JAIN

IBBI REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)
Regr: No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

Assnmpiions

The opinion of value given in this report is based on information provided in part by the manegement
ol the Company and other sources as listed in the report. This information is assimed 10 be secupate
and complete.

We have relied upon the representations contained in the public and other documnents in our POSSESSion
concemning the value and yseful condition of all investments in securilies or partacrship interests, and
any other assets or liabilitics excepl as specitically stated to the contrary in this report.

We have not attempted to confirm whether or not all assets of the business are free and clear of

liens and encumbrances, or that the owner has good title to all the asscls.

We have also assumed that the busincss will be operated prudently and thut there are 1o nfireseen
adverse changes in the economic conditions affecting the business, the warket, or the industry, This
report presumes that the management of the Company will maintain the charncter and integrity of 1he
Company through any salc, reorganizution or reduction of any owner's/munager's participition in the
existing activities of the Company.

We have been informed by management that there are no environmental or toxic contamination
prablems, any significant lawsuits, or any other undisclosed contingent liabilitics which may potentially
alfect the business, except as may be disclosed elsewhere in this report. We have assumed (hat no
cosls or expenses will be incurred in connection with such liabilities, except as exphicitly staled in (his
report, : '

Background of the company and Industry

Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited is a duly incorporated Private Limited Conpany on 31st January. 1996
under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U65993DL 19961 TCO75886, and ils registered office addresy is
situated at M-439, Ist Floor, Gury Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi, 110087,

Alfa Autotech Private Limited is a duly incorporated as Private Limited Company o1 30th Janwary. 2008
under Companies Act, 1956 having CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317, and its registered office adilress is
situated at M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delbi. 110087,

Page 5
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GAURAV JAIN

IBBi REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)

Regn No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

Shareholding Details of the Alfa Flexitube Private Linzitd as on March 31,2024 are ag

follows
Nawe of Sharcholders No. of Shares
| Mr. R K Sardana 7,70,270
Mrs.Indra Sardana 4,15,242
Mr.Saurabh Tandon B 11,76,079
Mrs. ooja Sardana 5,22,341
Mrs. Priya Aliuja 522,341
Others 76,000
Tutal 34,82,273

Sharcholding Details of the Alfa Autotech Private Limited as on March 31, 2024 are as

follows
Name of Shareholders | No. of Shares
Mr. R.K.Sardana 1 60,000
Mr.Saurabh Tandon 28,500
Others 1,500
Total 90,000

4. Purpose of valuation and appointing authority:

Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio for the propesed demerger of “Pune Unit™ of Alfa
Flexitubes Private Limited (“Demerged Undzrtakin

Company)

5. Idenlity of the valuer and anv other experts involved in the vitluation:

g”) into Alfa Autotech Private Limited (Resuliimy

RY Gaurav Juin

Name of (he Valuer
1BBI Registration Number

I1BBI/RY/06/2021/13914

7.  Uisclosere of valuer interest/conflic(. if any:

il

Page
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IB3I REGISTERED VALUER (SFA)
Regr No. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

$  Date of appointment, valuation date and date of repurl

Date of Appoinzment June 10,2024
“Valuation Date ~ | March 31, 2024 B
Date of Report June 24, 2024

9. Basisy bases of value used

Bases of value (sometimes called stardards of value) are statements of the fundamental medsuremenl
assumptions of a valuation. They deseribe the fundaniental assumptions on which (e reparted vahaes
will be based (¢.g., the nature of the hypothetical transaction, the refatiomzhip and molivation 4,
farties, the exteat to which the assel is 2xposed 1o the markel. ana the wnil of accoont for (i
valoaton). It is eritical for any valuation to be performed using the basis (o bases) of vatue il iy
appropriate to the terms and purpose of the valuation assignment, us a basis of valye may mlirence
or dictale a valuer's selection ol methads. inputs and assumptions. and the ullimate opittion ol valu,
We have used “"Fair Value”, as basis of Valuation,

Fair Value is defined as the price that would be reccived to sell an asee! or paid e nsder @
Habilivy in an orderly transaction between markel pasticipants at the measurenient e,

16, Valuation Standards

The Report has been prepared in comp.iance with the TCAI Valuation Standards and pricing

guidelines staied 2hercin,

1t NValwation Methodology, Approach and Procedures adonted-in cureving oul the valuation,

The standard of value used in the Aualysis is "Fair Value", which s often defined as the P in
terms of cash or equivalént, that a buyer zould reasonably be eapected w pay. and a seller conkd
reasonably be expected 1o accepl. if the business woere exposed for sale oo the open markat “or 4
reasanable perioc of time, with both buyer and seller being in possession of the pertineni (et ainl
neithes being under any compulsion 5 act,

Yaluation of a basiness is vot an exeel scence and ultimately depends upon whal 11 is woh 1o o
serious investor ar buyer whe may be prepared 1o pay sabstantial goodwill. This exercive iyobe
carricd oul using various methodologics, ths relative emphasis of cach ofien varying witl:

*  Whether the entity is listed on a stock exchange;

» industry to wltich the Conpany belongs;

*  pasttrack record of the business ard the ease with which the groath vate in cash (lows
to perpeluity can be estimated;

» Extent to which industry and comparable company information are available.

( A\ Fingrezal Anants)

\{A%’
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12.

13,

The results of this exercise could vary significantly depending upon the basis used, the specibic
circumstances and professional judgment of the valuer. In respect of going concerns, certain valustion
techniques have cvolved over time and are commonly in vogue. These can be brondly categorized ns
follows:

i Cost Approach/ Net Asset Volue
ii. Market Approach
. Income Approach

Asset approach =Net Asset Value Mcethod (NAY)

The value arrived at under this approach is based on the latest availuble audited/ unaudited/ provisional
financial statements of the business and may be defined as the Sharcholder’s Funds or Net Assets owned by
the business.

Under this method, the net assets as per the financial statements are adjusted for market vatue of surplus/
non-operating assets, potential and contingent liabilitics, if any. Net Book value represents equity value
which is after reducing nll external liabilities and preference sharcholders claim. if any, from the nggregate
value of all assets, as valued and stated in the balance sheet

The Book Value is generully used as the minimum break-up value for the transaction uf intra-group
companics since this methodology ignores the future retumn the assets can produce and is calculated using
historical accounting data reflect how much the business is worth to someone who may buy i as a poing
concem. This valuation approach is also used in case where the assots base dominates earnings capabilitics
or if it is investment holding company and significant value is derived from its investvent hohlings.

‘The Book Value (“"BV™) Method under the Cost Approach considers the Assets and Liabilitivs. including
intangible Assets. Thie Book Value, alter reducing the dues to the Preference Shareholders. it any, represent
the equity value of a company.

In present case, the book value method serves as a foundational tosl in the context of mergers, offering o
conservative and transparent approach to valuing companies. By relying on verifiable scheme of demerger

pravided by the imanogement of the company, the book value method remains a relinble method for

valuation of merging companies, facilitating comparative onalysis and compliunce with regulatory
standards. The valuation gnalysis has been conducted in accordance with metlod prescribed above. Detail
of Caleulation is attached herewith as Annexure -A

Equity Valuation of the company

The cquity valuation analysis for the company has been conducted in accordance with method
prescribed above. Detail of Calculation is attuched herewith as Aunexure —A.

Major factors that influenced the valuntign:

Not Identified.

Powue 8

Office: 1511-1512, R.G. Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Dethi - 110034 {India)
Tel.: +91-11-9891111234, 011-45098234 « Email ; cagrvjain@gmail.com

63


cagrvjaindgmail.com

GAURAV JAIN

IBE{ RZGISTERED VALUER (SFA)
Regr Ne. IBBI/RV/06/2021/13914

14.

Sources of Information

The Analysis is based on a2 review of the business plan of the Company provided by the

Munagement and information relating to the industry scctor in whiclh company is operating as

avitilable in the public domain, Specifically, the sources of information iuclude:

»  Unaudited Provisional Financial Statement for the period from April 01, 2023 to March
31, 2024 for Alfa Flexitube Private Limited & Alfa Autotech Private Limited

» Unil-wise Financial statements of Alfs Flexitube Private Limited

s Details of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association;

» Draftt Scheme of Arrangement

» Managemenl Representation Letter.

s Discussions with the Management;

¢ In addition to the above, we have also obtained such other information and explasstions
which were considered relevant for the purpose of the Analysis.

Caveats, limitations and disclaimers

Provision of valuation recommendations and considerations of the issues described hzrein
are areas of our regular corporate advisory practice. The services do not reprasen
accounting, assurance, firancial due diligence review, consulting, transfer pricing or
dowestic/international tax-related services that may otherwise be provided by us.

Our review of the affairs of the Company and their books and account does ol constitute an
audit in accordance with Auditing Standards. We have relied on explanations and info -mation
provided by the Management of the Company and accepted the information provided 0 uz
as accurate and complete in all respects. Although, we have reviewed such dats for
consistency and reasonableness, we have not independenily investigated or otherwise ve-ified
the data provided. Nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the informution provided
had material miss-statements or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which ta base the
Repeort,

The valuation worksheets prepared for the exercise are proprietary to Gaurav Jain, Regislered
Valuer and cannot be shared. Any clarifications on the workings will be pravided un recnest,
prior to finalizing the Repors, as per the terns of our engagement,

The scope of our work has been liniited Loth in terms of the areas of the busincss and
operations which we have reviewed and the extent to which we have revicwed them,

The Valuation Analysis contained herein represents the value only on the date that is
specifically stated in this Report. This Report is issued on the understunding (ha? (he
Management of the Company has drawn our attention to all martters of which they are aware,
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16,

which may have an impact on our Report up to the date of signature. We have no responibility
to update this Repart for events and circumstances occurring after the dute of this Report.

We have no present or planned future interest in the Company and the fee for this Kepar, is nat
contingent upon the values reported herein.

Our Valuation Analysis should not be construed as investinent advice: specifically, we dao not
express any opinion on the suilability or otherwise of entering into any transaction wih the
Company.

Bistrilbution of report

The Analysis is confidential and has been prepared exclusively for the purpose referred above.
It should aot be uscd, reproduced or circulated to any other person or for any purpose other
than as mentioned above, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Gawray Lakn.
Such consent will only be given ufter full consideration of the circumsiances at the time.
However, we do understand that the Report will be shared with the proposcd allotives of the
Company. Further, the report inay be submitted to statutory authorities ss and when requised.

Opinion of value of the buginess nnd valuntion summary:

The equity valuc of the company is summarized in the following table:

Caleulation of Swap Ratio
Nume of the Company Title Value per Shure Exchange
-~ . Share in INR Ritio
Alfa Flexitabe Private Limited | “Demerged Undertaking” 5.934 100:5.8*
{Punc Unit) -
Alfa Autotech Private Limited “Resulting Company” S 101014 NA

Accordingly, based on the information available, the share exchange ratio is arrived at 0.058.

*For every 1000 shares of Alfu Flexitube Private Limited, Alfu Autotech Private Limtited witl issue 58
shres.

Yours faithfully,

G:uﬁ:' Jain

1BBI Registered Valu
Sccurities und Financial Assets

Regn No: - IBBI/RVA6/2021/13914
UDIN: - 24642348 8KAVYH §6 38
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED {Pune Unit)
Demerged Undertaking
Yaluatien as at March 31, 2024 Annexure A.l

Uok Vajue
riciifar

A Assats
Non- Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipments and Intangible assots 4,77,86,686.13
l.ong Term Loan and Advances 16,74,500.00
Current Assets
Trade Receivables 5,54,33,029.81
Cash anc Bank Balance 89,234.00
Short Term Loans and Advances 4,43,465.77
Qther Current Assels 17,337.06
inventories 2,29,38,357.15
Total Assets {A} 12,83,83,009.92
8. Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade payables 77.25,641.64
Other current liabilities 33,04,114.00
Branch f Head office balances 9,45,96,340.00
- Short - lerm grovisions 20,97,960.00
Total Liabilitles (B} 10,77,24,055.64
Book Value [A-B) o T T 2,06,58,954.28
Number of shares 34,82,273
Book Value per equity share {In ) 5.93
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P

Alfa Autatech Private Limited
Valuation as at.March 31, 2024 Ahnexire A2

Book Value:

A. Assets

Non- Current Assets .
O:her Non Current Assets 4,33,618.87
Nan- Current Investments 1,14,00,C00.00
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balance §9,779.00
Total Assets (A} - 1,19,23,398
B. Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 2%,20,600
Current Liabilities
Q:her current liabilities 3,02,797.87
Totel Liabilities (B) 28,23,397.87
Book Value {A-B) el e .t 91,00,000.00
Num.ber of shares : 92,000
Boox Value per equity share.{in X} Lol S . 10111
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
NEW DELHI BENCH (COURT - II)

Item No. 207
CA{CAA)-100/ND/2024

IN THE MATTER OF SCHME OF ARRANGEMENT:

"Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
M-439, 1st Filoor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,

Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087 ««. Applicant Company No. 1/ _
Demerged Company -

AND

Alfa Autotech Private Limited
M-439, 1st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,

Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087 «. Applicant Company No. 2/
Resulting Company

Under Section: 230-232 of Companies Act.

Order delivered on 15.07.2025

CORAM:

SH. ASHOK KUMAR BHARDWA.J, I][ON'BLE MEMBER (J) .
MS.REENA SINHA PURI, HON’BLE MEMBER (T} -

PRESENT:

For the Applicant : Adv. Asun Saxena, Adv. Shanu P.
For the Respondent :

Hearing Through: VC and Physical (Hybrid) Mode

ORAL ORDER

The prayer made in the captioned application reads thus:-
“a. To dispense with the requirement for convening the meeting of the
equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company and to dispense with the requirement of issue and
publication of notices for the same; o

b. To convene meeting of the secured creditors and unsecured

creditors of the Demerged Company through audio video means at

CA(CAA}-100/ND/2024
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited with Alfa Autotech Private Limited
Page 1 of 11



such Date and time as this Hon'ble Tribunal may direct, for the
purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without
modification of the Scheme of Arrangement among the Applicant
Companies;

That orders/directions are to be passed for the publication of the
notices in relation to the meetings of Secured and Unsecured
Creditors of Demerged Company English Daily "Business
Standard" and Hindi Daily "Business Standard" (New Delhi
edition)

That the directions are also to be given as to the method of
convening, holding and conducting the said meeting and as to the
notices and advertisements to be issued in Secured and Unsecured

Creditors of Demerged Company;

That the Chairperson and Scrutinizer be appointed for the said
meeting of Secured and Unsecured Creditors of Demerged.
Company who shall report the result thereof to the Hon'ble Tribunal;

To dispense with the requirement for convening the meeting of the
secured and unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company and to
dispense with the requirement of issue and publication of notices

for the same;

Direct service of notice to Central Government through Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax Authorities or such
authorities as the Tribunal may deem fit, to make their respective
representations, if any, to this Hon'ble Tribunal, under provisions
of Section 230 (5} Companies Act, 2013 and further direct them to
serve a copy of their representation on the Applicant Companies"
Advocate;

To pass any other order or directions, as may be deemed fit in the
Jacts and circumstances of the case, may also be granted.”

CA(CAA)- 100/ND /2024
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited with Alfa Autotech Private Limited
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2. The Ld. Counsel for the Applicant could draw our attention to the

scheme of demerger, placed on record as Annexure-AS to the application. The

rationale and benefits of the scheme reads thus:-

- .- PARTII - .

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF 'T1IE SCHEME

4. 'Tre present.Scheme of Arrangement would, inter alia, have (he folio'wing

. benofits:
N a;'] The demerger .&f Pune Upit of Demetged Ccmp@mr into the Resuh:n%
Company will emable the “Demerged Company (the Retained

%

Undemkmg) te focus. more spoclrmlly on the Bhadurgarh Units as on

chﬁltmvc cnmy and: w..il conccntmlc on de\'elopsng and achinvmg

<7 expertise towands it and decision makmg without the distraction of
" managing moltple units. 'l‘hls <on Jead o in}pho\rcxgl pct‘folm and
innovation. Also, investars may value, spesislized companies higher
than a conglomerate az they can better undarstand and as.u-s; the sisks
and opportunities of & focused busincss. This can fead to improved

valuation.

) The Amangement will rcsult in_ beter, efficient ond ecumicai
mianegerment, cost savings, r.renung betier eynergy acrocs m group.
optitbum  utilizstion of resources, rotionalization of adm:mmmw:
expensesfservices, conwrol and’ sunning of businssses and further

s+

developenent am‘i growth of‘ the business of both the companies.

€} The Amangement would ollow a focused strategy (o operations of the
*Demecger Undenakiag ntongwilh‘ providing scope for indcpc}cdcnt
collaborations and cxpansion without cammitting the existing

organizxrioss in its entirety and coeating erhanced value for operations.

&) The Resulting Compa.ny witl have beiter financinl and busin_css‘
prospetts. The Scheme would be beneﬁc;iat toand in the des ir:teu:st of

" the shorenolders & creditors of the Demerged Company and the
" Resulting Company. The Scheme shall a0t in any mannes be prcjwi;:ia!
to the im of converaed 'shmlfso]deﬂ! creditors. and general publie

at large. . . ..

CA(CAA)-100/NLC /2024
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3.

The particulars of the Demerged and Resulting Companies have given

in Paras 1 & S of the application, which reads thus:-

*1, That ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED, (hereinafter

9]

4,

the share exchange ratio on account of the Demerger of Pune Unit of the
Dem.erged Company into the Resulting Company. The relevant excerpt of the

aforesaid valuation report marked and annexed as Annexure-A1S reads thus:-

7. Opinion of vatug of the buginess and valustion yumospey:

referred to as "Applicant Company No. 1 or Demerged
Company") is a duly incorporated on 31%t January, 1996 as
private limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, CIN "U65993DL1996PTC075886" and having its
registered office at ‘M-439, 1%t Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087
X X X

That ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED, (hereinafter
referred to as "Applicant Company No. 2 or Resulting
Company’} is a duly incorporated on 30t January, 2008 as
private limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, CIN "U34300DL2008PTC173317" and having its
registered office at ‘M-439, 1%t Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar,
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087"."

Our attention could be drawn to the Valuation Report, which prescribes

The equity value of the company is summarized in the following table:

Calculation of Swap Ralia
Name of the Company Tile Valueper | Share Exchange
. AP § * Share In INR Ralio
Alf Flexitube Private Limited | *Oemetyed Undertaking” S0~ 100:5.8
2une Lnit)
Alfa Autoteeh Private Limited  { “Resukting Company” 0L NA

Accordingly. based on the infoamation available, the share exchange ratio is arrived s1 0,083,

*For every 1000 shares of Alfa Flexitube Privete Limited, Alfe Autoech Private Lindted will isne $8
Shares,

CA[CAA)-100/ND /2024
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5. The reference is made by Ld. Counsel for the Applicant to the synopsis
filed along with application to show that as far as the status qua Equity
Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors qua Resultant Company are
concerned, they have given their consent to the Scheme of Demerger.
Regarding the Creditors and Shareholders qua the Demerging Company, Mr.
Saxena, Ld. Counsel for the Applicant submitted that a prayer for convening
the meeting of Secured a.md Unsecured Creditors is requested, but. the
~ Shareholders have accorded their consent to the scheme. The relevlant excerpt

of the synopsis reads thus:-

9. Fo!lowmg is the status of the Equity Shmeholders and l.hr: consents by way of

1.

Aﬁ'dav;tg:vmbyumfwdwpmposedamalgamum- . .

. -

us uf ers - «

. And Consents given m«!hgm
S B | Na. of | Written g"'f . )
Compary Shareholder | Consent onsen Aonexuce No. | Poge No.,
Reveive ' . L ad
s, - received a- " " -
Applicaat - . = —= .
.| Company . e6 6 | 100% xures -
No. 1- . - - .. A2(Collvy
«. jApplicant - . H
Compagy -{ - 3 : 3 10004 acxure:
. |Ne.z - - . AL2(Colyy.

lo i-‘ollnw:ng is l.be status of the Socumd (’:md“:f.ors and ther consent by way of .
Aﬂ'id.avit gwen by l.hcm for the pmposod amalgamation.

t 1] r
zent olve o

Tt e of | Written Percentage | - Paze

Compasny | Secured Conseat - of Auvnexure o =

T . . .} Creditors reveived Consents . |No. .- . 0‘.

N e Received

Applicant . - : .

Company i1, . Nil o - R & - X

No. § - -~} - . -

Applicant . . o . i B
| Company Nil, - . NA -oNA | . - -

No. 2 _— N

CA(CAA)-100/ND /2024
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ollcwxng is the stams of the Unswcumd Ch:cdim and zlw consent by.way of

Afr' davit given by them for e pmpmd n.mn!g.-mmwn. ‘ ..
A ) . Lo - Stoos of Unseéired Creditors . L.
. o Al Consent miven by them . -
R - N Number o S¥ricten Perc;htnge )
Co N Annexure |Foge
mpany i Unsceured Consent | 65 consents . No.
- . | Creditors receivwd | reccived No- )
AppRcane | | X . . . ' -
| Company | 144 . N - - 4.
No.f . - - T L .
Applicant - ) v
4 S - - ADAexuac x
Company .. 5 S 100%% . L3
MNo. 2 - ’ A ATHColly )

6. The Certificates giverr by a Chartered Accountant regarding the
accounting treatment have been placed on record at Annexure-Al6 to the

application and are reproduced thus:-

A GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP - R
b/ Chartered Accountants | LY ;r:hmwm m
LLPIN: AAB-1809 ’ New Delhi -110053, -

L {Regutered hamlie TR Liniind LanE iy o lnarihip Ass, 2ty Tek +D4-23555470.73

= E~mail : Info@gskassociates com

We_hm: T wwe gskasocistes.com

T . . - .
. T;u Boad of Divectors, : /4 ﬂ‘l‘!;ﬁﬁ"& A :& (C"H{l \]
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED - ‘

M-439, ™ Floct, Guru Harkrishan Nagar, . ' .
Paschim Vihar, New Dethi 110087 . .
Ws, GSK & Assoclates LLP, Chartzred Accountants Statutory Auditor of M ALFA
AUTOTECH IRIVATE UIMITED (ueminsfier refemed Io ns “RESULTING
COMPANY™), heve aamwd ths pmpowd nnom.ting treatonent specified in the propossd ‘
Schems :vamergc.ermr gd:'ne.r! of M/s Alla Autotech Private Limited and Alfs Fleximbes

* Privato Zimited (heseinafiec refered to @y “the Demerged Company”) i teoms of m! .
provisioas of sections 250 o 232 of the Companics Act, 2013 with reference to, its
comphiance wich +he applicabls Amnﬁng‘_Staong speciiied under Section 133 0fthe A,
read wits qule 7 of the Companies (Acoounts) Eules, 2014 and otber Generally Accepied
Aeoounl:-.ngr&jgcip&m v

.

After examipztion, 'We heoeby certfy that the socunticg kreatment in the proposeé Scheate
of bmrge Arangement under sections 230 10:232 of the Companics Acl, 2013 between

. M/s Alfa Fleitubes Privato Linied and Atfa Autotech Private Limited is in conformity withl
the sccpantlng stancards prescribed under Section 133 of Companics Act, 2013, '

The responsibility for the prepamtion of mc'sc&.m and its compliace wih the relevant -
lows and regquaZons, including L5e applicable Agounting Standards as eforesaid, is that of
b Boad of-D?.n;qm of the companies !m\olvac. Our respensibility is oniy to examine and '
teport whether the Scheme comglies with the zplicable Accounting Standsids end Otaer
General y Aczepted Accouriing Principles, Nathing contsined in this Mﬁm, Bor
CA[CAA}-100/ND /2024
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anything sa’d or done in the course of, or it connection with the services that are subject o
this Certificate, will exicnd any duty of care that we ase way have In oor capecity of the
slalulory auditors of any financial smlements of the Compa»y. We - carrled out our
exa.mmmon in acedrdance with the Guidance Nots an Audit R:ports and Certificates for
Special Purpases, issued by the Institure of Charicred Accovntants of India. |

For GSK & Assotintes LLP
Chartered Accountants .
FRN:-D13838N/NSO0003 -, ‘

de _
(CA Anil Kumar Somac)\z
Designated Partner
M:Np. 093521 °

UDIN : 04095521 BKBFYEEHI 2-

Date: 30.07.2024

Place: Delhi _ : . o
X X X
GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP T 280 meome
Chartered Accountants * Motia Khao Induseris) Atea,
L T New Dethi +110058,
e o s Liskty Pormeibig Ak 363 Tol, £ 0112381547073
. ‘ E-manl ‘mfo@ahsmemu enm
Ta, - '
The Board of Dircctors, :
ALFA FLEXITUDES PRIVATE LIMI'I‘ED . : .

i~ M-439, 1*Floor, Gurw Harkrishan Nagar,
. Paschim Vihar, New Pelhi 110087

We, GSK: & Associates LLP , Chartered Accountants, Sumtutory Auditor of M/s ALFA

_SLEXIT(Z’BES PRIVATE LIMITED (hereimafer referred to as “DEMERGEDE

COMPANY"), have examined the proposed sesounting treatment specified fn the proposcd
Scheme of Demcrget/Arrangement of M/s Alfe Flexifubes Private Limited and Alfa Autotéch

-

provisions of sections 230 to 232 of ‘the Companies Act, 2013 with reference to its
complinnce -#ith the applicabls Accounting Standards specificd under Section 133 of the Act,
read with wule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rul:s. 2014 and other Generally Accepted
Accounting Priaciples, ©

Privete Limited (herelnaRer referred to 'as "the Resulting Company™ in temss of the

-

Afier examination, we herebry certify that the accounting treatment in the propased Seheme of
Demerges/Asmung under sections 236 ta 232 of the Companles Act, 2013 between M/s
Alfa Flexitsbes Privats Limsited and Alfa Autotech Paivate Limited i in conformity with the

xccounting s'andards presceibed ander Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013,

CA(CAA)-100/ND /2024
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The responxbility for the preparation of the Scheme and its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of

the Board of Directors of the companies involved. Our responsibility is only to examine and
H

report whether (e Scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and Other’
Generally Accépted Accounting Principlés, Nothing contained in this Certificats, nor
anything seid oErdonc in the course of, or in cnm:mclion with the services that are subjcf;t to
this Certificate, will extend any duty of caré that we are may have in our capacity of the
staz‘um:y auditors of ang; financial ststements of the Company, We camied out our
cxamintion in acéordance with the Guidance Note on Aidis Reports and Certificates fon

Special Purposes, jssucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GSK & Atsociates LLP
Chartered Accountants .
FRN:-(13838N/N500003 <L . 5

"A’f,../’-q.-’ . -;.

{CA Anil Kuntar Somssi)
Designated Partner °
M.No. 093521

UDIN:24092521 6K 8 €y ¢ 144

Date: 30.07.2024
Place: Delh

7. The Certificates given by the auditor regarding the Creditors and Equity
Shareholders qua Demerging and Resultant Company, duly supported by an
aifidavit, are available on record as Page Nos. 209, 229, 238, 248 of the

application.

8. It is the stand taken by the Applicants that the control qua both the
Demerging and Resultant Companies is common, and both the companies are

group companies. The averments to the effect have been made at Page-30 in

Para-3 of the application which reads thus:-

CA(CAA)-100/ND /2024
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3. 'Thc.- .schcmc cnvasaged the AFARZSIICAL of‘ :hﬁ ’Pu.no uniz of

M‘» Dememcd Campnny fato t'he Rcsultmg Company to e,-nablq: tho
" grmxp to fm smc:xﬁm.“y m the mained undmmknxg
-compns:ng uml.s lmtod at Mdtu'garh dnsmr:t ot ﬁw

s:ompany ax the mmpawt:y -dc.-nuf‘cd opcmnmnl lﬂcmclenciﬂ

u;t mmaging‘ geogrnp]uca]ly dxespmcd nnns, ’ mniud:ng

. gl .- .
incﬂ:md loguaucal. costs, cowrpiexaucs 1 c:oow:hnm:on, and ' ’ {

chal.lmgc.s in m:ntmnxng uniformity in op-cmnom: pmocs_

By dcu-un:gnng the Pune Unn‘., t}w compnny m stn:::n.nxlim

operations W impruve overall ot‘ﬁmcncy. Scwgatm,g thq ’

units would ¢nablo t.‘lw aommny to ncblcvc bm::r cmnomics of. F

. sc::.ﬂc, mduca: rcdunﬁane?cs. and cnhmc ovcmll pn;o-ductcv:ty.

",

R 'r!ns demcrgcr ix cxpe-r::cd to Iead m cos: s.avmg,s amd tmprovl:d

- e o - . -
e ~ -
- - »

operational performancs. ” . . .. -
9. The Applicant Companies have &lso filed Affidavit in compliance of
provisions of Section 23C(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The relevant excerpt
of the Affidavit reads thus:-

2. That in compliance with Section 230{2) of Companiss Act, 2013, T |

hereby disclose the following: -

a) Xatest Financlal Position of the Company . !I

j. The financial position of the Pemerged Company ‘as-on 313

March, 2024 on the basis of the latest Audited Fingncial

E‘ Statement Is as under: Mis ALFA FLEXITUBES PVE. LID. :

Pasticulars eoo- . Amoung '
(Figurcs in Thousands)

T EQUATY & LIABILYTIES -

Share Capital = 34.822.73
Reserves and Susplus . 1,69,568.00
Non-current liabilities B7.866.826

Current liabilities B tT 3.09,10¢.62 .

Total - 6,01,359.21 ' |

ASSETLS

- !q.

Non-curtent Assets - . 2,72,006.%3 I|

] Current Asseis 3,29,353.09 )
Total G, 01,359.2%

CA{CAA)-100/ND /2024
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited witl: Alfa Autotech Private Limited
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The certified true copy of the auditedt financial statermnent of the

Demerged Coripany as on 31%* March, 2024 is annexcd

herewith and marked as Annesure-B1.

b) ‘That no Investigation er procseding unc;ler the Companies Act,
2013, erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 or under any other act is
peading neither against the Demerged Company nor Resulting

Company involved in the present Scheme of Asrrangement.

&) That the ‘'Scheme of Artanzement docs not envisage any

reduction of Capital.

) That ¢the present scheme of Arrangement is not a scheme of
Corporate Debt Restructuring as envisaged under Secction 230(2)

(c) of the Act or a scheme of compromise or amalgamation

under Section 230 of the Act.

3. 'I'i-nat the aggregatc of assets of the Pemerged Company and

* Resultipg Company will be sufficiert to meet liabilities.of Demerged
Company and Resulting Company-in: fuli. - ) '
10.  In the wake of the aforementicned, we deem it appropriate to dispense
with the meeting of Unsecured Creditors and Equity Sheareholders qua tte
Resultant Company. As far as the Demerging Company is concerned, tke
meetiné of the Equity Shareholders is dispensec with. As far as Secured and
Unsecured Creditors qua the Demerging Company ate concerned, we appoint
Mrs. Rashmi Chopra, Sr. Advocate/Arbitrator (Mob. No. 9810311218}, &s
Chairperson to hold the meeting. Mr. Jitendra Arora, Company Secretary
(Mob. N0.9811505059} who is present in court.. is appointed as scrutinizer
qua the meeting, The fee of the chairperson would be Rs. 75,000/~ plus

expenses and that of the scrutinizer wculd be Rs. 45,000/ -,

11. The chairperson would issue the notice for the meeting of the Secured
and Unsecured Creditors qua the Demerge Company, by issuing notice of 21
CA(CAA)-100/ND/2024
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days. The meeting of the Secured and Unsecured Creditors q'ua the Demerging
Company would be held virtually. It goes without saying that the chairperson
and scrutinizer would ensure that the provision contained in the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, regarding

holcing of the meeting of Secured and Unsecured Creditors is followed.

12. The issuance of the notice to reglilators referred to in Section 230(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 would be considered at the time of filing of 2nd

Motion Petition.

13. The Applicant Companies would bear the expenses regarding service of
notice/adherence to the process to be followed by the chairperson anci
scrutinizer in terms of the provisions of the Amalgamation Rules, including
the publicatioﬁ of notice in terms of the provisions of Section 230(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013. The publication may be made in two leading
newspapers i.e. Business Standard (Hindi & English) in circulation in the area
where the registered office of both the Demerging and Resultant Companies

are located. The application stands disposed of.

sd/- sd/-
(REENA SINHA PURI) {ASHOK KUMAR BHARDWAJ )
MEMBER (T) MEMBER (J)
Jitendra/ Rychita

CA(CAA)-100/ND /2024
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(GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP Regd. Office:

Chiil‘t@l’éd Accountants 8. tst Flcor, Rani Jhans’ Road.

Motia Khan Industrial Area,

LLPIN : AAB-1809 New [Zelki -110055.
{Reglstrred vader The Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008) Tel : 011-2351597¢-73

E-mail : info@gskassociates.com
Website : www,gskassociates.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TG THE MEMBERS OF
ALFA FLEXTTUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Orinion

WE have audited the accoripanying financial statemen:s of ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
(“ite Company™) which comgrises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit znd
Lcss, and statement of >ash flows for the year then eaded, anc notes to the financial statements, ‘ncluding a
sumimary of significant accounting policies and other sxplanato-v information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid finarcial statements give the information required by t1e Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conZormity with the accounting principles generatly accepted in india, of :he state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that datz.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our aucit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sectian
143(10) of the Comparies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities unde: those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s esponsibili-ies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repost. We zre
independerit of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issuzd by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India tegether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of ths financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fultilled our otaer ethical responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe tha the aud:t evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a besis for our
opiizion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are thosz matters that, in our professional jdgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial stetements of the current period. These masters were addressed in the cont=xt of o1
audit of the financial staternents as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
s2pzrate opznion on thes2 .atters,

keporting cf key audit matters &s per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is
an uniisted conpany.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other irformation
coraprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
anc. our audito:’s repors thzreon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor’s rzport.

Ju: opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not eXpress any
form of assurance conciusion taereon.

-n connect’on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaticr a sk oo

. - 3 3 3 . - . "-\."’ Lot
dentified above when it becomes available and, in doing sc, consider whether the other mformatnq;{«;i
7/ \...!f
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materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and teke necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Respousibility of Managemeat for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, rclevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is no- a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion., The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of i1ternal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedvres that

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols,

/,’;;.—\
sy~ N

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion, Cur
conclusions are based onthe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue a5 a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, indluding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“‘the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure-"A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
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f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company, the company is under exemption category vide MCA notification dated 13th June 2017
(G.S.R. 583(E)) therefore not commented upon.

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and tc the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:
{) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.{ except mentioned in note -25)

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts inciuding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (&) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge anc belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or tae like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv} (b) contain any material mis-statement,

(v)  No dividend declared or paid during the year by the company, therefore compliance of section
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 is
applicable from 1 April 2023, Based on our examination which included test checks, the
company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transaction recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tempered with.

For GSK &Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants N
(FRN: 013838N/N500003)

=

(Anil Kumar Somani)
Designated Partner
Membership No. 093521 {_
Place: New Delhi

Date: 25.06.2024
UDIN: . 04092521 8KB Fx S 346
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Annexure-"A" {o the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE
LIM:TED, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 )

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audlt
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1. (a)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.
The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets
_(b) Property, Plant & Equipment are physically verified by the management in accordance with
a regular programme at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the interval is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

{c) Based on the audit procedure performed and according to the records of the Company, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the
name of the Company.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assess or both
during the year. ¥

() There is no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for helding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made there under.

II. .(a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during
" the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 13% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory. :

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggrepate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; In our
opinion, there are no material discrepancies between the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the company with such banks or financial instiwtions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

IH.  The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the Provision
of clause 3{iii) (a) to 3(iii) (f) of the order are not applicable to the company.

v,  The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 in respect of investments.
Further, in our opinion, the company has not entered into any transaction covered undar section
185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, guarantees and security.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions
of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,2013; any other relevant provisions of the Act and
relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the Provision of clause 3(v) of the ordar are not
applicable to the company.

VI.  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for

g

maintenance of cost records and are of' the opinion that prima-facie, the prescrlbed accounts and”f?w G
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Vi,

Xk

X1,

XL

X,

wn -

iy

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees® State Insurance, Duty of Customs, [ncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess
and other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. no urdisputed
amounts payeble in respect of Income Tax, Duty of Custom, Goods and Service Tax and
Cess were in arrears, as at 31¥March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of income-tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of
customs, Provident fund, Employees' state Insurance and other material statutory dues
which have not been deposited by the company on account of disputes.

The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecyrded as
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as

income during the year,

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(®) The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

{c} All the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

(d) There is no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purpos:s.

(¢) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(H The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities keld in its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial/further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.
() The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during te year.

Accordingly, clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on the audit procedures adopted and information and explanations furnishec to us by
the management, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(b} No Report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filad by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the company during the year.

The Company is not chit fund or nidhi/mutual benefit trust/society. Therefore, the provisions of
the clause 3 (xii) (a) to 3 (Xii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

All transactions with the related parties are in comptiance with Sections 177 and 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of transactions during the year have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Refer note no.27 to the Standalone financial statements.

In our opinion and based on our examination the company does not have an internal audit
system and in not requmed to have an internal audit system as per compames ACl 2013\

company.




XV,

XVI.

XVIL

XVl

XIX.

XX.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them. Therefore, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies A=t, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be register under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, Clause 3(XV1) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not conducting any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, Clause 3(XVI) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢} The Company is not a core investment company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(XVI1) (¢.) of the order is not applicable.

{d) The Group has no CIC. Accordingly, Clause 3(XVI) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the Current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, Clause
3(XVIID) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets tnd
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statermcnis, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, based on our examinat.on of she
evidence supporting the assumptions, we apinion that there is no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report regarding whether company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at -he
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they ratl due.

There is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 pursuant
10 any project. Accordingly, clause 3(XX) (a) and 3{XX) (b) of the order are not applicabte.

For GSK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 013838N/N500003)

(Ani) Kumar Somani)

Designated Partner |
Membership No. 093521 d

Place: New Dethi
Date: 25.06.2024
UDN:- 24093521 BKBFXS9UUE
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. ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,lst Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhl-116287

accounts@alfa-fiexitubes.com,Ph, No,: 01276.268119, 267175, CIN:- U65993DL1996PTCO75886
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024
{All Amounts zre in Thousand of Indian Rupees unfess other wise stated)

. S e . As ot 31zt As at 31st
Partizulars Note No. March,2024 Narch,2023
I, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} St areholde's Funds
{z} Srare Caphal 2 34,822 73 34,822.73
{3) Reserves and Surpius 3 1,69,568 00 1,48,987.21
Share Application Money { Pending A.loment)
{1 Non-Current Lizbilities
(<) Long-Terrn Borrawings 4 79,565.57 88,986.28
{d) Deferred Tox Lizbilities {Net) : 5 8,301.2% 7.832.24
{3) Current L abilities
{a} Short-Term 3orrowings 6 1,62,731.54 1,64,250.57
(t) Trade Payables 7
Total Dutstarding cues of micro enterprites and
smaltenterprises 16,465.46
Total Jutsiardisig cues of othar micro enterprises and
smalienterprises 74,584 .04 1.08,502.11
1) Ctaer Curent Liabilities 8 17,972.92 21,154.51
{d} Short-Teim F-oiisions 9 37,327.66 31,212.78
Tota, EqJity & Liabilities 6,01,359.21 5,06,454.42
ILLASSETS
() Nen-Current Assets
(¢l Broperty, Plcnt end Equipment ¢ad Irtaagible ussets 10
{1, Property, Fram & Equipment 2,66,259.37 2,52,967.02
(i} Intangible Assets 27.25 81.05
(it} Capital Work-In-Progress 2,5€4.58 13,197.62
{k) .01g Term Loans and Advances ' .11 3,114.33 2,850.75
{C) Sther Non Current Assets - -
{2} Current Assets
{e. Imventories 12 1,38,452.31 £,37,072.64
{k Trude Reczivables 13 1,43,662.05 %,53,375.48
{ci Cash and Cash equivalents
i) Cash and cash squivalerts 14.1 6,632.96 3,752.76
i) Oher Bank Balence 14.2 12,122.92 10,375.27
{d} Short-Term Loars and Advances 15 27,913.30 31,200.08
{e} Other Currert Assets 16 567.76 981.73
Totaol Assets 6,01,359,21 6,06,454.42
Sizrifizant Accouating Palicies %
Nztas on Finang'al Statements 1to 35
As per our Report of even gate For & On Behalf of Board of Directors of iy
For 63K & ASSOCIATES LLP ALFA FLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.
CEARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Fim Reg. No.: 013338NIN50000(3 ’EKNU
e }{)_,MQ._, l\s \
{CA A Kumar 3om ani) RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA SAURA3E "ANDONSy,
Des'gr ated Partner MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Mer-kership No. : 093521 CIN. 00732421 DIN. 01354583

PLATE: NEW BELHI
DATED: 25.06.2024
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439,ist Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087
accounts@alfa»ﬂexitubés.cmn,Ph. No.: 91276-268118, 267175, CIN:- U65993DL1936PTCO75886
STAVEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024
{All Amounts ara in Thousand ot Indian Rupees unless otter wise stated)

As per our Report of even date
Fer GSK & ASSOCIATES LLP

Sr. No Particulars Note Na. For the year 2023-24 For the yeor 2022-23
incomes:
| Revenue from operations 17 7,02.737.02 6,85,767.38
Il Other Inzome 18 5.693.65 17,888.30
It 1. Tatal Revenue [} +11) 7,08.480.67 7,03,685.68
v Expenses;
Cost of materials consumed 19 q,13.534 .88 4,29,7C7.85
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-
in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 20 8031.60 2,228.60
Employee Benefit Expense 21 1,34,309.18 1,14,145.70
Finance Zosts 22 24,108 45 20,946.66
Depraciztion and Amortization Expense 23 16,822.29 18,072.27
Cther Expenses 24 1,01,340 88 1,05,494.46
Totol Expenses {IV) 6,82,024.07 6,30,597 53
Profi- bejore exceptlonal dnd extracrdinary
v items and tax (i1 - 1) 26,456.60 13,089 15
-V Exceptional items
Vi) Profit before 2xtraordinary items and tax (v - VI} 26,456.60 13,089.15
Vil Extraord nary Items -
1X Profit be‘ore zax {VIl - VIII} 26,456.60 13,083,15
X Tox expense:
(1) Carrent tax 5,807.58 5,814.41
{2) Deferred tax (Assets)/ Liabilizies 369.06 {3,703.31)
Profit{Loss) from the perid from continuing
X aperations {1X-X) 20,279.96 10,983.04
Xl Profit/{Less) from discontinuing operations -
Xl Tax expense of discounting operations - -
Profit#{Lcss) fram Discontinuing operations (Xil -
Xiv Xt} = -
XV Profit/(Lcss) for the period (XI + Xiv} 20,279.96 ~0,983.04
XV Earping per ecuity share: 27
{1} Bzsic 5.82 3.15
{2} Dilutec 5.32 3,15
Significant Accounting Polizies &
Notes on Financial Statements 1to035

For B On Behalf of Board of Directors of L.

ALFA F.EXITUBES PVT. LTD,

CHARTERED ACCCUNTANTS i .
Firm Reg. No.: D13838N/N500003 “E
’ [unas
{CA Anil Kumar Somani} RAJENDA KUMAR SARDANA  SAURABH TANDO:
Designated Partner MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Membership No. : 093521
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 25.06.2024

S
voin- 2 4093521 Bi< 8L XSG uyh

DIN. 00732421

OIN. 01994582




ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for th2 vear 2nded 31st March, 2024
accounts@ alfa-fiexitubes.com,Ph. No.: 01276-563119, 267175, CIN:- UE5933DL1996PTC075886
0M-429,Ist Floor, Gury Harklshz 1 Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087
(Al amc snts are in Thousand of [nd.an Rupees unless gther wise stated)

Particulars Fcrthe year endad 315t | For the year ended
March 2024 315t March,2023

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net >rofit/( _oss) before extrasrdl~ary items and ax 26,456,60 13,089.15
AdjLstment ‘or:

Dep-eciatio~ and amortisation 16,822.29 18,072.27
{Provit)/ Lose on Sale cf Fixed Assets {778.27) 243.47
Flnasce Costs 24,10B.45 20,946.66
Inte:est Income (733.80) {986.40)
Ope ating P-ofit/(Loss) bafore WekIng Capitai Changes 65,825.26 51,365.14
Adjustments for {increasz)/ decrease in operating assets:

- Inventories (1,380.27) {3,469.08)
- Trzde Receivables 10,312.83 (26,623.78)
- Otk.er Ruce.vables 5,911.55 16,005.91
Adjustment: for increzse/ (de:rease) in aperating Liabil~es:

-Trade Payzbles (17,452.61) {45,087,28)
- Otaer Payables 2,354.12 17,898.2¢6
Cask genercred from Operatiens 65,620.89 10,089.17
Less: -Incorea Tex Paid {8,126.95) (3,145.51)
Net Cash ge~erated from Operating Activities {A: 57,493.94 6,943.66
B. Czsh Flow from Investing Activ :les

Capital Expeditire on Fixed Asses (19,295.74) (10,119.21)
Proceeds fr-m <ale of Fized Assets 1,007.60 342.25
Interasi Recaived 733.8C 986.40
Movement i~ long tern advances {263.57) {54.90)
Movement i- NZF currrnt assets - -
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities {B) (17,817.91) {8,845.46}
C. Cash Flow from Financing Aztivities

Long Term Borrowings (9,420 71) 842.76
Short term Borrowangs {1,519.03) 22,742.88
Finarce Cost Paid {24,108.45) (20,946.56)
Proceeds trem issue of Skare capital{including Securities Premium)
Net Lash generated from Finacing Activitles {C) {35,048.19) 2,638.98
Net Cash Flow 4,627.84 737.18
Cashand Ca: Equivalents at the Eoginning of the Year 14,128.03 13,390.85
Cash and Casn Equivalents at tne End of the Year® 18,755.87 14,128,03

Note::

{i) Thz Cash Fiovs Statement reflecrs the combinad cash 'ows pertaining to continuing operations.

{ii) Al figuses » bracke=s are outltows/ decrease.

{lii} Previous yeass figures have been regrouped/nestated wherever necessary.
{iv) *Cash and Cash Equivalents are Cash and Bank balances as mentioned in Note No, 15

As per our Repat of even date
For GSK & Associates LiP

Charzered Acccuntants TN
Firm Reg. N=.: 01383EN,N300003

A=

{CA antl Kuraar 3omanl)
Designated Partner

Merr bership No. @ 0935231
Place : New De hi

DATED; 25.36.2024

voir- 9 Up G352 1 Rk BFXSGuy g

For & on Behslf of the 8oard of Directors

RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIM. 00732421

SAURABH TANDON
DIRECTOR
DIN. 01594583
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ALFA FLEXITUBES {P} LTD
M-439,Ist Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim ViFar, New Delhi-11€087

Notes Forming integral Part of the Bolance Shect as a* 31st March, 224
{Ail Amounts are In Thousand of Indian Rupees unlass other wise stated)

Note : 2 Share Capital
5. No. . Partlculars As at 31st As at 31st
March,2024 March,2023
1 AUTHORIZED CAP.TAL
40,00,000 (#.¥. 40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each. 40,000.00 40,000.00
40,000.00 40,000.00
2 ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAFITAL
3482272 (P.Y. 32,82,273) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid ug 34,822.73 34,822.73
Total 34,822.73 34,822.73
{8} iReconciilation of Number o Shares In Nos In Nos
Opening Shares 34,82,273 32,82,273
Add:- Shares issued during the year - 2,00,000
Closing shares ' 34,82,273 34,82,273
{b) | List of Share hoiders having 5% or more Skares {'n Nos} In Nos In Nos
Name Of Shareholders
Mr. R.K.Sardana
No of Shares 7,70,270 14,66,724
{% of Shares held) 22.12% 42.12%
Mrs.Indra Sardana
No of Shares 4,158,242 7,63,470
{% of Shares held) 11.92% 21.92%
Wr.Saurabh Tandon
No of Shares 11,7€,078 11,76,079
{% of Shares held) 33.77% 33.77%
Mrs. Pooja Sardana
No of Shares 5,22,341
{% of Shares held) 15.00%
Mrs. Prlya Ahuja
No of Shares 5,22,341 -
(% of Shares held) 15.00%

{c)

(d)

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per Share. Each Holder of Equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. 11 the even: of Liquldation cf the company, the holders of equity shares wilt be entitled ta receive remaining
assets of the company, after dis.ribution of all preferertial amounts. The distribution will be- In praportion to the number of equity

shares helg by the sharzhalders,

Bonus Shares/Buy Gack/Shares for considration other than ¢as 1 1ssued during the period of five years immediat2ly

preceding the financial vear ended 31st Maich, 2024

without payment being received in cash- ML
i} Aggregate number of zjulty shares as fully pald up oy way of boaus shares - NIL

iif) Aggregate number of equity shares bought bacx - NiL

SRRy
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ALFA FLEXITUBES (P} LW
M-429,1st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087

Nates Forming Integrol Part of the Balance Sheet as ot 31st Morch, 2024
{e) liar by promoters at the én AT ¢~

As on 31.03.2024.

) Na. of share at the No. of share at
Namne of the promoter begning ot the Changes during the end of the % thange during the
Cizss of Shuye your the year yoar o of TotalShare  |pea
Mr, R.K.Sardana Equity 11,€6,721 (C,0G,454) 2,70,270 22,12 {20.00)
Mrs.Indts Sardang Equity 2,03.470°7T {2,48,228) 4,15,242 11.92 (10.00)
Mr.Saurabh Tandon Equity 11,76,079 - ) 11,76,079 33.77 -
As on 31.03,2023
No. of share at the No. of share at
S No., Name of the promoter begning of the Changes during  |the end of the % change during the
- Class of Share year " the year year % of TotaiShare |year
1 Mr. 8.X.Sardana Equity 14,66,724 - 14,66,724 42.12 -
2 Mrs_Indra Sardana Equity 7,63,470 - 7,63,470 21.92 | - -
3 Mr.Saurabh Tandon Equity 11,76,079 - 11,76,079 33.77 .

£
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ALFA FLEXITUBES (?) LTD
M-439,t5t Flaor, Guro Harkis1ar Nogar, Paschim Vikar, Kaw Delhi-1100E7

Notes Forming integral Part of the Jalonce Sheet as at I1st Niarch, 2024
HNote : 3 Reserve & Surplus

_ . As ar 31st As at 315t
SrRo | Particulars CUELTY Y Mareh20e March,2023
1 |Securities Prerilum 3
Opening Bafance 42,675.01 47,675.0:
Acd: Onis3uz of shores - -
Total (A) 47,675.01 47,675.01
2 |Swpasic kalancein siatement of profit & icss Afc
Openring Balance . 1,01,312.20 50,331.97
Leg: Prafit for the pariod - 20,27¢.96 10,583.04
Acdf(Lessy: Adusment 5f carlier year taxes ' ) 30C.83 |- 2.81
Total (@) 1,21,89: .89 1,01,312.2C
Grand Total 7 A+B) 1,68,568 00 1,48,987.21
Note. 4 log Term Borrowings Cur-ent Portlon Non Current Portion
Tt N - B - As at 31st As at 3ist As 3t 31st As at 313t
seho f - Partcalars . R T March,2023 Viarch,2028 | March,20:3
Sexured
1 Frem Bank
-Ripee Loan Refer Notes 4..(a), (b),0.(d) & € 5,263.70 10171 77 16.158.29 18,379.97
“Fere gn Currecy Loz {Reter Notes 4.3 (b} 17,416.94 15,763.84 45 665 27 55,885 5%
Toval {A) 26,680 64 25,935.61 61815.57 74,265.95
Uniecured
1 Lozns & Advances F om Re.ated Parties { Reder nates da. 4.2{a)) - - 17 750 €0 12,800.07
2 |[FromBank{ Feler nctasno - $.2{b) & © 152033 3,196.03 - 1,92,
ozl [8) 1,920 33 3,196.03 17,750.00 34,720 3%
Total ) 28,600.97 29,131.64 79,565,57 88,985.28
Note: .
Term Loan Referrer above t the extent of

a1}

3) Rs.13270.72 tacusacsd {Ps. Vear Rs 28028.51 thcusand) including =u rrent maturities of long term debts & Loan recelved unde- GECL - WCTL From State Band of
ind a dre pr'mary sezares by first parri passu charge against hypo:- ecatian of enlire current assess {present and futuse), 2onslst ng o° raw mate ials, stores
stock-in-prucess anc Haned joads lying in factary premises as wed as in transit, dotumentry inland and export bills bocks <2bts, Fixed Depos:s, Mutual F_ncz |
etc of the Company and iurtier collateral secured against 1) First Tharge by equitable mortgage of Factory Land and Bui-ding situatad at P ot N.», 1726, MIT,
Batizdurgarh and Pla3 ne. 1743, MIE, Bahdurgarh 2} Equitable mer.gage of freeetold residential Tlat No. M-429, FF at Hindugtan Co-ap House Building Society
in Guiuharkishzn nz zar, 2asc™>m Vihar, Delki in the nzme of Sh Rajender Kumar Sardana. 3} Equitable mortgage of resldentizi prope:ty situated at D-146, g
flocr, Jew Rajinder ~aget, de hiin the name of 5h Sauabh Tandcn 4} Equitable mortgage of {actary Land and Building at Vil': ge -Tandaheri, Teasil-
Bahadurgary Distt-. 13jiar, Hryana of the campany, besides persomal guarantee of director Smt Indira Sardana, Sh, Saurabh Tandor » Mry Priva Ahuja & s
Pocia >ardaaa and £ R; K Sardana,

b) Rs.GRENS 21 thedsa=d (Pr. Ye:r Rs.71649.82 <housard ) including crrent matyrit.es of long tern- debts From Axis Bank ire srimary secured b first paen gass.
charge against Hypctiecation of entire current asse:s [present ard future), consisting of raw materials, stores, stock-in-g rocess and tinished gonds lying in
factory premises a5 ‘e2ll 25 14 transit, documentey infard and exper bills books debts, Fixed Depesits, Mutual Funds ete. of thz Company ard & -zhar coliatecal
secured apga’nst 1) First Crarg = by equitable mortgage cf Factary Lznd and Building situated at Pict No. 1726, MIE, Bahacurgz. h and Plot no. 17 3, MIE,
Rahdu. garh 2) Equitz sle mortgage of freeehcld resicentlal Flat Ne. M-433, FF at Hindustan Co-op House Buildiag Society in Suruharkishan nagz, Paschim
\ihar, Delhi in the name of £h Rajender Kumar Sardana, 3} EQuitat le mortgage of residential praparty situated at D-146, fnd tloer, New Rajnde~ Nagar, del -iin
the name of Sh Saursoh Tundcn 4) Equitable mo-tgage of factory Lang and Building at village Yan faheri, Bahadurgarh of the compary, beside: sersunal
guacaritee of directersh, R.K. Sardana, Smt, Indira Sardana, Sh. Szarabh Tandon , Mrs Priya Ahujc & Ms Poojs Sardana,

4] Rs.331 54 thousind {Pr. vear 523.23 thousand ) Including current maturities of iong tem debts From Indusind Bank Ltd are secured Agalnst respective Vehicte.

d) Rs1369.74 theerand (7 fear Wil) Including curvent imaturities of |3ng tem debts From SBI are secured against respective Veticie,

e) Repzyrent profi @ 0° Tern Lozn secured is listed below ;-

Ban« floan Af: Ha. FY 2024-25 FY 2025-28 From 2028-29

Axis Zank - TL 1500.20 4023.00 0.0)

Axis 2ank - FCTE 17416.24 15665.27 0.0

State Bank 0% Ind a - WCT_{ GECL) 7181.54 10985.18 0.00

Indus nd Ban'c 192.31 159.23|, 0.00

SBI{SVE CAR ILN] {47C22.934%2) 389.45 078.891| 0.00
4.2}

toan & Advancss frar refited darties of Rs. 17750 thowsand inclucss Rs 6650 thausand from dire ztars, {P.Y. Rs. 12800 thausand includes
3) Rs, 7303 thousand takan tcom Directors) .

3) Term Loan of Rs. 384.73 taacsznd Business lcan taken “rom BDFC Bank (td. & Rs, 935.59 thousand taken from 1C1C1 Bank Ltd

c) Repayment srofiie of “erm Luan en-secured is lisced below -
Bontk /loan Afc Ko. FY 2024-25 F¥ 2025-28 Frzv.2023-29
HDFC Bank 984.73 0.00
ICICI Zavk 535.59 0.00
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ALFA FLEXITUBES {P) LTD
M-439,1s5t Flaor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihat, Now DellFi-110087

Notes Farming integrad Port of the Salance Sheet as at 315t Morch, 2029
Note : 5 Deferrea Tax Ligbiitty /Net)

o . Asatdlst As at 315t
Sr.No ) Pacticuliy March, 2024 March 2023
1 Daferred Tax Liability (Nzt}
Refated ta fixed Assets & others 8,301.29 2,932.24
Tatal 2,301.29 1,932.24
Note : 6 Short Term Borrowings
As at 31st Asat 31ut
. [
5e.No Pasticutars March, 2024 March 2023
1 [Loan Repayable on Demand
Secured
- From Bank
Working Capital (Rafer Note 6.1 1,34,130.58 1,30,192.27
- From Qther
NSIC (t¢ (Reler Note €.2) . <,921.67
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt { Refer notes no-4; 2€,60097 20,1%1.64
Toal 1,62,731.54 1,6¢,250.57
Note: 6.1

Warking Capital Facllities of R5.94787,69 trousand { Previous yasr Rs.$123.67 thousand) from State bank of (ndla and Rs 20712.88
thousand from Axis Bznk Ltd { Previous Yea- - Rs.19673,59 thousand: ara P imasily Secured agalnst First Parrl Paseu Charge
Hypathecation ensire current assels {preseat and future), consistirg of raw mat 2rials, stores, stock-in-prasess anc i vished goods
lying in factory premisas as weil as o transib, documentry Inland ar d expor: bills books dabts, “ixed Deposits, Mutual Funds et . of
the Company and fLrther collateral secure 3 against 1) First Charge by eguitablz mortgage of Factory Land and 3uidiag sitvated at
Plot No 1726, MIE, Bahadurgar and Plot .o, 1743, MIE, Bahdurgath 2) Equitasle mortgage of freeehald resldentiat Flat No. -
439, FF at Hindustan Ca-op House Building Soclety In Guruharkishan nz2gar, Paschim Vihar, Dethi in the name of St Rajender Kumar
Sardana. 3} Equitable mortgage of residentil property slituated at D-145, 2id floor, New Rajinder Nagar, defhl .n the name f ¢h
Saurabh Tandon 4} Equitable mcrtzage of Tactory Land and Bullding at village Tandaheri, Bahadurgarh of the compzny. bessdes
personal guarantee of directer St Indira Sardana, Sh. Saurabh Tancon, Mrs Priya Ahuja. Ms Pooja Sardana & st F.K. Sardara

Ncte: 6.2
Raw matarial assistznce scheme o° Rs. N.I (Previous year Rs 4,521.67 thousand) secw.red against bank gLrantee of Rs
10,000 thawsand In fevour of NSIC Ltd.

Note : 7 Trades Payable

. As at 31st. As at Jist
Sr.No Particul
' uiars March, 2024 March,2033

1 [Sundey Cracuoes

a)  |Yotal Qutstanding dues of micra eaterpr.ses and smallentzsprises 16.465.46 -

b)  ITotal Qutstanding dues of othar m cro erterprises and sabienterprises 74, 584,04 1,08 5C2 11
Yotal 91,033.50 1,08.502.11

7.1  The details of amount cutrianding to Micro, Smail and M2cium Enterprises based or
available mformation w th the co.mpany s as under;

As At As At

Particulsrs 31st March, 2324 31st Marcy, 2024
Principal artount due and : 2maining unpaid - -
Interest due on above and the unpsid interest - -
Intereest paid - -
Payiment mada beyond he appointed day during the year - -
interest due and payabl2 for the period o! delay - -
Interest arcrued and remaining unpaid - -
Amgunt of ‘urther interzst semanining due and payable in - -
succeeding years
Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties nave beea identifiea on the bosis of -

information vollected by the Managemen:. This has been retied upan by the guditors.

‘hum%
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ALFA FLEXITURES (F}LTD
M-419,1s5t Floor, Gura Harkishan Nagar, Paschim vihar, New Delin-110087

Nates Farming Iptegrof Part of the Balance Sheet as ot 315t Murch, 2074

JTrade pavablos ageing schedute: Az 2315t M ol 2024

{Amounl iy Rb.]
Particulars Ontetanding far fallowinp pariods frem dus dats of payamul
Luss than § year 1-£ years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Totat
(i) MSME . 188544 - - 1846546
((i1) Others 74584.04 74584.04
(iii) Disputed dues- MSMFE . ' - -
|(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - ' -
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Gutstandlog for foliowing periods fram due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - - -
(i) Others 10735141 32.64 867.48 250.58 108502.11

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME

{iv) Disputed dues - Others

[n e




ALFA ELEXITUEES (P: .TD
M:439,Ist Floo:, GurrHarkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delh.-120087

Notes Forming Irtegral Part of the Balunce Sheet 25 at 31st March, 2024

Note : 8 Other Cusrent Liabilitles

' . As at 31st As at 31st
$r. No Partlculars
March,2024 Mzrch,2023
1 Advar.ce Fron Customers 3.638.53 6,615.22
2 Statutory Dues 4,032.25 5,881.73
Others Expenses Payable 10.302.03 8,657.56
Total 17.972.92 21,154.51
Note : 3 Short Term Provisions
%5, No Partleulzrs Asat3ist A5 at 31st
March,2024 WMzrch,2023
Provision fcr employees benefit
Gratuity pavible 17,166.58 17,343.73
pi Leave Sclary Jayatle 14,373.50 8.660.64
|Gther Provision
1 Provis-on for income Tax 5,807.58 5,814.41
Totat 37,347.66 31,818.78




Note : 10 Property, Plant and Squipment

2023-24
Depreciation as per Componics Act, 2013-5traight Line Method
(Al Amaunts ara In Thousand of indian Rupees ¢niess olitng nilye sldloud)
Gross Block DCepreciaton Net Glock
Deductlon
Particutars Volue o1 tne beginning | addition during Deduction Value at the v::::;:;:e d:f::r:t /Adjustmen anu:nt:: the WOV an Wiw os on
ni 3
N4 2023 the year Juring the year | end 31.03.2024 01.04.2023 year ¢ du;:: the 31.03.202¢ 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Prope: Plant and Lquineincuty )
Owncd Asiatt
Freehpld Lond
1|tand 30,850 30 RS0 - - 30,850 30,850
2{Buitding
Factory Bullding 1.12,236 6,586 - 1,18,822 4,790 3,757 - 12,547 106,275 1,03,446
3{Plant and Eaulmﬂts . . “ . . "
Plant & Machinery 2,11,106 16,974 1431.673 2,265,648 1,07,378 10,268 1360.28 1,156,285 1,10,363 1,03,728
Dies & Mouids 7,519 2,14} - 9,660 4,079 427 . 4,506 5.154 3,440
Electric lnstallation & Fiztings 5.699 BS - 5,783 1572 151 - 3,723 2,061 2,127
Tools Equipments 8,047 1,469 - 9516 4,708 356 - 5,064 4,452 3,339
4)|Furnjtures & 'Tatue . - - . -
Furnitute & Fixtures 5,674 3 - 5,682 2,859 350 - 3.209 2,473 2,815
S| Matar yehictor . - - - . N
Vehicha{Cas ) 9.559 2,152 1,375 10,335 7,581 755 1,217 7,159 3,176 1,978
3 ce Equipmen - - . . .
Office Equipments 1,826 425 - 2,251 860 156 1,016 1,234 Y6b
7 Somputars - - - . -
Computers 986 91 - 1.076 708 106 - 814 262 278
TOTAL (A) 3,93,502 29,929 2,807 4,220,623 1,40,534 16,367 2,577 1,54,324 2.66,300 2,52,967
INTANGIBLE ASSCTS
Software 545 - - 545 464 54 518 27 -3}
TOTAL {B} 545 545 464 $4 - 518 27 81
Capital Work.n-progress
LF n hin 6,612 6.001 10,049 2,565 - 2,565 6,612
Building WiP 0,586 6,585 - - - - 6,386
IALe 13,198 6,001 16,634 2,5R% . . 2,565 13,193
Total (A veL) (Cunrent
Ye3r) 4,072,244 35,930 19,441 4,23,733 1,40,994 16,420 2,577 1,54,841 2,68,892 2,66,246
{Previous Year) 4,027,459 10,477 10,63% 4,07,297 1.33,076 17,670 9,695 1,41,052 2,656,296 2,74,383
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ALFA FLEXITUBES {P) LTE

M-433, st Floor, Gu-u Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as ct 31st March. 2024
(All Amounts are in Thousand of Indian Rupeas unizss other wise slated}
Note : 11 Long Term Loaas and Advances

Sr. Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
No ’ - March,2024 March,2023
{Unsecured, considerzd good)
1 { Securitv Deposit 3,114,33 2.850.75
Total 3,114.33 2.850.73

Note : 12 Inventaries { As Taken Volued & Certifizd by the Management )

Sr. | . - . - - . Asat31st As at 31st
Particulars -~ o

No March,2024 March 2023
1| Rew Mzteriat 44,530,143 51,946.88
2 | Work-ir-Progress/Sem.i- Finished Goods 75,195.89 7C 662.0-
3 | “inished Goods . 5,724.36 2.166.63
4 [ Stores & Spares, packing material etc. 13,002.22 1C.065 60
5 | Goods-in-transit - 2,231,562
Total 1,38,452.91 1,37.072.64

Note ! 13 Trode Receivab.es

Sr. As at 31st As at 31st

Particula
No articulars March,2024 Merch,2023

[Unsecured , Consideted good)

1| Trade receivable considered good-secured . .

2 | Trade receivable considered good-Unsecured 1,42,911.36 1,53.224.1¢5
3 | Trede receivable whick having significant increas2 in credit risk 751.29 751.2¢
4

Trede receivable- credit impaired

Total 1,43,662.65 1,53,975.48



Receivab.es

ik o cedl undald.

dlbee et ittt . -

ALFA FLEXITUBES {P) LTD
M-433 st Floor, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087

fAMOuintin Ry ]

Paruculars Outstanding for following ]wrin_rk fram due date of payment
Less than 6 ' .
Months 0 Muomlis-1 vear 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Yotal
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good h B 1,27,719,70 5,621.40 2,230.85 1,788.47 4, 128.28 1,42 485
{in) Undisputed Trade Reccivables ~ which have significant incraase in eredit risk .
(211} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credst impaired _ N
(2¥) Bisputed Trade Receivables-considered good - 422.66 423
Lv) Disputed Trade Recivabies - which have significanl increase jn credit risk - - 75129 751
{v1) Wisputad ‘frade Receivables - credit imparred - - - -
de b : — {Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymenr
Lessthan 6
Months & Manths-1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Totat
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,27,735.13 2,486.90 2,155.98 1,773.83 18,649.69 1,52,802
i) Undisputed Trade Receivahles - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
uv) Visputed Trade Recelvables-considered good ] - 422.66 423
{v) Disputed Trade Recelvables - svhich have significant increase in credit risk - - - - 761.29 751

vi} tisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

p N
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ALFA

FLEXITUBES (P} LTD

M-433,Ist Flocr, Gura Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Deial-110087

Note ; 14.1 Cash & Cash Equivalent
sr, ' F-’articul"rs As at 31st Asat3lst
No © March,2024 March,2023
Cash-in-Hand 110.66 25.96
Balasce with Bank - R
-In Current Accounts 6,522.30 2,475.80
-Fixed Deposit with 3ank { As Margin Money including interest accrued 1.259.00
thereom - e
3
6,632.96 3,753.76
Note : 14.2 Other Bar:k Bolances
Sr. particula-s As at 31st As at 31st
No . Warch,2024 Mareh, 2023
Fixed Depuosits # 14,2 9.622.92 10.375.27
1 {{With Matirity More Than 3 Months) e Rt
2 | Mutual Fund 2,500.00 -
12,122.92 10,375.27
Note 14.2: Fixed Daposizs held witt Bank as margin monies.
Note :15 Short Terms Loans and Advances
8r. As at 31st Asat 3ist
Pzartlculars
No - i March,2024 March, 2023
{Unsezured, Consicered good)
1 Advan:e 10 Suppliers 2,081.03 2,452.16
2 Advan:e z0 Emplcyees & / others and Other receivables 343.45 37389
3 Advan:e Income Tax/TDS/TCS/MAT 5,873.08 | 225871
4 Ba ance Witk Revenue Authorities 18,616.34 | 25,2433
Total 27,913.90 32,200.99
Note :26 Cther Current Aisets
St .Particu!ahr's 45 3t 31st As at 31st
No N Iv.arch,2024 March,2023
1] Prepaid Expenses 451,01 S23.03
2 | Defferod revenue expreses - £C1.97
Expenses recoverzble 76.75 56.73
Total 567.76 581.73




ALFA FLEXITUBES {P} LTD
M-433,Ist Floor, Gury Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi-110087
Notes Forming Part of the Profit & Loss Accounts as g 31st March, 2024

(All Amounts are in Thousand of Indian Rupees unfess ather wise stated)

Note: 17 Revenie from Operations

. St s o2 St T For the year For the year
& P lars :
No k . Particular _ 2023-24 2022.23
1 | Sale of preducts ( 55 Hose & Connector) - Domestic 4,08,987.52 3,39,534.34
- Export* 2,93,799,50 3,46,263.04
Total 7,02,787.02 6,85,757.38
*Exaort includes Deemed Export
Note : 18 Other Income
Sr. i Far the year For the year
p | .
No articulars 2023-24 2022.23
1 | Export Benefit 4,113.16 6,762.05
2 | nterest Income 733.80 986,40
3 | EPF Subsidy received (PMPRY} 68.42 466.18
4 | Freight Outward {Seles} 375.83
5 | Foreign exchanze difference income - 9,227.63
6 | Proft onszle o fixed assets 778.2% -
7 | Other Misc Income - 70.22
Totai 5,693.65 17,888.30
Note : 18 Cast of Material Corsumed
sr., cdr } Fartheyear | Forthe year
X Partlcul .
No . ranodars 2023-24 202223
a)
Qpeaing Stock 62,012.49 56,025.54
1 j Purchase of Raw, Packing Material and Stores ete 4,09,055.05 4,35,695.80
{incivding Freight)
4,71,067.54 4,91,721.34
Closi1g Stock 57,532.66 62,012.49
Total 4,13,534.88 4,29,707.85
Note : 20 Change in Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
3r. For the year For the year
Particula :
Ha articulars 2023-24 2022-23
1| Invertaries at the beginning of the year
Finisted Goods 2,166.€3 5,175.75
Wark'In progress 70,662.C1 69,881.49
Total {A) 72,828.64 75,057.24
2 | Inventories at the end af the year
Finished Goads 5,724.36 | 2,166.63
Work In progres:. 75,195.89 70,662.01
Total B) 80,5920.25 72,828.64
Net { A-B) 8,091.69 2,228.60
Note : 21 En-ployement Benefit Expenses
Sr. ' For the year For the year
articul
No Particulars 2023-24 202223
1 | Selaries and 'Wagzs and other benefits 1,24,548.77 1,06,034.83
2 | Comtridution to PF 4,262.26 3,822.72
3 | Staff Welfare Expenses 5,498.15 4,288.15

Total

1,34,309.18 |

1,14,145.70

/’2;53./
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ALFA

FLEXIYUBES (P}LTD

v1-439,Ist Flear, Guru Harkishan Nagar, Paschim Vihaz, New Delhl-213087
Notas Forming Part of the Proftt & Loss Accoun’s as at 31st March, 2224

Note :22 Finence Cast
Sr. ) Fortheyear | Forthe year
it
No Particulars 202324 202223
1 | Intereston Borrowings 15,148.24 16,964.28
2 | Other Borrawlng cests 2,685.11 3,982.38
3 ] Other Interest 2,275.10
Total 24,108.45 20,946.66
Nole: 23 Depreciation & Amertization Cost
sr. For the year for the year
P;
No articulars 2023-24 202223
1 | Depreciation 16,420.32 17,670.30
2 | Deferred Revenue exp. W/off 401.97 401.97
Total 16,822.29 18,072.27
Nate : 24 Other Expenses
Sr. Forthe year For the year
Particula
No rars 2023-24 202223
Manufacturing Expenses
% | Power & Fusl Consumed/ Electricity chg. 13,556.17 13,567.63
Z § Plant Repalr & Muintenance 8,706.49 9,433.12
3 | Building Repalr & Maintenance 907.36 446.11
4 | lob work charges 8,939.76 5,833.97
Administrative and Dther expenes
1 | Travelling Expenses {inluding Foreign Travelfing) 2,969.65 3,584.09
2 | Insurance 860.23 856.44
3 | Repair & Maintenanze (Others} 725.58 614.74
4 | Vehicle Running & Maintenance 1,682.87 1,633.27
5 | Other Misc, Expenses 55.53 230,11
6 | Computer Repa'r & Malt Exp. 146.66 152.13
7 | Postage & Courier Expenses 320.95 162.24
8 | Printing & Stationery 271.73 273.57
9 | Telephone & Internet Expenses 476.09 435.79
1¢ | Rent,Rates & Taxes 9,208.57 8,867.53
13 | Legal & Professional Charges 4,189.25 2,407.52
12 | Security charges 2.873.86 2,350.73
13 | Payment to Auditor = 531.25 396.00
14 | Fee & Subscriptions 144,25 120.61
15 } Loss on Forward Contracts {Net} 383.95 3,111.30
16 | Misc Balance w/off 8,909.45 5,313.69
17 | £ECGC Premium 130.51 303.19
18 | 1oss on sale of expors license 55.24 440.21
19 | Misc, Statutory payirents 1,453.12 84.61
20 | Loss on Sale of Fxed Assets - 243.47
23 | GST Penalty 208.88 -
24 | Foreign exchangea diference 8,691.37
Selling and Distribution Expenses
1 | Testing Charges 232.27 193.54
2 | Advertisernent & Publicity 614.98 85279
3 | Loading & Unicading Charges 1,987.38 1,230.42
4 | tate dellvery charges . 44,47
5 | Commission 2,552,68 2,878.04
6 | Frelght Qutward 19,554.79 38,428.13
Total 2,01,340.88 1,05,494,46
* Payrient to Auditor
gr. For the year For the year
‘ Particul
No . Particulars 102324 2022.23
1 | Audit Fees 300.00 300.00
Company Law Matter; [ROC Filing Fees, Cersification &
2 |other matters/Reimbursement) 231,25 96.00
Total $31.25 396.00
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Staiement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note: 01 Accounting policies / compliance of Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
‘Chartered Accountants of India.

(1) AS 1: Disclosure of accounting policies

These financial staternents have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notified
undler the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

{2) AS 2: Valtation of inventories
Raw Material, Spares parts & Consumables anc Goods in Transit are valued at W. Avg. basis.

Werk-in-Progress/Semi-Finished Goods are valued at cost.
Finished goocs are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.

Scraps are valued at net realizable value.

:3) AS 3: Cash flow statements
-ndirect Method is used fer preparing the Cash Flow Statement as prescribed in Accounting
Standard (AS)-3.

14) AS 4: Contingencies and Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
There are no significant events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that materially affect the
tinancial statements for the current year,

(5) AS 5: Net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
all items of income and expense in the period are included in the determination of net profit for
the period, unless specifically mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements or is required by an
Accounting Standard.

Exceptional itom is the transactions which due to their size or incidence are provided separately
disclosed in statement of Prcfit & Loss.

6) AS 7: Accounting for Construction Contracts
“he above standard is not applicable to the Company as it is not engaged in the business of
construction.

{7} AS 9: Revenue recognition
[ncome of the company is derived from sale of sroducts and is net of sales returns, trade and cash

discounts. r s
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Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all signjfiéant risks and rewards of
ownership to the buyer, it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection.

Domestic Sales are recognized on the basis of invoices raised and exclude sales return and
adjustment for discount if any,

Export Sales are recognized on the basis of sales invoices raised and removal of goods from the
factory premises.

Interest incomes are recognised using the time proportion method based on the rates implicit in
the transaction.

(8) AS 10: Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and
equipment are ready to use, as intended by Management. Depreciation is provided on Straight
Line Method based on the useful life defined in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

There is no significant variance in the useful life between the components of assets (whose cost is
significant in relation to total cost of respective assets) and the useful life of respective assets
Hence, the depreciation has been computed for the whole of assets.

The gross blocks of fixed assets are shown at the cost of acquisition which includes taxes, duties
(net of excise duty credit availed) and other identifiable direct expenses incurred upto the date the
asset is put to use.

Capital work in progress of plant & machinery Rs. 2564.577 thousands not yet capitalized.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period of time to ge:
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period tili such assets
are ready :0 be put to use.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of Profit & Loss when
incwrred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the assets and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in
the statement of profit & loss.

(9) AS 11: Accounting for the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the yearend are restated at year end rates. In
case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the
yearend rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the
premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on scttlement or on translation is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of long term liabilities, where they
relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which casc they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
assets.

(10) AS 12: Accounting for Government grants

The company is receiving subsidy from Goverrunent during the year. The company is receiving
EPF contribution from Government under PMRPY Scheme and same incentive is being shown in
other income.

Duty draw back are recognized on the basis of export invoice issued and removal of goods from
the factory.

Export benefits are recognised on shipment basis and on reasonable certainty of collection.

(11) AS 13: Accounting for Investments
The company has not held any investment.

(12} AS 14: Accounting for amalgamations
This standard is not applicable as there was no amalgamation during the year.

(13} AS 15: Accounting for Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in excha nge for the
services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
specified contributions to a separate entity The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards Frovident Fund and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

Defined benefit plans
Provision for gratuity has been made as per Gratuity Act.
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retirement or availing the leave at credit before retirement. The provision of outstanding earned
leave has been provided.

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are being recognized as an expense in
the profit and loss account on the basis of provision made.

(14) AS 16: Borrowing costs

Interest on borrowings to finance fixed assets are capitalised only if the borrowing costs are
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred on alteration / temporary constructions is charged off as
expenditure under appropriate heads of expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which it is incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

(15) AS 17: Segment reporting
The Company operates in the same segment which is subject to similar risks and returns.

(16) AS 18: Related party disclosures
Disclosures of transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are
given in Note no. 27, of the notes to accounts

{(17) AS 19: Accounting for Leases

The Company has recognized the leased payments under operating lease as an expense in the
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Disclosure of lcase rentals
payables given in Note No. 33 of the notes to accounts.

The company has not entered into any financial lease.

(18) AS 20: Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Profit and loss Account. Basic earnings per shares is
computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted
average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year,
except when the results would be anti-dilutive. There is no diluted earnings per share as there are
no dilutive potential equity shares.

(19) AS 21: Consolidated financial statements
The above standard is not applicable to the company as it does not have any subsidiary company.

(20) AS 22: Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured as the amount
expected 1o be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income tax Act, 1961.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between laxable
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

The company reviews carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date. The
company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available. :

> bbssm“
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(21) AS 23: Accounting for Investments in associates in Consolidated Financial Statements
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(22} AS 24: Discontinuing Operations
The Company has not discontinued any operations during te year,

'(23) AS 25: Interim Financial Reporting
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(24) AS 26: Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and
include amounts added on revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any, The cost of intangible assets comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net cherges
on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributzble
to the intangible assets.

Intangible Assets
These are amortized as under;-

Particulars Amortization

Computer Software over the period of 5 years

(25) AS 27: Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures
The above standard is not applicable to the Company.

(26) AS 28: Impairment of Assets

At the Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indicaticn of
impaizment in the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any such indication exists,
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amourit. The impairment loss recognized in
prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverzble
amount.

(27) AS 29: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when -hcre
is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outlcy of
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in point no. 25 of notes on
accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statemert for the year ended 31st March, 2024
NOTE: 25 Contingent Liabiliti_es and Commitments (to the extent not provided for);

There are no Continger.t liabitities, during the year 2023-24 except mentioned as under: -
a) Outstanding Bank Guarantee of Rs.6224.23 Thousand (Previous year Rs. 9037.00 Thousand)
b) Liabilities on account of letter of credit are Rs.1659.78 Thousand (Previous year Rs. 30093 00

Thousand)

¢) Liabilities on zccount of TDS outstanding demand of Rs. 97.58 Thousand (Previous year Rs.97.58
Thousand)

d) The company has issucd the legal notice or filed suits against the following debtors in view of

amount yet 10 be received from them:-

S.No. | Party Name Amount Invsived (Rs Amount Involved (Rs. Status as on datzx of
in thousaad.) in thousan) Signing of Finanzial S atemuent
31.03.2024 31,03.2023
1. India Flex Tndustries Pyt, Lid. 391.55/- 39755/~ | SuitPending
2. M/s Finz Flex Industries 422.674- 422.67/- | Decrecin favor at the

Company along wilh ¢cst of the Sut
QrRs. 26 470/

3. M/s. Accurate Hvdraulics Engg, 359.74/- 359.74/- | Notice has been wssted ut yet 1o be
received by Parn

NOTE: 26  Related party disclosure as per Accounting Standard 18

a) Parties where cantrol exists: NIL

b) Other parties with whom the company has entered into transactions during the year:-
)] Key Management Personnel
it)

Mr. Saurabl Tandon - Director

Mrs. Indra Sardanz - Director

Ms. Pooja Sardana - Director

Mrs, Priya Ahuja - Director

Mr. Rajendra <umar Sardana- Director (Resigned on 01.07.2023)

ii) Relatives of Keey Management Personnel

Mrs. Asha Arora - Sister of a Director
Mus. Shama Chugh - Sister of a Director
"Mrs. Shivanzi Charan Tandon - Spouse of a Director




ALFA FLEXITUBES {P) Lt

ALFA FLEXITUBES PVT. LTD.

Disclasure of refated party transaction for the F.Y. 2023-24

Annexure -l Afl smount are in Thousand
Key Management Personed Desig . ation _ Inters Rent Unsecured loan O/s Remuneration Gfs Interest Ofs
2023-24 2021-23 2023-24 2022-23 312023-22 |2022.23 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2024| 31-03-2023| 31-03-2024] 21.93-2023
Saurabh Tandon Director 8,400.00 254397 338.60 192.00 - - 3.350.60 1,600.00 451.20 362.97 90.45 -
Indra Sardana Director 6,500.00 4,291.80 20205 7200 480.00 480.00 1,700 00 600.00 300 09 215.93 43.90 -
Pooja Sardand i -~ '+ |Diroctar 10,600.00 3.300.01 108241  306.00 550,00 707.64 275.0)
friya Ahuja . .~ iDirector 3,200,080 1,920.00 133,00 192.00 - - 1,500.00 1,000.60 208.57 1G72.G6 43.20 -
[Rajendra Kumar Sardana Ditector 1,600.00 8,625.47 626.40 174,00 - - 1,450.00 - 366.G8 - -
Total 0 30400f  257a3,248]  1527.207 936 480 420 6650 7800] 1787.5]  1383.071 179.55} |
Iative of Key A ersonel Dec Prof £xp. /R fon (Rs.) Interest Rent Unsecured loan Ofs R ation Ofs Interest /s
" = 7 2u2s-ia 2022-23 2023-24 J2ves-¢s  |2v2s-em |2022-23 31-03-2028)  33-03-2023F  31-03-2028| 31-03-2023| z1-v3-204a| 21-0s-2023
Asha Arora R ‘[ sister of Director 0 [ 175.5 1755 0 0 1200 1300 0 0 39.487 O
Shama Chug ot K Sister of Director Q 2 135 101.25 480 480 1000 1000 0 Q 30.375 0
Shivangi Charan Tandon ... . ~-3'| Spouse of Director 5600.004 3080.004 324 324 g [ 2700 2700 291.836 0 729 ]
|Su||l| Ahwja Spause of Director A700.006 1120.003 0 1] 0 Q < [4 Q a 1] 0
|rxsardana - T = - f wae: |Spouse of Director 1800.0C¢ 0 a 0 4 0 6100 0 Y 0 164.7 1]
Tirtoki Nath Chug Brother in Law of Qirector 0 0 0 33,75 0 0 Q0 0 0 0 0 0
| Tatal 11600.01 6200.007 $34.5 €34.5 430 480 11190 50400; 291.836 0 307.462 1]
IRy

- e s
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Mr. Sumit Ahuja - Spouse of a Director
Mr. TirlokiNath Chug - Brother in Law of a Director
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sardana - Spouse of a Director

iif)  Enterprises over which key management personnel and relativss of such personnel
exercise significant influence:- NIL

c) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions given in Annexure-1.

NOTE: 27  The Computation of Earnings per Share; -

2023-2024 2022-23
Profit afler rax for the year (Rs. In thousand) | 20279.96 10983.43
Weighted Average Number Of Equity shares | 34,82,273 34,82,273
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share 5.82 3.15
Face Value of equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 |

NOTE: 28  Disclosure in respect of Derivative Instruments: -

a) Derivate h:struments of Nil (Forward Exchange Contract) (Previous year Nil) outstanding as at 31 March,
2024,
b) Forsign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments as at 31 March, 2024; -
{In thousand)
Particulars USD EURQ GBP ALD AED
Import Trade Payables 76.511 - - - -
{(71.39) (=) (-) (-) {-)
Expert Trade Receivables 411.59 2.27 79.7% -- -
{648.67) (2.27) (77.36) (--) (-)
Advance from Customers 58.82 -- 0.142 - --
(67.91) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Figures in Brackets represents previous year figures
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NOTE:29  Value of imported and indigenous Raw Material, Store and Spare parts and packing material
consunzcd end percentage of cach to the total consumption as Certified by the management: -

[tem 2023-24 2022-23
(In Thousand) (¥n Thousand)
Value (Rs.) % age Value (Rs.) % age
Imported 55600.49 13.45 30753.83 7.16
Indigenous 357934.39 86.55 398955.03 92.84
413534.88 140.60 429708.85 100.00

NOTE:30  C.LF.Value of Import

2023-24 2022-23
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Raw Material& Consumebles 55483.48 30753.83
NOTE:31 Expenditure iz Foreign Currency
2023-24 2022-23
(Rs.) (Rs.)
-Commiss’on 1624.93 1899.77
-Tour & Travel 427.71 785.46
NOTE:32  Earning in Foreign Currency
2023-24 2022-23
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Exports at FOB Value 284887.49 329072.86

NOTE: -33  Lease .
The Company has taken factory premiscs af Pune (Maharashtra) where the rent agrezment 1s
vatid till 31* March 2025, and 1727 MIE Bahadurgarh Haryana where the rent agrezment is
valid till 3% March 2024 on lease. Lease Rental amounting to Rs. 6,14,625/- & 80,000/-P.M.
respectively has been debited to statement of proit and loss accounts.

The lease rz:tal charges during the period are as 7ollows:

Particulars ' Year ended 31% March
2024 2023
Lease Renl §335.50 /- 833£.50/-
Less: Capitalized during the year NIL NIL

Net debited to Profit & LLoss A/c 8335.50 /- 8335.50/-




Details of lcasc agreemznt are enuraerated £s undzr: -

Property Taken on lease Factory situated at Village -Navalakh Umtre
Taluka, Maval District, Pune Maharashtra and a-
1727 MIE Bahadurgarh Haryzna

Date of tarminaticn of lzase 31.03.2025

Escalation Clause ' NIL

Term of senewal On the sole direction of lessor as per manually
agreed term & conditions.

Fuarchase option No

The obligation on long term, operzting {ease payable as per the rentals stated in thz respective agreements
are as follows:

Future minimum lease Payable Year ended 315March
2024 2023

Net later than One year : 7375.51 8335.51

Lazzr than one year but noi later than S years - 7375.51

NOTE:34 With refererice to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dt, 24.¢3.2021
w.r.t. amnendments in Schedule 111, additional regulatory informatior: undsr
arc under;

{1} Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company:

Details of Title deeds of Immovable Prooerty not held in name of the Company is below:

‘Amount in ¥ Thousand)

Whetaer title B
deed holder iz a i
Relevant promoter, Property Reason for |
line item | Description of | Gross Title deeds director or held not being
in the item of carrying | held in the relative# of since held in the
Salance property value name of promotzr*fdirect which name of tie
Sheet or or employee of date company
promoter/directo
T

PPE - - - - -

Investment
property - - - - -

PPZ retired
from act.ve
use ansd
held for
dispossz)

Others
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#Relative here means relative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

*Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

fii) Disclosures regarding whather revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered

Valuer:

No revaluation took place during the year.

{ili) Disclosures of Loans or Advancec granted Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related

parties:

No Loans or Advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs an

the year.

{iv] Capital-Work-in-Progress {CWIP):

d the related parties during

CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Towl In
Thousand.
Less Than. 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More
1 year than 3
years
Building - . - .
WIP
Plant & 2564.5¢& - - - 2564.58 7
Machinery
WIP
{v) Intangible Assets ur:der Development:

{a) Details of intangible Assets under Developraent Aging Sche-Adule:

(Amount in ? Thousand)

Intangible assets
under development

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 Total

years

Projects in Progress:

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total
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{b} Letails of Intangible £ssets under Development Completion Schedule:

{Amrount in ¥ Thousand;

Ambount in CWIF for a period of

Intangible assets
under develooment

Less tkan 1
year

1-2 year

2-3 years

More than 3

yeurs

Prajects in Progress:

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

{vi) Details of Benami Pzoperty held:

No Benami Property held by thz company as on 31.03.2024,

{vii} Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets:

The company has submitted the provisionel Jnzansial data 10 bankers or: time to time basis.

{viii) Wilful Defaulter:

The compzny has not teen dsclared wilful defaulter by any bank or fnancial Institution or
other lender as on 31.03.202<.

(ix) Relationship with Struck Off Companies:

The compary has not made any transact:on curing the year with companies struck off
under section 248 of Companies Axt, 2013 or section £60 of Companies Act, 1956,

(%) Registration of charges or catisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyonc the

slatutory geriod.

{xi) Compliance with number of layers of compaunies:

The provise to clause {87} of sezticn 2 of the Companiss Act, 2013 provides for restricting
class or classes of holding companies frem havizg layers of subsidiaries bevend
prescribsd number. The above provision :s not applicable on the company.
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{=ii) Various Ratios:
Details of the various ratios are as below:
%
S. . Formula %/ in .
NO. Type of Ratio (Numerator/Denon:inatorj times FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 | Varianc
c
. Current Assets / Current [ In number
a) | Current Ratio Liabilities of times 1.07 1.04 3%
Debt-Equity Totai Debts / Sharcholder’s | In number o
b Ratio Equity of times 113 1.38 "16%
Debt Service: Earnings for dett service | In number : o
c) Coverage Ratiz /Debt service of times 0.79 0.58 21%
) Return on. Profit After Tax / 0 o
d) Equity Ratis Shareholder’s Ecuity % 58% 32% e
{nventory Cost of goods sold / In number
¢ Turnover Raric Average Inventcry of times 4.27 4.38 3%
Trade o~ 4 ,
0 | Recowapies | Nt Zredit Sales / Average In number 4.72 4.88 3%
Turnover Ratio of umes
Trade Payables Net Credit Purchase / In number
g) Turnover Ratio Average Trade Payables of times 4.47 3.32 3%
Net Capital “Turnover / Captal In number o
h) Turnover Ratio Employed of times 3.44 3.73 -8%
i} [ Net Prcfit Ratio Net Profit / Total I.come % 2.86% 1.56% 83%
Return on -
i) Cupital pr‘lf: f;fgff‘l / *3“” % 10% 6% 65%
Emploved ~ap ploy=
Relurs on Profit from class of
k) Y assets/Market value of the % N.A. VA, 0%
Investment )
] such class of assets

Explanations for changes in the ration by more than 25% as comparzd to preceding year

are as helow:

a) In Return on Equity Ratio, current vear profit is ¥ 20279.97 thousand comparing to
previeus year's profit of ¥ 10983.04 thousand. This resulted intc positive return for

Equity,

b) Iu Trade Payatle Turnover Ratio, Net Credit Purchase and Averzge Trade Payables
in current year is ¥ 409055.05 thousand and ¥ 91543.07 thousand whereas in last
year it ¥ 43569£.80 thousand end ? 131045.75 thousand resgectively. It rosulted in to
increzse in the ratio comparing te previous year.

c} In Ret Profit Ratio, Current ycar Profit after Tax of £ 20279.97 tiousand comparing
to previous year’s profit of ¥ 10983.04 thousand. This resulted in:o posizive net profit

ratio.

d) In Return on Capital Employed Ratio, Due to Profit a’ter Tax of 2 20279.97
thousard comparing to previous year’s profit of ¥ 10983.04 thousand. This resulted
ino positive ratio comparing to previous year.
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(xiil} Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements:

No any scheme under section 230 ta 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been approved
for the company. ’

{xiv} Utilization of Borrowed Funds & Share Premium:

Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or antity(s},
including foreign entities {Intermediaries).

{xv) Undisclosed Income:

Fer the year, there is no undisclosed income or any transaction whic are not recorded in
thz books of account.

{xvi} Detzils of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

Tke Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virual currency during
th2 year.

NOTE:35  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever necessary to correspend
with the current year classification/disclosure. This adoption does nat impact recognition and
measurement p-inciples followed for preparation of financial statements as at 31st March,
2024,

As per our report of even date attached

For GSK & Associates LLP For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ’
FRN: 813838IN/N504003

CA Anil Kumar Somani Rajendra Kumar Sardana SaurabhTandon
Designated Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No. ~ 093521 DIN:-00732421 DIN:-01994533

Place: New Dethi A\
Date:25.06.2024 AN
VOIN: 24093521 BkB FxSQu e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS CF
Alfa Autotech Pvt. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the azcompanying financial stater-e:ts of Alfa Autctech Private Limited

{"the Company”) which comprises the Balance Shezt 25 at March 31, 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies anc other explanatory informat’on.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Ac: in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles gene-ally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Campany as at March 31, 2024, and Loss for the yzar ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our zudit in accordance with the Stendards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Comparies Act, 2013. Our responsibilitis under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemen:s section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Incia iogether with the ethical requirements that arz relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with thece requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we havz obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the finz ~cial statements as a whole, and infcrming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate cpinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit natters as per SA 701, Key Audit Mztters are not apglicable to the Company asit
is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the oth2r information. The otver informaztion
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statemenzs
and our auditor’s report thereon, The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

) information identified above wher: it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statem2nts or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Repart, If we conclude that there is @ material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant lzws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated ir section 134(S} of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial stataments that give
a true and fair view of the finencial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptad in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under sectior 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records ir accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregula-ities; selection and
application of appropriate imp ementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasoqab e and prudent; and design implementation and maintenance af
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prepa-ation and presantation of the finarcial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from mate-ial misstatement, whether d se to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Compary’s ability to
continue as a going concern, cisclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the ccmpany’s financial repor:ing process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetaer the financial statements as a whcle
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aucitor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gua-antee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exis:s.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financia! stztements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professianal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of th2 financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform auiit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficiert and appropriat2 to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve zollusion, forgery, Intentlonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{z}(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opin on on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controts with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of acccunting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based o1 the audit evidence cobtained, whether a material incertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ¢ bility to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requ.red to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qu- conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content cf the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarcing, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of th2 audit and sign.ficant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemant that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements régarding independence, and to comm unicate with them all relationships and
other masters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that wer2 of most sigrificance in the audit of the financial statements of the currant period and are
therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in out auditor’s report unless law or regulation
preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should naot be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Zompanies Act, 2013 is not
applicabl2 to the company and hence not commented upon.

As required by Section 133(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanatians which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
fa- as it appears from our examination of those books.

. The Balance Shezt, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
th s Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of tre Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2C14.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2: of the Act.

f. W th respect to the adequacy of the interna! financial controls cver financial reporting of the
Ccmpany, the company is under exemption category vide MCA notification dated 13th June
2017 {G.5.R. 583 E}) therefore not commented upon.

g. W.th respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations whicy would impact its financial
position.
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for whizh
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entitles,
including forelgn entities ("intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like an
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, "o
funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understandir.g, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend aor invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {iv) (a) and {iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

{(vi) No dividend declared or paid during the year by the company, therefore compliance of

section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(vii) The Company is maintaining its books of account manually during the year. Consequently,

the company is not required to comply with the provisions related to audit trail and
reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companles {Audit and Auditor) Rules 2014 is rot
applicable.

IF'or GSK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 013838N/NS00003)

~F—

(CA Anil Kumar Somani)
Designated Partner
M.No. 093521

Place: New Delhi

Date: 20/06/2024
UathN: QUOQBSZ!BKBPXT'HG'{
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-439, 1ST FLOOR, GURU HARKRISHNA NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI-110087
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024 '
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317

{ All amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)
. Amouﬁt as at Armount as at
Particul . Note No.
articutars : - | hoteRo 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
{a) Share Capitai : 2 10,000.00 10.000 00
(b} Resasves & Surpius 3 81,000.00 81,000 00
(2)Non Current Liakilities
{a) Lonz Term Borrowings 4 25,206.00 25,206 00
(3] Ct rrent Liabilities
{(2) O:her Current Liabilities 5 3,027.98 2.760111

Total Equity & Liabilities 1,19,233.98 1,18,966.11
(LASSETS
{1) Non- Current Assets
{a) Non Current Investments & 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00
{b) Other Non Current Assats 7 4,336.19 4,06..83
(2] Current Assets
{a) Cash end Cash Equivalents 8 897.79 504.23

Yotal Assets 1,19,233.98 1,18,966.11

¢ znif cant Accounting Pol.cies &

Noes ¢n Financial Statemants 1t 10

As se- Our report of even date

FOR 55K & ASSOCIATES LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For Alfa Autotech Private Limited

e T,

{RAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA)  SAURABE TANDONE
{ Anil Kumar Somari)

DIRECTOR ZIRECTOR
Cesignated Partner DIN: 00732421 ~IN: 01994583
hlembarship No, : 093521 .

Place : New Delhi
Cate:20/06/24
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
M-339, 1ST FLCOR, GURU HARKRISHNA NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI-110087
Statement of Profit & Loss Account For the year ending 31.03.2024
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317
( All amounts are in Hundred of Indlan Rupees Unless otherwlse stated)
Sr Figures as at the | Figures as at the end
N ’ Particulars Note No. end of current | of previous reporting
o reporting perlod periad
i lincome:
Revenus2 from operatiors
Other Income - .
Total income - -
L|Expenses:
Cost of Goods sold .
{I} [Financlal Costs - .
{ii) |Other Expenses 9 274.36 27359
Tota! Expenses 274.36 273.59
Profit before exceptioral and extraordinary items and tax (274.36) (273.59)
2{Tax expense:
{1) Current tax
{2) Deferred 1a¢
3 Prafit{Lass) frarm the parld frem continulng operations , (274.36) (273.59)
4|Profit/{Loss) far the pe-iod - {274.36) {273.59)
5|Less: Tr{ to pre-operative expenses (274.36) {273.59)
Earning per equity share:
{1) Basic
{2} Dilutec
Significant Accounting Polizies
Notes on Financial Statements 11010
As per our Report of even date
FOR GSK & ASSCQCIATES LLP For Alfa Autotech Private Limited
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 013838N/S00003N DJ\/-\B“‘ M ,{}M
&_9) IRAJENDRA KUMAR SARDANA) (SAURABH TANDCN])
{ Anil Kumar Somani) DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Designated Partner DIN: 00732422 DIN: 01994583
Membership No.: 293521 i
Place : New Delhi L
Date : 20/06/24
UDIN: 9409252 1 BkB EX T717¢Y
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Fo ming Integral Port of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024
{ All amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

Note : 2 Share Capital

Sr. . Amount as at Amount as at
Particulars
No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 |AJTHORIZED CAPITAL
230 000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 25,000 00 25,000.00
(F.Y 2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.)
25,000 00 25,000.00
2 )ISSUED & SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL
90,C00 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 9,000 00 9,000.00
{F.Y 90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- ezch)
9,000.00 9,000.00
3 |PAID UP CAPITAL
90,C00 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully Paid up 9,000.00 9,000.00
{F.Y 90,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- ezch, Fully Paid up}
4 |SHARE FORFEITED ACCOUNT
20,CO0{P.Y 20,000) Equly Shares of Rs, 10/- each 1,000 00 1,000.00
Paid up @ Rs. 5/- Each
Totz) 10,000.00 10,000.00
InNos In Nos
{a) [Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 80,000.00 90.000.00
Adc: Fully Paid up Shares issued during the year 0.00 0.00
Equ ty Shares at the end of the year 90,000.00 90,000.00
{b) _Lstof Share holders having more thar 3% Shares {in Nos)
Name Of Shareholders {n Nos In Nos
1 |Rajendra Kumar Sardana
No of Shares 60,000.00 60,000.00
{% of Shares held) 66.67 66,67
¢ [Seurabh Tandon
No of Shares 28,500.00 28,500.00
{% of Shares held) 31.67 31.67




ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates Forming integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31St March, 2024
{c} Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ per Share. Each Rolder of Equity shares is entitled to one
vole per share. In the event of Liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive rematning assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

d
@ preceding the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

Bonus Shares/Buy Back/Shares for considration other than cash issued during the period of five years immediately

i) Aggregate number of equity shares alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash- NiL

it} Aggregate number of equity shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - NiL
ifi) Aggregate number of equity shares bought back - NIL

(&) Shar i ginpters at tl fth -

As on 31.03.2024

No. of share at the No. of share at % change
begning of the Changes the end of the during the

S No. [Name of the promoter Class of Share year during the year jyear % of Total Share Jyear
1|Rajendra Kumar Sardana Equity 60,000 - 60000 66.67 -
2|Saurabh Tandon Equity 28,500 - 28500 31.67 -
As on 31.03.20223 )
No. of share at the No. of share at % change
begning of the Changes the end of the during the

S No. {Name of the promoter Class of Share year during the year |year % of Total Share |year
1}Rajendra Kumar Sardana Equity 60,000 - 60000 66.67 -
Z|>aurabh tandon Equity 28 500 - 28500 31.67 -

Mo
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

ivotes Forming integral Part of the Bolonce Sheet as at 315t March, 2024

ivote : 3 Reserves & Surpius

Amount as at

Sr. . Amount as at
- Particulars
“No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 [Securities Premium
As Per Last Financial Statemant 81,000.00 81,000.00
Total 81,000.00 81,000.00

Note : 4 Long Term Borrowings

sr.

Amount as at

Amount as at

. Particulars -
No RS A 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 tUnsecured Loans
From Relat2d Parties 25,206.00 25,206.00
Totai 25,206.00

Note : 5 Other Current Liabilities

25,206.00

Sr. .
Particulars Amount as at Amount as at
Na 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 |Expenses Paysble 3,027.98 2,760.11
Total 3,027.98 2,760.11




ALFA AUTOTECH FRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet s at 315t March, 2024
{ Alt amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rufees Unless otherwise stated}
Note 6 Non Current investments

-8r., Amount as at Amount as at
, Particulars
‘No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Other Investments
{Valued at Cost uniess stated Otherwise)
Investment in Equity instruments {Unquoted):-
1/76,000 [PY 76000 }Equity shares of M/s. Alfa Flexitubes Pvt, Ltd. 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00
Total 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00

Amount as at

Amount as at

fate :- 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1. Alf Investmerts are Long Term Investments
2. Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investment
- Book Value 1,14,000.00 1,14,000.00

- Market Value

Note ; 7 Non-Cutrent Assets

Sr. P;ﬂiculars Amount as at Amount as at
‘No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1|Miscellaneows Expenditure
Preliminary Expenses:-
Opening Balance . -
Add-~ Addition during the year - .
Less: Written off during the year* .
Total (A} - -
Pre Operative Expenses:-
Opening Balance 4,061.83 3,788.24
Add: Addition during the year 274.36 273.59
4,336.19 4,061.83
Total 4,336.19 4,061.83
Note : 8 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Sr. particulars Amount as at Amount as at
No artledta 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1|Cash-in-Hand
Cash Balance 656.36 656,36
Sub Total [A) 656.36 656.36
2{Balances with Bank
In Current Afc with S.8.1. 241.43 247.92
Sub Total (B) 241.43 247.92
897.79

Total[A + B }

8504.28

™,
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ALFA AUTOTECH PVT. LTD,
Notes Formirg Part of the Statement of Profit & Loss Accounts as at 31st March, 2024

Note 9 Other Exgenses :~

Sr. No .

Particulars -

Amount as at

* Amount as at

i |-31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 Bznk Charges 6.49 - 649
2 Audit Fees 118.00 118.00
3 Professional Charges 100.29 88.50
4 Rac Fzes 49.58 60.60
Tetal 274.36 273.59

{ All amounts are in Hundred of Indian Rupees Unless otherwise stated)

T m————————
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNT OF
ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED.
FINANCIAL YEAR 2(23-24,

NOTE NO.-1
11.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis of accounting and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India and comply with the accounting standards notified by the Central Government of
India, under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006 and relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

12. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent assets and
liabilities as on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
2xpenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ
irom these estimates. '

13.  FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

All the fixed assets are stated at Cost less Accumulated depreciation. The company
capitalizes all costs directly relating to acquisition and installation of fixed assets.

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of qualifying fixed assets. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date
are disclosed as “Capital Advances” under Long Term Loans and Advances and cost of
fixed assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under “capital-work-in-
progress”.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner
epecified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 over their useful life expect.

14 INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or fair value.
15 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest Income is recognized using time proportion method. Revenue from services is
recognized on the basis completion of service contract method.

1.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) DZFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN: N.A.

CH7ZAN
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1.7 TAXATION

a) Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are
accrued in the same period, the related revenue and expenses arise, A provision is made for
income tax annually based on the tax liability computed in accordance with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. .

b} Deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is calculated at the rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date and is recognized on
timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one account period and arc
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets, subject to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried
forward only to the extent that they can be realized in future.

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are disclosed in the Profit and loss Account. Basic earnings per
shares is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is computed and disclosed using
the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
oufstanding during the year, except when the results would be anti-dilutive,

1.9. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
ouiflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Y%
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NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THZ YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

NOTE: 10.1 Contingent Liabilities: There are no Contingent liabilities, during the year 2023-
24.

NOTE: 10.2 Expenditure in foreign Currency: Nil,

NOTE: 10.3 Farning in foreign Currency: Nil

NOTE: 10.4 Related Party Disclosure as per Accounting Standard 18:
A)  Parties where control exist: None,

B)  Other parties with whom the company has entered into transactions during the year in
the ordinary course of business at arm’s length as per details given below:

a) Name of the related parties and description of relationship:
1. Associates : Nil
2. Key Management Personnel : Ms. Pooja Sardana {Director)

: Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sardana (Director)
: Mr. Saurabh Tandon (Director)

3. Relative of Key; Management personnel: Ms. Indra Sardana

1. Enterprises cver Key Management : Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited
Personnel and their Relatives have
Significant Iafluence

b) Disclosex of Related Parties Transaction-
Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions during the year;

{(Amount in Hundred)

Particulars Relationship 2023-24 2022-23
a) Loan Taken
1. None - - -

Balance outstanding as at the end of the year
a} Loan Payable

1. Mr. Rajendra Kumar | Director . 1 5,206.00 5,205.00
Sardana

2. Mr. Saurabh Tondor. Director 11,750.00 11,750.00-

3. Ms. Pooja Sardana Director 1,000.00 1,002.00

4. Ms. Indra Sardana Spouse of Director 7,250.00 7,253.00

b} Investments Enterprises over Key .

1. Alfa Flexitubes Pvt. Management Personnel and 1,14,000.00 | 1,14.000.00
Ltd. their Relatives have Significant

Influence ,»6‘“-'!-‘?\
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NOTE: 10,5 With reference to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dt. 24.03.2021 w.r.t.
amendments in Schedule [11, additional regulatory information under are under:

(13 Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company:

Details of Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company is

belovs:
(Amount in ¥ Hundred)
Whether title
deed holder is a
Relevant i promofer, Property | Reason for
.. o Title director or .
ling item | Description | Gross . held not being
. . .| deeds held relative# of . .
in the of item of | carryin . " since held in the
in the promoter*/direc .
Balance property g value which name of the
name of | tor or employee
Sheet of date company
promoter/direct
or
PPE - - - - - -

Investment
property

PPE
retired
from
active use
and held
for
disgposal

Others

#Relztive here means relative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.
*Promoter kere means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Disciosures regarding whether revaluation is based on the valuation by a
Registered Valuer:

No revaluation took place during the year,

(i) Disclosures of Loans or Advances granted Promoters, Directors, KMPs and
the related parties:

No _cans or Advances granled to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related

parties during the year,

(iv) Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP):

‘r CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total In
Hundred.
Less 1-2 2-3 More XOTE
Than 1 then 3 vg/’*\o‘ﬂ:\

10
Hew De;hg§x§
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=5
x

130




year

Years

Years

years

(v) Intangible Assets under Development:

(a) Details >f Insangible Assets under Development Aging Schedule:

(Amount in ¥ Hundred)

Intangible assets
ar.der development

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years Mo

rc¢ than 3 Total

years

Frojzets in Progress:

Frojzets temporarily
suspended

Total

(b) Details of Intangible Assets under Development Completion Schedule:

{Amount in ¥ Hundred)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Intangible assets
under development

Less than 1 year

1-2 year

2-3 years

More than 3
yesrs

Projects in Progress;

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

vi) Details of Benami Property held:

No Benami Property held by the company as on 31.03.2024

(vii) Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets:

Not apalicabe

(viit) Wilful Defaulter:

The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
Institution or other lender as on 31.03.2024.

(ix) Relatiorship with Struck Off Companies?

The company has not made any transaction during the year with companies struck
off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companics Act,
1956.
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(x) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

(xi) Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The proviso to clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides
for restricting class or classes of holding companies from having layers of
subsidiaries beyond preseribed number. The above provision is not applicable on
the company.

(xii) Various Ratios:

Details of the various ratios are as below:

S. . %
. e Formula %lin . .
NO [ Type of Ratio (Numerator/Denominator) times FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 | Variunce
. t A /
8) | CumemRatio | Curmem Asseis/ Cument | Innumber | o9 0328 | -9.5¢%
Debt-Equity Total Debts / Shareholder’s | In number N
b) Ratio Equity of times 0.277 0277 0.00%
Debt Service Earnings for debt service In humber
©) Coverage Ratio /Debt service of times NA NA NA
Return on Equity | Profit After Tax / Average ,
d) Ratio Shareholder’s Equity % 0.003% 0.003% 0.28%
Inventory Cost of goods sold / Average | [n number
©) Turnover Ratio Inventory of times NA NA NA
) Re::ﬁiiles Net Credit Sales/ Average | In number NA NA NA
T . Trade Receivables of times ’
urnover Ratio
Trade Payables Net Credit Purchase / In number
8) Turnover Ratio Average Trade Payables of times NA NA NA
Net Capital .
h) Turﬁovearp Illgtio Turnover / Capital Employed Igfn?ir:ltir NA NA NA.
i) | Net Profit Ratio Net Profit / Total Income % NA NA NA
Return on
) Capital P’g‘pﬁ;‘*&;‘;’]‘o’yﬁ“‘l % 0.003% | 0003% | 0.00%
Employed
Return on Profit from class of
k) Investment assets/Market value of the % 0.003% 0.003% 0.00%
such class of assets

(xiii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements:

No any scheme under section 230 to 237 of the Companics Act, 2013 has been
approved for the company.

(xiv) Utilization of Borrowed Funds & Share Premium:

Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person{s) or
cntity(s), including foreign entities (Intermediaries).
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For the year, there is no undisclosed income or any transaction which are not
recorded in the books of account.
{(xvi) Details of.Crypto-Currency or Virtual Currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during
the year.

NOTE: 10.6 Figures of Previous Year have been re-grouped /re-arranged/re-
considered wherever considered necessary.

NOTE: 10.7 The éxpenses incurred during the year has been transferred lo Profit &
booked under the head as Other Non Current Assets which will be
capitalized/ Amortized at the time of starting of business activity in the company.

NOTE: 10.8 Notes 1 to 10 forms an integral part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and
loss account statement.

As per our report of even date

For GSK & Associates LLP For Alfa Autotech Private Limited

Chartered Accountant
FRN: 013838N/N500003

“gk/"" /\j\v{ -

(CA Anil Kumar Somani) | S Rajendra Kumar Sardana} Saurabh Tandon)
Designated Partner Director Director
M.No. 093521 DIN: 00732421 DIN: 01994583

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20/06/24 .
UDIN: 240935 21 BKBFXT776Y
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Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limitcd (“the
Company™) on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement of Alfa Flexitubes Private Limiced,
Demerged Company and Alfa Autotech Private Limited, Resulting Company and their
respective sharcholders and creditors under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™).

1. Background:

2

iii.

The proposed Scheme of Arrangemer 1 ("Scheme™) of Ms Alfa Cleaitubes Private

Limited (hereinafier referred to as “ite Demerged Company™). and Alth Awoiech

Private Limited (hereinalier referred 10 as “the Resulting Company™) and twir

respective sharcholders and creditors was approved by the Bowrd of Dircetors of

Alls Flexitukes Private Limited ("Board" ) vide resotution diied 29.00.2024, As per

the provisions of Sections 230 10 232 of the Companics Act, 2013, the Directors ure

required to adopt a report explaining the effect of Seheme on eyuity sharcholders,

key managerial personnel (KMPs), prominters and non-promoter sharcholders oi the

Company laying out in particular the shase exchange ratio and the same s required

10 be circulated to the Secured and Ursecured Creditors along with the Nonee

convening the meeting,

This report or the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requiremeris

ol Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companics Act. 201 3.

The following documents were placed before the Board:

a. Draft Scheme of Demerger initialed by the Director for the purposes of
identification.

b. Memorandum of Association and Articles off Association of the Demerped
Company and Resuhting Company.

¢. Audited Financial Statemems of the Demerged Company and  Kesulling
Company as on 31% March, 2024,

d. Summary of the Valuation Report alang with the basis of such valuation.

BOARD REPORT

Based on review of the Draft Scheme of Arrarge nent and the above-mertioned documane s,
the Board has formed the opinion that upon the scheme finally coming into ef*eet wl in

considemtion of the Demerger of Demerged Company and Resulting Cempany n terms off

the scheme:

0

The shares exchange ratio in which skares be allotted by the Resulting Company o
the Sharcholders of the Demerged Companies are as undur:

i.  For the purpose of arriving at the share exchange ratio. an independent
Valuation Report from Mr. Gaurav Jain. Registered Valuer has been
obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged Company is Asset Approach. It
has been stated in the valuation report that a fair eguity share enitlement
ratio would mean that for every 1000 fully paid up equity share of Alfa

Faclory & Offize:

VLM T,
Lav e

/. ALFA FLEXITUBES (P)LTD.

Y
2

/

1726, Modem Ind. Estate Bahadurgarh (HR.) 124507 {india)
E mail:- infc @alfa-flexitubes.com
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Flexitube Private Limited. Alfa Autotech Private Limited will issuz 38
shares,

The proposed Scheme of arrangzment would inter alia have the following
benefits:

‘The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Compam
are of the opinion that the Demerger under this Scheme would result in
bensfit o members. creditors and employ ces and will not be detrimenial to
the public. The rationales / benefits of the present Scheme are mentioned
hereunder:

a) The demerger of Pune Unit of Demerged Company into the Rest ling
Company  will enable th: Demerged  Company  (the Retamned
Undertakirg) to focus more specifically on the Bhadurgarh Units .ts an
exclusive antity and will concentrate on developing and achicving
expertise towards it and desision making. without the distraction ol
managing multiple units. This can lead to improved performance and
innovation. Also. investors may value specialized companies higher
than a conglomerate as they can betier understund and assess the risks
and opportunitics of a focused business, This can lead o improved
valuation.

b) The Arrangement will result in beter, etficient and  cconomical
management. ¢ost savings. creating better synergy acrass the group.
optimum atilization of resources. rationalizaiion of administrative
expenses/services. control and running of  busmesses and  terther
development and growth of the busiess of both the companics.

¢) The Arrangement would allow a locused strategy in operanions of the
Demerger Undenaking alongwith providing scope for independent
collaborations  and  expansion  without committing  the  enisting
organization in tts entirety and creating enhanced value for operanions,

d) The Resuiing Company will have betier linancial and  business
praspects. The Scheme would be beneticial to and in the best inferestof
the sharclolders & creditcrs of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudicial
1o the interests of concerned sharchobders! creditors and generel public
at large.

The existing Direciors including Key Managerial Personnel (“the KNPs")
of the Demerged Campany and Resulting Company shall have no effect on
the date of implementation ol the Scheme,

The Demerged Company and Resulting Company has not issued any
detenwures and hence. does not have Debenture Trustee and has not
accepted any deposits henee there is no deposit trustee also.

The etlect of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement on the stahcholders of
the Company ~vould be as follows:


experti.se

Effect of the Scheme o

Shareholders

The Equity Sharcholders of  Demerged
Company shall become Equity Sharcholders of
Resulting Company. Shares exchange ratto in
which equity shares be allotted by the Resulting
Company to the Sharcholders of the Demergzd
Company 1s given below: -

i. IUhas been stated in the valuation report thai a
fair equity share entitlement ratio would mean
that for every 1000 fully paid up cquity share of
Alfa Flexitube Private Limited. Alfa Autotech
Private Limnited witl issue 58 shares.

Directors & Key
Managerizl Bersonnel
VKV

The existing  Dircctors  including  Key i
Managerial Personnel ("the KMPs™) of the |
Pemerged Company and Resulting Company
shall have mno  cflecct on  the dawe  of .
implementation of the Scheme. |
|

Promoters

Same as point {(7) ce

Non-Promoter Mcembers

Samc as point {a)

Depositors

Not Applicable |
f

Creditors

Creditors  with  respect 10 the  Demerged
Company.  with  regand 10 Demerged
Undertaking shall become the Creditors of |
Resuiting Company. o

Employces of  the
Company

All the employees ol the Demerged Company, |
ilany in service on the Effective Date shull be
deemed 1o have become cmplovees of the

P

(i) In the opinion of ihe Board: the said schieme will be of advantage and beneticial o
the Company, its Sharcholders, Creditors and other Stakeholders and the tenms
thereef are fair and reasonable. 1L is for these reasons that the Board ol Directois of
the Company approved the Scheme at their meeting held on 24.06.2024,

Dates 24.06,2024

Place:Delhi

For ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIVIITED

Saurabh Tandon
PDirector
DEN:01994583
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Address: M-439, IST FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR

PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI -110087
CIN: U34300DL2008PTC173317 Email Id: accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com

Report adopted by the Board of Dircctors of Alfa Autetech Private Limited (“the
Company™) on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement of Alfa Flevitubes Private Limited,
Demerged Company and Alfa Autotech Private Limited, Resulting Company and their
respective sharcholders and creditors under the provisicns of sections 230 1o 232 ol the
Companics Act, 2013 (“Act™).

1. Background:

i The proposed Scheme oi'Arrmu_.cnwm (*Scheme™) of M/s Alfa Flexitubes Prinate
Limited (here.nafter referred to as “the Demerged Company™. and Alfa Autorech
Private Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Resulting Company ™y and their
respective shareholders and creditors was approved by the Board ot Dircctors ol
Alfa Flexitubes Private Limited ("Board") vide resolution dated 24.06.2024. As per
the provisions of Sections 231 to 232 of the Companics Act. 2013. the Direetors are
required 10 adopt a report exalaining the effect of Scheme on equty sharcholders,
hey managerial personnel (KRPs). promoters and non-promoter sharcholders o2 the
Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and the same is required
to be circulated to the Sceured and Unseeured Creditors along with the Notiee
convening the meeting,.

ii. This report of the Board is aceordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements
of Section 232 (2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,
iii.  The fullowing documents were placed before the Board:
a. Draft Scheme of Demerger initialed by e Dircctor for the purposes of
identification.

b. Memorandum of Association and Articles ol Association of the Demerged
Company and Resulting Tompany.

¢. Audited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company as on 31" March. 2024,

d. Summary of the Valuation Report along with the basis of such valuation.

2, BOARD REPORT

Based on review of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement an:l the above-mentioned documaents.
the Board has formed the opinion tat upon the scheme finally coming into effect and

consideration of the Demerger of Demerged Company and Resuling Company in terws of

the scheme:

(i)  The shares exchange ratio in which shares be allotted by the Resulting Compaay o
the Sharcholders of the Denrerged Companies are as under:

i.  For tae purpose of arriving at the shawe exchange ratio, an independent
Valuation Report from Mr. Gaurav Jain, Registered Valuer hias been
obtained. Basis of valuation for Demerged Company is Assct Approach. 1t
has been stated in the valuation report that a tair equity share entitlement
ratio would mean that for every 1000 tully paid up eguity share of Alfa
Flexitube Private Limited, Alfa Autotech Private Limited will issue 38
shares.
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V.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement would inter alia have the followirg
benefits:

The Board of Dircctors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company
are ol the opinion that the Demerger under this Scheme would result in
benefit to members, crediters and employees and will not be detrimental <o
the public. The ratienales / benefits of the present Scheme are mentiongd
hereunder: '

a) The demerger of Pune Unit of Demeirged Company into the Resulting
Company will enable the Demerged Companvy  (the  Retained

Undertaking) to focus more specificatly on the Bhadurgarh Units as o
exclusive entity and will concentrate on developing and achievirg

expertise towards it and decision making, without the distraction of

managing multiple units. This can lead o impraved performance and
innovation. Also. imvesiors may value specialized companies higher
than a conglomerate as they can better understand and assess the risks
and opportunities of a focused business. This can lead o improved
valuation,

b) The Arrangement will result in beuer, efficient wnd cconomical
‘management. cost savings, creating betier synergy across the group.
aoptimum  utilization ol resources, rationalization of administrative
expenses/services, control and running ol busmesses and  further
development and growth ol the business of both the companics.

¢} The Arrangement would allow a focused strategy in operations of the
Demerger Undertaking alongwith providing scope (or independent
collaborations  and  cxpansion  without committing he  existing
organization in its entirety and creating enhanced vabue for operations,

dy The Resulting Company will have better financial and business
prospects. The Scheme would be beneticial to and inole best interesi o
the sharcholders & creditors of the Demerged Company and th
Resulting Company. The Scheme shall not in any manner be prejudicia!
to the interests of concerned sharcholders/ creditors and general public
at large.

The existing Directors including Key Managerial Personnet ("the KMPe™
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company shall have no effect on
the date of implementation of the Scheme.

The Demerged Company and Resulting Company has not issued am
debentures and hence. does not have Debenture Trustee and hus vot
accepted any deposits hence there 1s no deposit trustee also,

The effeet of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement on the stakcholders o)

the Conmpany would be as follows:
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[ii¥ect of the Scheme con

a. | Sharebolders The Equity  Sharerolders ot Deamnerged
Company shall beeore Equity Shavcholders of
Resulting Company. Shares exchange ratio in
which equity shares be alloted by the Resulting
Company o the Sharchaolders ot the Demerged
Company is given below: -

i [t has been stated 1o the valuation report that a
fir equity share enutlement ratio would maan
Lt for every 1000 fully paic ugy cquity share of
Alfa Flexitube Private Limited, Alfa Autoteeh
Private Limited will issut 38 shaies.

. | Directors & Key | The  existing Directors including ey
Managenel Pasonnel | Managerial Personnel (Mthee KMPs™} of the

F(KRP) Demerged Company and Resuling Comprny
chall  have no  effect on the daie of
implementation ot the Scheme.

tg, i Prometess Same as point {a) o o
. | Non-Promoter Memdcrs | Same as potnt (a) o
te.  Depositers i Not Applicable

ff ¢ Creditors CCreditors  with respeet to the Dcn'u:r;;r
% E Company.  with  regard  to Demerged |
| | Undertaking shall kecome the Creditors of ]
i j Resulting Company. o
¢ P Pmphvees of e Al the employees of te Demerged C Lmpany.

fany in service on the Effective Date shall be
Jeemed to have become emplovees of the
Resulung Company.

f Compeny

(i) Ir. the opinior ¢f the Boed, the seid scheme will be olfadvantage and bére frcial wa
(ke Cormny. its Sharzholdors, Creditors and other Stakehofders and the s
therenf are feirand reasonable, 1L s for these reasons that the Board of Dizectors ol
the Corpany approved 112 Scheme at their meetng held on 24.06.2024,

For ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMNHELD

F .
za/\‘-/ ‘“’""‘/

Saurabh Tassdon
Dhrector
DIN:U1933383

13ate;24.06.2024
Fluceselhi
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e - ALFA FLEXITUBES (P) LTD. ===

—— " Regd. off.: &
m M-439. First Floor, Gury Harlkrishan Nagar, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110087
CIN No. Us5¢93DL1996PIC075886 Phone: 011-25288796 —
. . Fax ; 011-25261475 . | DR
Co . : : REGISTERED
) . CEiQT[FlED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY Bom OF DIRECTORS

OF ALFA FLEXITUBES PRIVATE LIMITED AT THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON
‘MONDAY', THE 24™ DAY OF JUNE, 2024 AT 11.00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT M-439, 15 FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR,
PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW DELHI- 110087

“li_ESOLVEf) THAT pursuant to the proposal of demerger of Company, Board be and heréby
cofisent to the same. ] ' _'
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions, rules made thereunder, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and enabling
provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of Association and subject'to obtaining requisite
ap_i:rovals from National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench, and such other competent
authoriiy; the entire Pune Unit of the Company shall stands transferred and vested in Alfa Autotéch
 Private Limited with effect from the Appointed Date, i.e. April 1, 2024 by way of and in accordance
with the Scheme of Demerger (“Scheme”) be and is hereby approved by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of Demerger of entire Pune Unit of the Company into
.Alfa Autotech Private Limited, a copy of which is duly initialed by the Board for the piarpose of
identification and placed before the Board, which in the opinion of the Board, would be advantageous
z?nd beneficial to the Company and al! the stakeholders and that the terms thereof being fair and

reasonable be and is hereby approved,

-

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the valuation Reports received from Registered Valuer, settling the

. share exchange ratio for the purpose of demerger be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and hereby sevzraly and/or
jointly authorized in the name of and behalf of the Company to:

(i) Take all necessary steps for obtainiﬁg approvals and!or.conscnt of members/

shareholders of the Company, Creditors and/or other authorities and/pr other entities as

Focrory & Office :

1726, Modem Ind, Estate, Bahadurgarh (HR.) 124¢
E mall :- info@alfa-flexiubes.com
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(iii)

(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)
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may be required and for that purpose, to initiate all necessary actions and to take other

consequential steps in that behalf;

Finalize and seitle the Scheme, make any alterations, changes to the Scheme as may be
expedient or necessary, draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings
of the sharcholders and creditors and the draft of explanatory -statement under Section
230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder with such modifications

as they may deem fit.

Eile the application, petition for demerger in the National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi Bench and finalize, settle, sign and execute any affidavits, pleadings, undertakings
cr other documents, and to execute all such further deeds, dqcuments and writings, with
such modifications/ amendments, as may be necessary in that behalf from time to time or

celegate such authority to another person by a valid power of attomey.

IMake, execute, swear, declare and register all declarations, afﬁﬂavits, applications, fetter
as may be required necessary or expedient under the provisions of various applicable
acts, rules, reguiations or notifications of-lhe Central and/or State Goyvernment (s), and/or
authorities including but not limited to Courts, Municipa! Authorities, Registrar of
Companies, Electricity authorities, and to represent the Company in all correspondences,

matters and proceedings before them of any nature whatsoever in relation to the above.

Appgint"sb!icitor, advocates, attorneys, pleaders, advisors, valuers, auditors, accountants,
2F any one or more agencies as may be required, for the aforesaid purpose, on such terms
and conditions as they may deem fit and also to execute vakalatnamas, if required, in

favour of any or more persons or firms as they may deem fit and necessary.

Assent and approve any alterations or modification to the Scheme which the Hon’ble

“National Company Law tribunal, New Dethi Bench may deem fit to approve or impose.

Consider, make and approve and sign and execute all other documents, advertisements or

announcements, applications, disclosures which may be sent/ required to be sent to the
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governmental or regulatory authorities or concerned authorities on behalf of the

Company.

(viii) To take all such actions and steps in the above matter, as may be required from time to
time, including resolving the difficuliies, if any, arising as and when required in the
ebove connections without any further references to the Board and

(ix)  To sign, execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary and do all such other
acts, matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to
giving effect for the purpose of the above resolution or to otherwise give effect to the

transactions contemplated as aforesaid.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and arc hereby authorized
to appoint M/s Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers, Advocates to enter into appearance before the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench in connection with the said cemerger
and to do/ caused to be done, to execute / caused 'to be executed all such acts, deeds and things
incidental th.ereto, with respect to the National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copies of this resolution, be furnished to the

concerned euthorities under the signature of any of the Directors of the Company wherever required.”

HCertified True Copyl/

For and on behalf oi‘;.
ALFA FLEXTUBES PRIVATE LIMITED

SAURABH TANDON
(DTRECTOR)
DIN: 01994383

Dute: 24.06.2024
- Place: Delhi
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

M-439, 15T FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW

DELHI- 110087 % H&.
CIN-U34300CL2008PTC173317 . Email- accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com £ o ° ¢

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ALFA
AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED AT THE BOARD -MFBTING HELD ON MONDAY, THE 4™
DAY OF JUNE, 2024 AT 1030 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
SITUATED AT M—439, IST FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR, PASCHIM VIHAR, NEW
DELHI- 110087

“F.ESOLVED THAT pursuant to the proposal of demerger of ‘entire Pune Unit’ of Alfa Flexitubes Private
Limit:d into the Company, Board be and hereby consent to the same.

RESGLVED FURTHER THAT pursvant to Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2033 and other
" apalicable provisions, rules made ther;under. if any, of the Companies Act, 201 3_ and enabling provisions in the
Memcrandum and Articles of Association and subject to obtaining requisite approvals from National Company
Law ZTribunal, New Delhi Bench, and such other competent authority, the entire Pune Unit of the Alfa
Flexitabes Private Limited shall stand transferred and vested into the Company with effect from the Appointed
Cete, i.e. April 1, 2024 by way of and in accordance with the Scheme of Demerger (“Scheme™) be and is
here. approved by the Board of Directors.

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Scheme of Demerger of entire Pune Unit of the Alfa Flexitubes Private
Limited into the Compzny, & copy of which is duly initizled by the Board for the purpose of identification and
p-eced before the Boérd, which in the opinion of the Board, would be advantageous and beneficial t0 the
Company and all the stakeholders and that the terms thercof being fair and reasonable be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the valuation report received from Registered Valuer, setiling the share
exchange ratio be and is hereby approved.

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby severally and/or jointly

authosized in the name of and behalf of the Company to:

MH Take all nscessary steps for obtaining approvals and/or consent of members/ shareholders of the
Company, Creditors and/or other authorities and/or other entities as may be required and for that
purpose, to initiate all necessary actions and to take other consequentia! steps in that behalf;

vii) Finalize and settle the Scheme, make any alterations, changes to the Scheme as may be expedient
or necessary, draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings of the shareholders
an'd creditors and the draﬂ of explanatory statement under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder with such modifications as they may deem fit. '

P



SA - ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

M-439, 15T FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW

DELHI- 110087

CIN-U34300DL2008PTC173317 . Email- accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com

(iiiy . File the application, petition for demerger in the Nationa! Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
Bench and finalize, settle, sign and execute any affidavits, pleadings, undertakings or other
documents, and to execute all such further deeds, documents and writings, with such
'modifications/ amendments, as may be necessary in that behalf from time to time or delegate such

authority to another person by a valid power of attomey.

(iv) Make, exccute, swear, declare and register all declarations, affidavits, applications, letter as may
: be required necessary or expedient under the provisions of various applicable acts, rules,
regulations or notifications of the Central and/or State Government (s), and/or authorities
including but not limited to Courts, Municipal Authorities, Registrar of Companies, Electricity
' authurities,' and to represent the Co_mpany in all correspandences, matters and proceedings before
them of any nature whatsoever in relation to the above.

) Appoint solicitor, advocates, attorneys, pleaders, advisors, valuers, auditors, accountants, or any
i ' one or more agencies as may be required, for the eforesaid purpose, on such terms and conditions
as they may deem fit and also to execute vakalatnamas, if required, in favour of any or more

persons or firms as they may deem fit and necessary.

' (~i) Assent and approve any alterations or modification to the Scheme which the Hon'ble National
' Company Law tribunal, New Delhi Bench may deem fit to approve or impose.

"{vii)  Consider, make and approve and sign and execute all other documents, advertisements or
announcements, applications, disclosures which may be sent/ required 1o be sent to the

govemmental or regulatory authorities or concerned authorities on behalf of the Company.

(viii) " To take all such ections and steps in the above matter, as may be required from time to time,
including resolving the difficuliies, if eny, arising as and when required in the above connections

without any further references to the Board and

(ix) To sign, execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary and do all such other acts,
matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to giving effect
for the purpose of the above resolution or to otherwise give effect to the transactions contemplated

as aforesaid,”

-
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(DIRECTOR)
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ALFA AUTOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED '

M-439, 15T FLOOR, GURU HARKISHAN NAGAR PASCHIM VIHAR NEW
DELHI- 110087
CIN-U34300D12008PTC173317 . Email- accounts@alfa-flexitubes.com

e

-~ Ay e

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to appoint
Mfs‘ Saxena and Saxena Law Chambers, Advocates to enter into appearance before the Hon’ble National
Com.pany Lew Tribunal, New Delhi Bench in connection with the said Demerger and to do/ caused to be done,
to exscute / caused to be executed all such é\cts, deeds and things ipcidéntal thereto, with respect to the National

" Cowyany Law Tribunal Rules, 2016

. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copies of this resolution, be fumished to the concemed

. authzrities under the signature of any of the Director of the Company.”

HCertified True Copy//

For and on behalf of

« ALFA AUTCTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

" A

DIN: 01994583

Date: 24,06.2024
Piace: Delhi
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